
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN • MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS • STEVE HARVEY • KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

December 12, 2018 
Regular Session 7:00 PM 

 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 12, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
1A. Call Open Session to Order 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 
1C. Roll Call 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 
2. PRESENTATION 
2A. Website Update and Photo Contest 
 Shaun McFayden, VisionQuest Website designer 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No discussion of these 
items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent Agenda 
for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 
3A. Minutes – Regular meeting November 14, 2018 
 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 10, 2018. 
3B. Cash Summary Report – October 2018 
 Recommendation:  Accept and file. 
3C. RGS Contract Extension for Planning Services 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 74-2018 authorizing the City Manager to extend the 
contract with Regional Government Services (RGS) for planning services on an as needed 
basis as approved in the 2018-2109 Fiscal Year Budget.  

3D. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) Lease Agreement 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 75-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 
Agreement with NOAA for lease of City property at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

3E. Cash Summary Report – November 2018 
Recommendation:  Accept and file. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter jurisdiction of 
the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes in length.  
The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 
 
 
 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 12, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 3  

 

5. COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 
meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 
action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 
5B. City Operations Update – City staff 
5C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 
6. COUNCIL BUSINESS 

6A. Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned Development Permit, 
Development Agreement and Design Review for an ARCO Service Station for the Maidu 
Village Development Project 
Staff Presentation:  Amy Feagans Planning Director 
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider:  
1. Adopting Resolution 76-2018 approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the 

Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned Development, Design 
Review; and, 

2. Waiving the second reading, read by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 538  - an 
ordinance of the  City of Colfax adopting findings  of fact approving a Development 
Agreement with Colfax Auburn LLC regarding development of the Maidu Village 
property generally located on South Auburn Street near the intersection of the Interstate  
Highway 80 on-ramp, and  

3. Adopting Resolution 77-2018 approving the design review for the Arco Service Station 
at the Maidu Village Development Project. 

6B. Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Planning Grant 
– Engineering Studies Agreement with Wood Rodgers  

 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 78-2018 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into an agreement with Wood Rodgers for the Engineering Studies 
component of the Planning Grant for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Improvements in an amount not to exceed $242,650 contingent upon approval of the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board grant funding. 

6C. Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Planning Grant 
- Inflow and Infiltration Flow Meters 
Staff Presentation:  Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director  
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 79-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with SmartCover Systems for lease and purchase of 
SmartFLOE meters in an amount not to exceed $38,162 contingent upon approval of the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board grant funding. 

6D. Results of November 6, 2018 Election 
 Staff Presentation:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 80-2018 declaring the results 
of the General Municipal Election held on November 6, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 12, 2018 

 
Page 3 of 3  

 

6E. Oath of Office and Seating of New Council Members 
Staff Presentation:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Recommendation:  Recognition of retiring Mayor and Councilmember and Oath of Office of 
newly elected Councilmember for the term beginning December 12, 2018 through the first 
City Council meeting after the Certification of the November 2020 election and the Oath of 
Office for the newly elected Councilmembers for the term beginning December 12, 2018 
through the first City Council meeting after the Certification of the November 2022 election. 

6F. Rotation of City Council Officers:  Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
Staff Presentation:  Alfred A Cabral; City Attorney 

Recommendation:  By Separate Motions, Select Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 
7. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 
or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

*Cake and refreshments immediately following the meeting* 
I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted  

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action 
in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this 
notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, November 14, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 6:00PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Stockwin 
Council member absent:  Mendoza 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 
There was no public comment. 

1D. Closed Session 
1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation. Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54956.9(d)(1): People of the State of California vs Church of Modern Medicine, 
Placer County Superior Court Case #SCV41724.  

 

2) Public Employment and Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957.  Position Title:  City Manager 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza arrived at 6:13PM. 
Closed session ended at 6:52PM. 

 

2 OPEN SESSION 
2A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:01PM. 
2B. Report from Closed Session 

City Attorney Cabral noted there were two items discussed but no reportable actions taken 
during Closed Session.   

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza led the Pledge of Allegiance and a moment of silence for victims of 
the Camp Fire. 

2D. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
The speaker for PG&E on Wildfire Management was unable to attend the meeting, therefore, staff 
has pulled Item 3A from the agenda order. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the agenda order as amended. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

3 PRESENTATIONS 
3A. PG&E – Community Wildfire Safety Program 

Postponed until January 2019 
 
 

Item 3A
1 of 8



3B. Concert Venue at Closed Landfill – Canyon Theatre Project 
Greg Flessing and Lorin Miller, Fresh Air Media 

Mr. Flessing and Mr. Miller gave a professional multimedia presentation of their concept to create 
an outdoor theatre venue at the closed landfill.  They provided a suggested schedule of family 
friendly choir and theater performances and concerts for the summer of 2019 to test the viability 
of the proposal.  With the expectation of a successful and well received first season which would 
have temporary staging structures, they also illustrated how the Canyon Theatre could gradually 
become a permanent venue. 
Council asked several questions regarding amplification, safety, marketing, programming, and 
environmental concerns. 
Many of the details are yet to be determined for the proposed venue and these concerns will be 
addressed as the concept moves forward.  Fresh Air Media is looking for partners for resource 
collaboration.  The project could only be successful with the support of the community and 
partnerships with the City, County, and/or the Chamber of Commerce. 
City Manager Heathcock stated the landfill cap was built specifically to handle this type of use. 
Initial permissions from the County and State Waterboard have been procured for a trial season.  
The Waterboard would require a more thorough analysis and permit before the project could 
become a permanent fixture.  Council and the community would be involved in every step. 
Rita Dolphin, 54 Quinns Lane, spoke in favor of the project. 
Reene Abbott, area resident, voiced concerns about noise for neighboring residents. 
Rocky Warren, area resident, stated the single access road could be a Public Safety concern in the 
event of an emergency. 
Linda Hartman, unknown residence, inquired about the financial gain for the City. 
Trinity Burruss, 301 Oak Ridge, voiced concerns about the structural engineering of the asphalt 
cap. 
Council thanked Mr. Flessing and Mr. Miller for their presentation of the Canyon Theatre concept.   
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
4A. Minutes - Regular Meeting October 10, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 10, 2018. 
4B. Cash Summary Report – September 2018 

Recommendation:  Accept and file. 
4C. Quarterly Investment Report – Ending September 30, 2018 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
4D. Agreements for Federal Transportation Funds for the Rising Sun Paving Project 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 62-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Program Supplement Agreement and Finance letters for the Rising Sun Paving Project 
under the Master Agreement Administering Agency State Agreements for Federal-Aid 
Projects. 

4E. Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 63-2018 authorizing the City Manager to file claims 
or execute agreements for: Local Transportation Funds in the amount of $118,552 for 
streets and roads purposes (Article 8 – Section 99400 of the California Public Utilities 
Code), Local Transportation Funds of $101, for transit service (Article 8c, Section 99400C 
of the California Public Utilities Code), and State Transit Assistance Funds of $14,274 
(Article 6.5, Chapter 4, Section 99313 of the California Public Utilities Code). 
 

4F. 2018 ADA Improvements Project – Notice of Completion 

Item 3A
2 of 8



Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 64-2018 accepting the 2018 ADA Improvements 
Project as complete and authorizing the recording of the Notice of Completion. 

4G. Pond I Project – Notice of Completion 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 65-2018 accepting the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Pond 1 Levee Project as complete and authorizing the recording of the Notice of 
Completion. 

4H. Shade Structure for Lions Ball Park Bleachers 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 66-2018 approving the purchase and installation by 
Ross Recreation Equipment for a shade structure over the Lions Ball Park Bleachers in an 
amount not to exceed $56, 000. 

4I. Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 67-2018 approving the Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection Agreement required by CalFire as a condition to receiving grant funds in 
the amount of $3,970 for the Grant application for the 2018/19 Fiscal Year. 

4J. Acceptance of Real Property for S. Auburn St and I-80 Roundabout Project (Federal 
Aid Project CML-5187(010)) 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 68-2018 authorizing the City Manager to accept real 
property and execute right-of-way certifications associated with the South Auburn Street 
and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project. 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the consent calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

5 PUBLIC HEARING 
5A. Public Hearing for Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned 

Development Permit, Development Agreement and Design Review for an ARCO 
Service Station for the Maidu Village Development Project 
Staff Presentation:  Amy Feagans, Planning Director 
Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing, discuss and consider:  
1. Adopting Resolution XX-2018 approving the mitigated Negative Declaration and the 

Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned Development, 
Design Review; and, 

2. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 538 an Ordinance of the City of 
Colfax adopting findings of fact approving a Development Agreement with Colfax 
Auburn LLC regarding the development of the Maidu Village property generally 
located on South Auburn Street near the intersection of Interstate Highway 80 on-
ramp and off-ramp, and schedule for a second reading and possible adoption at the 
December 12, 2018 regular meeting; and, 

3. Adopting Resolution XX-2018 approving the Design Review for the ARCO Service 
Station at the Maidu Village Development Project.  

Mayor Stockwin opened the Public Hearing at 8:05PM. 
Planning Director Feagans explained the scope of the project including building footprint, traffic 
flow and landscaping.  The project will be a three-phase development to include an ARCO service 
station with convenience mart and drive-thru car wash (Phase 1), fast food restaurant, coffee kiosk 
and sit-down restaurant (Phase 2), and commercial building and hotel (Phase 3).  After the public 
hearing, Council will consider approving the master site plan review, the conditions of approval 
(COA), and the design review for the ARCO station.  With approvals, future Phase 2 and Phase 3 

Item 3A
3 of 8



development will be eligible for a simple design review permit at the staff level as long as the plans 
are in substantial compliance with the site master plan. 
Councilmember Douglass asked if a trail along Bunch Creek is included in the master plan for the 
site. 
Planning Director Feagans explained the COA include a 10-foot easement for a future trail. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked if the appropriate cultural requirements have been considered. 
Representatives from the RCH group who were contracted to do the environmental and cultural 
reviews replied the local tribe was involved in the review process and no significant cultural 
artifacts were found.  Mitigation measures are in place to protect any cultural artifacts should they 
be discovered during the development of the site. 
Sean Lomen, Colfax resident, asked if the easement could be expanded provide space to improve 
the existing gravel roadway.  
Jeff Bordelon, representing the applicants, spoke briefly about the project and stated the 
applicants have worked closely with the City to ensure the project could move forward in 
conjunction with the roundabout. 
Mayor Stockwin closed the public hearing at 8:17PM. 
Staff is recommending Council waive the first reading of the ordinance and read by title only, 
schedule the second reading and possible adoption for the December 12th meeting and wait until 
the December 12th meeting to approve both resolutions.  
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, the City Council 
waived the first reading of the ordinance, read by title only and scheduled the second reading for 
the December 12, 2018 meeting. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

5B. Mitigation Impact Fees 
Staff Presentation:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 
Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing, review the annual report, consider public 
and staff comments, accept report and consider adopting Resolution 70-2018 accepting 
and approving the Annual AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report and making finding pursuant to 
Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 and the Mitigation Fee Act (Gov Code §66000 Et Seq) 

Mayor Stockwin opened the Public Hearing at 8:20PM. 
Finance Director Van Groningen explained this is an annually required accounting of the 
Mitigation Fee Accounts. 
At the request of Councilmember Harvey, City Attorney Cabral explained for the public that 
Mitigation Fees are fees collected when properties are developed.  The fees are assigned to certain 
accounts and must be spent only on projects within their assigned accounts.  For example, Parks 
and Recreation Fees can only be used for park and recreation expenditures. 
There was no Public Comment on this item.  
Mayor Stockwin closed the public hearing at 8:23PM. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved Resolution 70-2018. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 
 
 
 

Item 3A
4 of 8



5C. Public Hearing for Site Plan Review and Design Review to develop the Whitcomb 
Avenue Site 
Staff Presentation:  Amy Feagans, Planning Director 
Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing, discuss and consider adopting Resolution 
71-2018 approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Application (DSRP-2017-002) 
Site Plan Review and Design review for the Whitcomb Avenue property (APN 100-230-
013) with an office/shop and outdoor RV and boat self-storage operation. 

Mayor Stockwin opened the Public Hearing at 8:29PM. 
Planning Director Feagans explained the scope of the project including building footprint, traffic 
flow and landscaping.  The project will be a two-phase development of the three acre site at the 
end of Whitcomb Street to include an outdoor RV/Boat Storage Area and modular shop and office 
building (Phase 1).  Phase 2 will expand the Shop and Office building to 6,000 square feet.   
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked if the life-flight helicopter pad will be impacted and learned it will 
not. 
Margie Livingstone, 213 Treasurton, stated the fencing for the project is inadequate to block views 
from the neighboring residences and enquired about the storm water run-off from the project. 
Planner Feagans explained the developer has agreed to plant fast growing landscaping which will 
screen the views of the property. 
City Engineer Schilling explained the developer will be required to install a detention basin and 
extra landscaping which will collect storm water and result in no extra impacts to the natural 
drainage from the site. 
Kathleen Campbell, 109 Winder, asked what the owners adjacent to the property would see. 
Gerry LeBudde, representing the applicants, stated the property owners want to be good 
neighbors and will endeavor to have minimal impact on nearby properties.  The landscaping will 
significantly reduce the impact of views for the neighbors. 
Mayor Stockwin closed the public hearing at 8:43PM. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved Resolution 71-2018. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

Mayor Stockwin called a brief recess at 8:44PM and called the meeting back to order at 8:51PM. 
 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Dawn Jarocki, area resident 

• Ms. Jarocki introduced a program she is developing for fire survivors called “Breath 
of Fresh Air”.  She will be offering free services and eventually plans to open a 
sanctuary village for trauma recovery. She handed out a flyer explaining her 
program. 
 

7 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
7A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Douglass 
• Councilmember Douglass represented the City on a Government Public Affairs 

Subcommittee for SACOG and the Pioneer Energy Board. 
• He met with staff and a potential vendor regarding the possibility of installing a solar 

array at the Wastewater Treatment Plant as a cost reduction measure. 
• He also attended the Breakfast with Supervisor Montgomery. 

 

Item 3A
5 of 8



Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
• Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the Veteran’s Breakfast. 
• She gave several public service announcements including a phone number for 

disaster distress and information about the community Thanksgiving Dinner. 
Councilmember Harvey 

• Councilmember Harvey represented the City on the Placer County Transportation 
Planning Agency and Air Quality Control boards. 

• He reminded everyone to stay inside during heavy smoke incidents from wildfires 
and to encourage the Air Quality Control department to relax restrictions which 
would inhibit the ability for controlled burns to prevent wildfires. 

Mayor Stockwin 
• Mayor Stockwin attended the Winterfest Fundraiser which was a success! 
• He gave a “No Rainfall” report – no rainfall since October puts the area behind norms 

for the season.  It is important to be very careful outdoors when the forests are so 
dry. 
 

7B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

• City Manager Heathcock stated Caltrans has just completed a restriping of the I-80 
on- and off- ramps in anticipation of the City Roundabout Project. 

• The Historic Colfax Hotel owners have filed Chapter 11 to reorganize their debt. 
• Roundabout construction could begin as early as April 2019. 
• Staff has submitted the application for the planning grant to fund design and 

engineering for several Capital Improvement Projects related to the sewer system. 
  

7C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Sean Lomen, Colfax Firefighters Association 

• Mr. Lomen announced the Firefighters will host their 1st Annual Visit from Santa 
on the antique fire engine on December 15th.  Santa will distribute candy canes to 
children on his tour through town. 

Mayor Stockwin reported on behalf of Chief Eagan who is still battling the Camp Fire. 
• Please remember the burn season is still closed. 
• Check your smoke detector when you change your clocks for the time change. 
• This is a good time to service your heaters and fire places. 

City Manager Heathcock stated Sergeant Conners is also assigned to the Camp Fire for search and 
rescue. 

Frank Klein, President, Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce 
• Mr. Klein stated the Winterfest Fundraiser was successful and he thanked Paul Raj 

and his family for cooking a fantastic feast.  He also thanked others who 
contributed to the event. 

• Winterfest will be December 8, 2018 from 4PM - 8PM with a parade, fireworks and 
vendors.  It will be held rain or shine! 

• The Chamber Board is recruiting volunteers to serve as Board members. 
• He thanked Council for working closely with the Chamber. 
• He also mentioned the Chamber still needs donations for the fireworks display. 

Item 3A
6 of 8



• Mr. Klein introduced Jessica from Ambitions Performing Arts.  The dance studio 
will host a dinner performance December 1st and 2nd and proceeds will go towards 
Winterfest. 

• Mr. Klein mentioned a Raffle for a week in Tahoe.  Tickets are $10. 
Fred Abbott, Event Liaison  

• Mr. Abbott shared he is chairing the Colfax Lions Club Parade.  He has developed a 
new sign up sheet.  Pre-registration is requested this year.   

Sharon Conners and Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  
• Ms. Conners announced the upcoming events to be held at Sierra Vista Community 

Center. 
• Ms. McCleary thanked the Lions Club for a very successful Pancake Breakfast and 

stated the VFW will donate $100 towards the Winterfest Fireworks. 
 

8 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
8A. Construction Management and Inspection Services for S. Auburn St. and I-80 

Roundabout Project (Federal Aid Project CML-5187(010)) 
Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer  
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 72-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement with Psomas for construction 
management inspection services on the South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project 
in an amount not to exceed $299,085, contingent upon Caltrans approval of the procurement 
process. 
 

Before beginning his presentation, City Engineer Schilling thanked Council for the opportunity to 
be part of the Colfax community.  This will be his last project with the City and he has found his 
time with the City to be very rewarding. 
 

City Engineer Schilling stated the plans for the Roundabout Project are nearly at 100% and ready 
for review.  The next step in the process is to engage a team for Construction Management.  The 
City advertised a formal Request for Proposals in accordance with federal procurement 
regulations.  Psomas was unanimously ranked as the most qualified firm which applied.  After 
negotiations Psomas has agreed to a fee of $299,085 which is within the current budget for the 
project. 
Councilmember Harvey stated he has had the opportunity to work with Psomas in the past and 
they were a very good firm to work with.   
There was no public comment. 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 72-2018. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

8B. City Engineering Consulting Services 
Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 73-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a contract agreement with Bureau Veritas North America, Inc. for City 
Engineering Services for a term of 3-years with an option for a 2-year extension. 
 

Before beginning his presentation, City Manager Heathcock stated that Mr. Schilling’s presence 
here tonight is a testament to his character.  Coastland Engineering has determined they do not 
have the staff to support the City for engineering services.  Mr. Schilling has stayed with the City 

Item 3A
7 of 8



to help finish projects already underway.  City Manager Heathcock thanked him for his service and 
integrity.   
Council agreed that Mr. Schilling has been a credit to his company. 
 

With the close of the contract with Coastland Engineering, staff advertised for a Request for 
Qualifications for a new engineering firm.  Two firms submitted proposals and after a panel 
interview process in compliance with state and federal procurement regulations, Bureau Veritas 
(BV) was unanimously selected.  BV has assigned Scott Gandler to serve as the City Engineer.  Mr. 
Gandler has 30 years’ experience working with the City of Roseville, quite extensively with 
transportation projects. 
Mr. Gandler stated he is very excited about the opportunity to work in Colfax. 
There was no public comment. 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council 
approved Resolution 73-2018. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

9 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass announced the Colfax Historic Society meeting on November 17, 2018 
at 7PM will feature a former City of Colfax Sheriff. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza announced the upcoming performance at the High School on November 
15, 2018 at 6:00PM. 
She requested the City supply masks for the public at City Hall. 
Councilmember Harvey emphasized the need for the City to mitigate the fire danger in the area.  
He suggested the new Council should make updating the Municipal Code to include a vigorous 
vegetation management program a priority.  At the same time, the Council needs to ensure that 
people have time to comply with any new regulations. 
 

10 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 9:46PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 12th day of December, 2018. 
 

Item 3A
8 of 8



FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 8, 2018 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: October 2018 

X N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements. 
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in 
October 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 

• Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.
o Fund 250 – To be funded by Streets & Roads monies through Placer County Transportation

Agency and budgeted fund transfers (100/253).  Funding expected in latter part of fiscal
year.

o Capital Projects – All expenditures are anticipated to be reimbursed by grant funds,
developer fees, and Special Revenue funds as budgeted.

• Expenses for October included the following (in addition to normal monthly operations);
o Quarterly (FY2019 – Q1) payment for Sheriff services ($169,000),
o Quarterly payment for Animal Control  ($7,000)
o Annual loan payment to State Water Resources Control Board ($438,000)
o Pond 1 Cross Levee construction costs ($122,000)

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs

a. Cash Analysis – Balance
b. Expenses by Month
c. Revenues by Month

2. Cash Activity Reports
a. Cash Summary
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts)

Item 3B
1 of 10



Item 3B
2 of 10



Item 3B
3 of 10



Item 3B
4 of 10



Item 3B
5 of 10



Item 3B
6 of 10



Item 3B
7 of 10



Item 3B
8 of 10



Item 3B
9 of 10



Item 3B
10 of 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED By: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

DATE November 19, 2018 

SUBJECT: RGS Contract Extension for Planning Services 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED 
AMOUNT: $368,000 total 
contract –7/2018 to 6/2020 

FROM FUNDS: 100-450 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 74-2018 authorizing the City Manager to extend the 
contract with RGS for planning services on an as needed basis not to exceed $190,000 and subject to 
renewal June 30, 2020. 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The current contract with Regional Government Services (RGS) provides contract services for an onsite Planning 
Director on an as needed basis.  RGS was created by local governments to support local governments. Regional 
Government Services is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) providing administrative, staffing and consulting services 
to other public agencies.  RGS does not operate on a for-profit basis and is supported solely by fees for services. 
Thus, RGS is able to provide professional services to other public agencies at affordable costs. 

They have successfully provided Colfax with the services of Amy Feagans, who has 20+ years of experience as a 
planner in the Sierra foothills region.  Ms. Feagans is experienced, knowledgeable and dedicated to public 
service. She guides developers and potential Colfax business owners through the various planning processes.  
She has developed a new planning application and begun the process of updating the Colfax zoning maps. The 
current contract with RGS requires approval from City Council to extend services on an ongoing, as needed basis 
beyond July 2018.  The contract services were approved in conjunction with Council budget discussions.  
Funding is through the General Fund with revenue available with the City’s increasing planning activity. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The contract amendment is charged to the planning department fund 100-425 for services provided under 
the contract terms. The contract extension is for 2-years with a cost not to exceed $190,000. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 74-2018 
2. RGS Contract Extension (2nd  Amendment to the Contract) 
3. RGS Contract 

Item 3C
1 of 18



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 74-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT WITH 
RGS FOR PLANNING SERVICES ON AN AS NEEDED BASIS NOT TO EXCEED 

$190,000 AND SUBJECT TO RENEWAL JUNE 30, 2020  
 

  

Whereas, the City of Colfax needs the services of a Planner on an on-call basis; and 
 

 Whereas, RGS is a qualified Joint Powers Authority for supplying Planning personnel; 
and 
 

 Whereas, RGS has successfully provided the services of Amy Feagans who has over 
twenty years of experience as a planner; and, 
 

 Whereas, the RGS initial contract has been fulfilled, and the City is need of extending 
the contract through June 30, 2020,  
 

 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved and Declared by the City Council of the City of 
Colfax, that the City Manager is authorized to extend the contract with RGS for planning 
services on an as needed basis, not-to-exceed $190, 000.  
  

 The Foregoing Resolution was Duly and Regularly Adopted at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of December 2018 by the 
following vote of the Council: 
 

 AYES:   
 NOES:      
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 
        ____________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

Item 3C
2 of 18



AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This document constitutes Amendment No. 2 entered into as of the 2 7 t h  day of 
July, 2018 to the Management and Administrative Services Agreement entered into as of the 
1 5 t h  day of June 24, 2015 by and between the CITY OF COLFAX, (“Agency”), and 
Regional Government Services Authority, hereinafter called "RGS". 

RECITALS 

This Amendment is entered into with reference to the following facts and 
circumstances: 

A. Agency desires to amend the provisions of the Agreement to extend the 
services of the Coordinating Advisor.

B. Agency desires that services be extended effective as of July 1, 2018 and 
anticipates these to remain active through June 30, 2020, unless extended by 
mutual consent of both parties.

C. Agency desires to increase the not-to-exceed (NTE) amount by $190,000 for a 
total of $360,000.

D. Compensation for services will be based on the terms and conditions of the 
Management and Administrative Services Agreement dated 6/24/15, which 
includes annual adjustments as specified.

E. RGS is desirous of these changes as well.

F. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Additional Services 
Amendment to be executed on the date first above written by their respective officers 
duly authorized in that behalf.  

Dated: Dated:  

Agency RGS

Wes Heathcock, Colfax City Manager Richard H. Averett, Executive Director 

RGS provides quality, innovative, cost-effective services exclusively to public agencies. 
Main 650.587.7300   Fax 650.587.7311   P.O. Box 1350   Carmel Valley, CA 93924 

www.rgs.ca.gov 

Item 3C
3 of 18



Item 3C
4 of 18



Item 3C
5 of 18



Item 3C
6 of 18



Item 3C
7 of 18



Item 3C
8 of 18



Item 3C
9 of 18



Item 3C
10 of 18



Item 3C
11 of 18



Item 3C
12 of 18



Item 3C
13 of 18



Item 3C
14 of 18



Item 3C
15 of 18



Item 3C
16 of 18



Item 3C
17 of 18



Item 3C
18 of 18



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

DATE: December 4, 2018 
SUBJECT: National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) Lease Agreement  

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 75-2018 Authorizing City Manager to enter into an 
Agreement Renewal with NOAA for lease of City property at the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) has leased 0.11 acres of Ground Space at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant since May 2006 for the operation of an all-weather monitoring site which allows 
for meteorological monitoring of winter storms, rain events and winds in the Sierra Nevada Mountains. The City 
received $200 per month ($2,400.00 year) from the Federal Government with the last agreement. 
 
The NOAA lease with the City expired on September 30, 2018. The proposed renewal agreement has an 
increased monthly rate to $250 per month ($3,000.00 year). The market value for the .11 acres is calculated at 
$.03 times the square footage of the property plus incidental costs (utilities, etc.).  The lease revenue is credited 
to the 560 Enterprise Fund since the equipment is located on the Wastewater Treatment Plant property. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is recommending City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement with NOAA in 
the amount of $250 per month ($3,000/year) paid to the City of Colfax.  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 75-2018 
2. Lease Agreement 

 

Item 3D
1 of 11



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 75-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC 

ADMINISTRATION FOR LEASE OF CITY PROPERTY AT THE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 

WHEREAS, the City was approached by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration (NOAA) who expressed a desire to renew the real property lease agreement 
at the Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 

 
WHEREAS, NOAA will lease .11 acres of ground space for the operation of a 

meteorological monitoring system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the agreement is for ten (10) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will collect a rental fee of $250.00 per month for the duration of 

the agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff is recommending approval of the lease agreement with NOAA.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax 

authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration for the lease of .11 acres of ground space at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of December, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 3D
2 of 11



 
Page 1 of 3 

 
U.S. GOVERNMENT LEASE FOR REAL PROPERTY 

 
DATE OF LEASE:  

 
LEASE NO:  19WSR0200C 

 
THIS LEASE under the authority of 40 U.S.C. §585, as delegated under 41 CFR §102-73.155, is made and entered into this 
date by and between 
 
City of Colfax 
 
whose address is: 
 
P.O. Box 702 
33 S. Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 
 
hereinafter called the Lessor, and the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter called the Government: 
 
WITNESSETH:  The parties hereto for considerations hereinafter mentioned, covenant and agree as follows; 
 
1. Lease of Premises.   Lessor operates a wastewater treatment plant on Property located as described in Exhibit “A”, 

(Latitude 39.079478, Longitude -120.93785 (“Property”) more commonly known to Lessor as City of Colfax Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, 23550 Grand View Ave, Colfax, CA 95713.  Lessor leases to the Government and the Government 
leases from the Lessor a certain portion of the Property consisting of approximately 0.11 acre (5,000 square feet) of 
improved ground space for a meteorological monitoring “Snow Level Radar” site as depicted in Exhibit “B” (Premises) 
and is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Throughout the Term, the Government shall have the 
right to ingress and egress 24 hours per day and 7 days per week.  

 
2. Term.  TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said Premises for a ten (10) year term that begins on September 1, 2018 and ends 

on August 31, 2028, subject to the termination and other rights as may be hereinafter set forth. 
 
3.  Rent.  The Government shall pay the Lessor an annual rent of $3,000.00 payable at the rate of $250.00 per month in 

arrears.  If the term of this Lease includes any partial month, rent for the partial month shall be prorated.  Rent shall be 
made via Electronic Funds Transfer and based on the information provided in the System for Award Management 
(SAM) database (available at https://www.sam.gov).  For the portion of the Term beginning on September 1, 2018 and 
ending on December 31, 2018, the Government agrees to pay the Lessor a one-time catch-up payment in a Lump Sum 
amount of $200.00 ($50.00 per month x “4” months) which compensates the Lessor for that portion of the term. 

  
4. Termination.  The Government may terminate this lease at any time by giving at least (60) calendar days’ notice in writing 

to the Lessor, and no rent shall accrue after the effective date of termination.  Said notice shall be computed commencing 
with the day after the date of mailing. 

 
5. Permitted Use.  (a) The Government may use the Premises for the collection and transmission of meteorological data 

along with the associated installation, construction, maintenance, operation and subsequent repair(s), replacement and 
upgrade of its meteorological monitoring instrumentation and related equipment, cables, accessories and/or 
improvements (collectively, the “Equipment”).  Further, the Government may install, operate, maintain and replace 
transmission cables among the Equipment and antenna(s), and electric lines from the main feed to the Equipment.  The 
Government’s equipment is provided on Exhibit “C”.  Lessor’s execution of this Agreement will signify Lessor’s 
acknowledgement of the Government’s Equipment and use of the Premises.  (b) The Government may take appropriate 
means to secure the Premises and the Government’s Equipment.  The Government has the right to modify, supplement, 
replace, or upgrade its Equipment on the Premises at any time during the term of this agreement. (c) At any time during 
the term of this agreement, the Government shall have the right to perform maintenance, repairs, replacement, and 
upgrades to its Equipment on the Premises without the consent of the Lessor. 

 
6. Interference. (a) The Government represents and warrants that its use of the Premises will not interfere with existing 

user(s) on the Property as long as the existing user(s) operate and continue to operate in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulations.  (b) After the date of this agreement, the Lessor will not grant a lease, license or any other right 
or encumbrance to any third party for the use of the Property, if such use may in any way adversely affect or interfere 
with the Equipment, the operations, or the rights of the Government under this agreement.  (c) Lessor will not use, nor 

 

Item 3D
3 of 11



 
Page 2 of 3 

will Lessor permit its employees, lessees, licensees, invitees or agents to use, any portion of the Property in any way 
which interferes with the Equipment, the operations or the rights of the Government under this Agreement.  In the event 
of such interference, Lessor will cause such interference to cease within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of notice 
of interference from the Government.  In the event any such interference does not cease within the aforementioned 
cure period then the Government will have the right to terminate this lease agreement.  The Lessor will not be 
responsible for interference which is beyond the reasonable control of the Lessor, as determined by the Government. 

 
7. Access. For the duration of this Lease, and at no additional cost to the Government, the Lessor is responsible for 

ensuring the Government, its employees, contractors, subcontractors and licensees will have access to the Premises 
at all times. The Lessor shall be responsible for securing any easement, right of entry, or other access agreement 
necessary to ensure the Government's access to the Premises from a nearby public roadway. When applicable, the 
Lessor will provide the Government with at least two keys or the combination or code for any security fencing.  

 
8. Equipment. Lessor covenants and agrees that no part of the Equipment placed or affixed to the Property by the 

Government will become, or be considered part of, the Premises; the Government’s Equipment will remain the 
Property of the Government. 

 
9.    Operations, Maintenance & Utilities. (a) The Government will keep and maintain the Government's Equipment in good 

condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted; (b) the Lessor will maintain, repair, and keep in good and tenantable condition, 
the Premises and the access onto the Property; (c) the Lessor shall provide the Government electricity to operate the 
Government’s equipment as part of the rental consideration. 

 
10. Taxes and Assessments. The Government shall not be responsible for the payment of any taxes, assessments, or 

fees levied on the Premises or on the Government’s Equipment. 
 
11. Hazardous Materials.  The leased premises shall be free of hazardous materials according to applicable federal, 

state, and local environmental laws and regulations. 
 
12. Authority to Lease.  Lessor covenants that Lessor’s interest in the Property is sufficient to enter into this Lease, and 

that the Government may reasonably request evidence of said interest. 
 
13.  Successors Bound.  This lease shall bind, and inure to the benefit of, the parties and their respective heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors and assigns. 
 
14.  Claims.  For the purposes of this Lease, the Government is considered to be self-insured.  The Government agrees 

to promptly consider and adjudicate any claims which may arise out of use of the Lessor’s Property/Premises by the 
Government or duly authorized representatives or contractors of the Government and to pay for any damage or injury 
as may be required by applicable law.  Such adjudication may be pursued under the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 
U.S.C. §2671 et seq., the Federal Employees’ Compensation Act, 5 U.S.C. §8101 et seq., or such other legal 
authority as may be pertinent. 

 
15.  Correspondence. 
 
       Correspondence to Lessor is to be sent to: 
 
        City of Colfax 
        P.O. Box 702 
        Colfax, CA  95713 
        Attn:  City Manager 
 
        Correspondence to Government is to be sent to: 
 
        United States Department of Commerce 
        NOAA Real Property Management Division 
        Western Regional Center, Building 1 
        7600 Sand Point Way NE 
        Seattle, WA  98115 
        Attn:  Contracting Officer 
 
16.   Exhibits and Attachments.  The following are attached and made a part hereof: 
  

A. Exhibit “A”, Property Description (1 Page) 
B. Exhibit “B”, Depiction of the Premises (1 Page) 
C. Exhibit “C”, Government’s Equipment (1 Page) 
D. General Clauses, DOC NOAA OCT 2018 (1 Page) 
E. Representations and Certifications, GSA Form 3518-SAM (REV 01/16) (2 pages) 

Item 3D
4 of 11



Page 3 of 3 

17. Lessor’s DUNS Number.  4949152

18. The following changes were made in this lease prior to its execution:  None.

19. This Lease number 19WSR0200C replaces and succeeds License Agreement No. 10WSR0213C.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto subscribed their names as of the date first above written. 

LESSOR:  City of Colfax, California 

BY  
       Signature         Name (Print), Title, & Date  

IN THE PRESENCE OF:  

BY  
       Signature         Name (Print), Title, & Date 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Signature_                  _______________________       ________________  
Department of Commerce       Name of Contracting Officer (Print) & Date 
Real Property Contracting Officer   

City Manager

Lori L. Torres

Item 3D
5 of 11



EXHIBIT "A" LEASE NO. 19WSR0200C 
CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA - WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

Legend 

39.079478, -120.93785

2000 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

Location of Government's Equipment
23550 Grand View Ave, Colfax, CA 95713

Item 3D
6 of 11



EXHIBIT “B” PREMISES 

 LEASE NO. 19WSR0200C, COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

 

23550 Grand View Ave, Colfax, CA 95713 

Latitude 39.079478, Longitude -120.93785 

  

Item 3D
7 of 11



EXHIBIT "C" GOVERNMENT'S EQUIPMENT - LEASE NO. 19WSR0200C - COLFAX, CA

Snow Level Radar Site
30' Meteorological Tower
FM-CW Radar mounted on a 7' X 12' Flatbed 
Trailer

Item 3D
8 of 11

csd
Line



GENERAL CLAUSES 
(Acquisition of Leasehold Interests in Real Property for Leases Up to $150,000 Net Annual Rent) 

Initials: _ _______  &   ____________   
Lessor        Government (Lessee)   General Clauses   DOC NOAA OCT 2018 

  Page 1 of 1 

1. The Government reserves the right, at any time after the lease is signed and during the term of the lease, to inspect
the leased premises and all other areas of the building to which access is necessary to ensure a safe and healthy work
environment for the Government tenants and the Lessor’s performance under this lease.

2. GSAR 552.270-7  FIRE AND CASUALTY DAMAGE (JUN 2011)
If the entire premises are destroyed by fire or other casualty, this lease will immediately terminate. In case of partial
destruction or damage, so as to render the premises untenantable, as determined by the Government, the Government
may terminate the lease by giving written notice to the Lessor within fifteen (15) calendar days after such
determination. If so terminated, no rent will accrue to the Lessor after such partial destruction or damage; and if not
so terminated, the rent will be reduced proportionately by supplemental agreement hereto effective from the date of
such partial destruction or damage.  Nothing in this lease shall be construed as relieving Lessor from liability for
damage to or destruction of property of the United States of America caused by the willful or negligent act or
omission of Lessor.

3. The Lessor shall maintain the demised premises, including the building, building systems, and all equipment,
fixtures, and appurtenances furnished by the Lessor under this lease, in good repair and tenantable condition.  Upon
request of the Contracting Officer, the Lessor shall provide written documentation that building systems have been
maintained, tested, and are operational.

4. In the event the Lessor fails to perform any service, to provide any items, or meet any requirement of this lease, the
Government may perform the service, provide the item, or meet the requirement, either directly or through a contract.
The Government may deduct any costs incurred for the service or item, including administrative costs, from rental
payments.

5. FAR 52.252-2  CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (VARIATION)
This contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in
full text.  Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make the full text available, or the full text may be accessed
electronically at:  https://www.acquisition.gov

6. The following FAR (48 C.F.R. part 52) and GSAR (48 C.F.R. part 552) clauses are incorporated by reference:
FAR 52.204-7 SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (OCT 2018)  
FAR 52.204-10 REPORTING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACT 

AWARDS (OCT 2018) (Applicable to leases over $25,000; not applicable to individuals) 
FAR 52.204-13 SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT MAINTENANCE (OCT 2018) 
FAR 52.209-6 PROTECTING THE GOVERNMENT’S INTEREST WHEN SUBCONTRACTING WITH 

CONTRACTORS DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, OR PROPOSED FOR DEBARMENT (OCT 
2015) (Applicable to leases over $35,000) 

FAR 52.219-28 POST-AWARD SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAM REREPRESENTATION (JUL 2013) 
(Applicable to leases over $3,500 and 5 years) 

FAR 52.222-21 PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES (APR 2015) (Applicable to leases over 
$10,000) 

FAR 52.222-26 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (SEP 2016) (Applicable to leases over $10,000) 
FAR 52.222-35 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY FOR VETERANS (OCT 2015) (Applicable to leases over $10,000) 
FAR 52.222-36 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY FOR WORKERS WITH DISABILITIES (JUL 2014) (Applicable 

to leases over $10,000) 
FAR 52.222-37 EMPLOYMENT REPORTS ON VETERANS (FEB 2016) (Applicable to leases over 

$10,000; not applicable to a State or local government agency) 
FAR 52.232-23 ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS (MAY 2014) (Applicable to leases over $3,500) 
FAR 52.232-33 PAYMENT BY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER—SYSTEM FOR AWARD 

MANAGEMENT (OCT 2018) 
FAR 52.233-1 DISPUTES (MAY 2014) 
GSAR 552.270-8 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW (SEP 1999) 
GSAR 552.270-23 SUBORDINATION, NONDISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT (SEP 1999) 
GSAR 552.270-24 STATEMENT OF LEASE (SEP 1999) 
GSAR 552.270-28 MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATION (SEP 1999) 
GSAR 552.270-30 PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR ILLEGAL OR IMPROPER ACTIVITY (JUN 2011) 
GSAR 552.270-31 PROMPT PAYMENT (JUN 2011) 
GSAR 552.270-32 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES (JUN 2011) 

Lease No. 19WSR0200C 
Colfax, CA

Item 3D
9 of 11



GSA FORM 3518-SAM PAGE 1 (REV 01/16) 

Complete appropriate boxes, sign the form, and attach to offer. 
The Offeror makes the following additional Representations.  NOTE:  The "Offeror," as used on this form, 
is the owner of the property offered, not an individual or agent representing the owner. 

1. ANNUAL REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS FOR LEASEHOLD ACQUISITIONS
(APR 2015)

(a) (1) The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code for this acquisition is
531120, unless the real property is self-storage (#531130), land (#531190), or residential
(#531110).

(2) The small business size standard is 38.5 Million in annual average gross revenue of the
concern for the last 3 fiscal years.

(3) The small business size standard for a concern which submits an offer in its own name,
other than on a construction or service contract, but which proposes to furnish a product
which it did not itself manufacture, is 500 employees.

(b) The System for Award Management (SAM) is a centrally located, searchable database which
assists in the development, maintenance, and provision of sources for future procurements. The
Offeror, by signing this addendum, hereby certifies he is registered in SAM.

[  ] Registration Active and Copy Attached 

2. 552.203-72 REPRESENTATION BY CORPORATIONS REGARDING AN UNPAID
DELINQUENT FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY OR A FELONY CONVICTION UNDER ANY FEDERAL LAW
(DEVIATION) (OCT 2013)

(a) In accordance with Sections 630 and 631 of Division of the Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2012 (Pub. L. 112-74), and Section 101 of the Continuing Appropriations Act, 2014 (Pub. L.
113-16) none of the funds made available by the Continuing Appropriations Act 2014 may be
used to enter into a contract action with any corporation that---

(1) Has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being
paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for
collecting the tax liability, where the awarding agency is aware of the unpaid tax
liability, unless the agency has considered suspension or debarment of the
corporation and made a determination that this further action is not necessary to
protect the interests of the Government, or

(2) Was convicted, or had an officer or agent of such corporation acting on behalf of the
corporation convicted of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the
preceding 24 months, where the awarding agency is aware of the conviction, unless
the agency has considered suspension or debarment of the corporation or such officer
or agent and made a determination that this action is not necessary to protect the
interests of the Government.

(b) The Contractor represents that—

(1) It is [ ] is not [ ] a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been
assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or

ADDENDUM to the System for Award Management (SAM) 
REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS (Acquisitions 
of Leasehold Interests in Real Property) 

Request for Lease 
Proposals Number 

Dated 

   19WSR0200C

Item 3D
10 of 11



GSA FORM 3518-SAM PAGE 2 (REV 01/16) 

have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement 
with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 

(2) It is [ ] is not [ ] a corporation that was convicted, or had an officer or agent of the
corporation acting on behalf of the corporation, convicted of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

3. OFFEROR’S DUNS NUMBER

(a) Enter number:  ____________________

(b) An offeror may obtain a DUNS number (i) via the Internet at
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform or if the offeror does not have internet access, it may call Dun and 
Bradstreet at 1-866-705-5711 if located within the United States; or (ii) If located outside the United 
States, by contacting the local Dun and Bradstreet office. The offeror should indicate that it is an offeror 
for a U.S. Government contract when contacting the local Dun and Bradstreet office. 

OFFEROR OR 
LEGALLY AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE 

NAME, ADDRESS (INCLUDING ZIP CODE) 

Signature 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

__________ 

Date 

City of Colfax
P.O. Box 702
33 S. Main Street
Colfax, CA 95713

(530) 346‐2313

4949152

Item 3D
11 of 11

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform


FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: December 5, 2018 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report: November 2018 

X N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements. 
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in 
November 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 

• Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.
o Fund 250 – To be funded by Streets & Roads monies through Placer County Transportation

Agency (request submitted during month of November) and budgeted fund transfers
(100/253).  Full funding expected in latter part of fiscal year.

o Capital Projects – All expenditures are anticipated to be reimbursed by grant funds,
developer fees, and Special Revenue funds as budgeted.

• Expenses for November included the following (in addition to normal monthly operations and
ongoing project costs):

o Progress payment on FY2017-2018 Audit ($13,500)

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs

a. Cash Analysis – Balance
b. Expenses by Month
c. Revenues by Month

2. Cash Activity Reports
a. Cash Summary
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund
c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts)

Item 3E
1 of 11



Item 3E
2 of 11



Item 3E
3 of 11



Item 3E
4 of 11



Item 3E
5 of 11



Item 3E
6 of 11



Item 3E
7 of 11



Item 3E
8 of 11



Item 3E
9 of 11



Item 3E
10 of 11



Item 3E
11 of 11



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, City Planner 

DATE:  November 29, 2018 

SUBJECT: Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned Development Permit, 
Development Agreement and Design Review for an ARCO Service Station for the Maidu 
Village Development Project 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Discuss, and consider: 
1. Adopting Resolution 76-2018 approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the Vesting Tentative 

Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, and Planned Development,  

2. Waiving the second reading, read by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 538  - an ordinance of the  City 
of Colfax adopting findings  of fact approving a Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn LLC 
regarding development of the Maidu Village property generally located on South Auburn Street near the 
intersection of the Interstate  Highway 80 on-ramp, and  

3. Adopting Resolution 77-2018 approving the Design Review for the ARCO Service Station at the Maidu 
Village Development Project. 

 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Project Title:  Maidu Village Development Project, ARCO Service Station  
Applicant/Owner: Jaskaran “Jay” Gill  
Location  South Auburn Street between Mountain Village and McDonald’s 
Land Use (existing) Vacant 
Surrounding Uses: 

North:  Mountain Village Center 
South:  McDonald’s Restaurant 
East:   Starbucks Coffee; I-80 westbound on-ramp 
West:  UP Railroad property 

Assessor Parcel No: 100-240-016 
Zoning District:  CH – Highway Commercial  
General Plan:  Commercial 
 

BACKGROUND 
  
At the November 14, 2018 City Council meeting, the City Council held the public hearing, accepted public testimony, 
discussed the project, and then continued the item to the December 12, 2018 meeting for final approval of the 
project entitlements and for the 2nd Reading of the Ordinance approving the Development Agreement between the 
City of Colfax and the Colfax Auburn, LLC. 
 
 

Item 6A
1 of 117



2 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends City Council 1) Adopt the attached Resolution 76-2018 to adopt the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and approve the Master Site Plan, Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, and Planned Development for the 
Maidu Village Project; 2) Adopt the attached Resolution 77-2018 to approve the ARCO Service Station Design Review; 
and 3) Adopt the attached Ordinance No. 538 approving the Development Agreement between the City of Colfax and 
Colfax Auburn, LLC. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 76-2018 Maidu Village  
2. Conditions of Approval 
3. Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
4. Ordinance No. 538 - Approving Development Agreement 
5. Development Agreement – To be delivered under separate cover  
6. Project Exhibits 

a. Master Site Plan 
b. Vesting Tentative Parcel Map 
c. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan 
d. Typical Sections and Design Details 
e. Landscape Plan 
f.  ARCO Design Submittal 

7. Resolution No. 77-2018 – ARCO Service Station 
 

 
 
 

Item 6A
2 of 117



Resolution 76-2018 Maidu Village VTPM/Design Review Page 1 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № 76-2018 

APPROVING THE VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, MASTER SITE 
PLAN REVIEW AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FOR THE 

MAIDU VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax received an application for a vesting tentative parcel 
master site plan, planned development permit  and design review to subdivide and develop 
an 8.3 acre parcel; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing has been given at the time and in the manner 
required by State Law and City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the staff report, any and 

all written comments received during the public review process and any and all oral and 

written comments submitted at the public hearing; and  

WHEREAS, the design of the vesting tentative parcel map is consistent with the 
zoning regulations of the site, and 

WHEREAS, the site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of 
development; and 

WHEREAS, the project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for 
development, preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, such as 
open space, topography, trees, wetlands and water courses, and provides adequate 
drainage for the project; and 

WHEREAS, the project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, 
loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and lighting which results in a safe, efficient, 
and harmonious development and which is consistent with the applicable goals, policies 
and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for that 
zone district; and 

WHEREAS, the design of the public services, as approved, including, but not 
limited to trash enclosures and service equipment are located so as not to detract from 
the appearance of the site, and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction materials, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site and the 
building designs; and 

Item 6A
3 of 117



Resolution 76-2018 Maidu Village VTPM/Design Review Page 2 

WHEREAS, the use and design of the proposed development conforms with the 
requirements of the relevant planned development zone district and the requirements of 
the zoning ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or 
development is to be compatible with and will not adversely affect or be materially 
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, 
and will not be detrimental or injurious to public or private property or improvements; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City prepared an Initial Study consistent with California 

Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines and determined that a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration ("MND") was required in order to analyze the potential for significant impacts 

of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the MND and other environmental documents for the Project that 

constitute the record of proceedings for the Project are in the custodial location and 

available for review during normal business hours in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 

33 S. Main Street,  Colfax, CA 95713. 

WHEREAS, and the CEQA Mitigations have been included in conjunction with the 

conditions of approval regarding any Project approval; and 

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared for the project as 

outlined in Exhibit “A” attached to this resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council finds that the Project 

qualifies for a Mitigated Negative Declaration and that the City Council adopt the Project 

Mitigated Negative Declaration, and approve the Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site 

Plan Review, and Planned Development Permit the Maidu Village Development Project. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED on this 
14th day of November, 2018, by the following roll-call vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_______________________ 

Will Stockwin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 6A
4 of 117



1 
 

Attachment 2 
Maidu Village Development Project 

SP/VTPM2018-001 
Conditions of Approval 

Planning Conditions 

1. The tentative parcel map, master site plan review, planned development and design 
review approvals, shall expire on December 12, 2028, or as specified in the adopted 
Development Agreement for The Maidu Village Development project Plans submitted for 
building permits or construction improvements shall be in substantial compliance with 
the Master Site Plan and other entitlements approved by this action and dated approved 
on December 12, 2018, except as modified by these conditions of approval.  Any 
modifications to the approved Tentative Map, development plan, project description, 
design standards, or landscape plans, except as modified by these conditions of 
approval, may be subject to review and approval from the City Council as provided in the 
Development Agreement. 

2. The existing Propane Tank easement at the south property line of Lot 5 shall be 
reevaluated for conflicts with the path of drainage for the riparian wetland area and the 
existing trail easement.  Relocation of the propane tank easement may be required. 

3. An easement indicating the existing trail location across Lot 5 shall be indicated on the 
Final Map.  Such easement shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide to allow for the future 
construction of the Bunch Creek Trail. 

4. Final Landscape Plans shall be submitted for review and approval as part of the 
submittal package for each phase of development. 
 

5. Retaining walls and decorative walls shall be constructed of the materials shown on the 
Typical Sections and Design Details (Attachment 6d), dated August 2018. Rockery walls 
shall be constructed at locations shown on the plan.  Other walls shall be constructed of 
decorative split faced cement masonry units (CMU) or equivalent decorative materials as 
approved by the City.  Any walls included on the final improvement plans but not shown 
on the preliminary site plan shall be constructed of materials as directed by the City. 

6. All non-rockery walls shall be spilt-faced CMU or other high-quality material subject to 
review and approval by Planning and Engineering staff. 
 

7. The Applicant shall show additional information on the proposed propane service in the 
improvement plans, including truck access, tank layout (locations, sizes, concrete pad 
etc.) and underground service piping to buildings. 
 

8. The Development Agreement that applies to this project is attached as an exhibit to 
these permit terms and conditions.  The Development Agreement and these permit 
terms and conditions shall be construed together, however, in the event of a conflict 
between the two, the Development Agreement shall prevail. 

 

 

Item 6A
5 of 117



2 
 

Engineering Conditions: 

9. All grading and improvements shall be designed in conformance with the City of Colfax 
Design and Improvement Standards and all subsequent revisions, the City of Colfax 
Hillside Development Guidelines (Resolution No. 29-93), the Placer County Land 
Development Manual, latest edition, the Placer County Stormwater Management 
Manual, latest edition, the Placer County Water Agency Standard Specifications, latest 
edition, and the conditions of approval for this project.  Where conflicts exist, the more 
stringent requirements shall prevail, unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer.  
No private utilities or structures are allowed within public right-of-way or existing public 
utility easements.  All construction within public rights-of-way shall meet City Standards 
and be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer.  An encroachment permit is 
required for all construction within public rights-of-way. 

10. The applicant shall obtain any off-site easements that may be required, or if 
unsuccessful, shall reimburse City for costs of condemnation acquisition. 

11. The developer shall prepare and submit improvement plans for the construction of all 
public improvements including water, sanitary sewer, storm drain facilities, roadway 
improvements, curbs, gutters, detached sidewalks, parkway strips, signing, striping and 
streetlights.  All design and construction shall conform to the latest edition of the 
standards referenced herein. 

12. Improvement plans must be approved and signed by the City Engineer prior to the 
issuing of an Encroachment Permit, Grading Permit or Building Permit. 

13. Plan check and inspection fees shall be paid prior to the signature of the improvement 
plans. 

14. All broken or sunken curb, gutter and sidewalk along the project frontage shall be 
repaired or replaced as part of the improvements for this project.  As well, all 
nonconforming pedestrian ramps and driveway approaches shall be brought up to 
current accessibility standards. 

15. Deviations from City Standards and applicable Code requirements shall be approved by 
the City Engineer.  The applicant’s engineer shall request all design exceptions in 
writing. 

16. Project benchmark shall be based on a City approved USGS benchmark. 

17. Improvement plans shall be approved by California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection (“CAL FIRE”) Fire Chief assigned to the City of Colfax. 

18. In the event that the City is forced to condemn or acquire off-site property interest in 
connection with required off-site improvements, the developer shall fund the cost of 
condemnation or acquisition, including but not to be limited to the amounts necessary to 
purchase the easement or fee simple interest, document preparation, and severance or 
other damages payable to the owners of the land upon which the improvements are to 
be located, the actual cost and acquisition and all fees, including attorney’s fee and/or 
other expenses necessary to prosecute the condemnation action, including expert 
witness and appraisal fees. 

Item 6A
6 of 117



3 
 

19. In the event that the City elects to proceed with acquisition or condemnation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 66462.5, the developer shall, within 60 days of written notice 
by the City, deposit with the City, as an advance, the full estimated cost of such 
acquisition or condemnation.  The developer shall prepare any easements or deeds 
necessary for off-site improvements. 

 
20. Parcel maps, improvement plans and other items submitted to the City shall be delivered 

in hardcopy formats as well as electronically including drawings in AutoCAD and in PDF 
formats. 

21. Required Improvement Plan Notes:  

a. "Any excess materials shall be considered the property of the contractor 
and shall be disposed of away from the job site in accordance with 
applicable local, state and federal regulations." 

b. "During construction, the Contractor shall be responsible for controlling 
noise, odors, dust and debris to minimize impacts on surrounding 
properties and roadways.  Contractor shall be responsible that all 
construction equipment is equipped with manufacturers approved 
muffler’s baffles.  Failure to do so may result in the issuance of an order 
to stop work." 

c. "In the event that archeological site indicators (chipped chert, obsidian 
tools, waste flakes, grinding implements, darkened soil containing bone 
fragments and shellfish remains, or ceramics, glass or metal fragments) 
are uncovered, the City shall be contacted for an evaluation of the site.  
All ground disturbing work shall cease in the vicinity of any discovery until 
an archeologist completes an evaluation of significance." 

d. “Construction work shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on 
Saturdays.  No work is permitted on Sundays.” 

e. "If hazardous materials are encountered during construction, the 
contractor will halt construction immediately, notify the City, and 
implement remediation (as directed by the City or its agent) in accordance 
with any requirements of the Central Regional Water Quality Control 
Board." 

f. "The contractor(s) shall be required to maintain traffic flow on affected 
roadways during non-working hours, and to minimize traffic restriction 
during construction.  The contractor shall be required to follow traffic 
safety measures in accordance with the California Department of 
Transportation (“Caltrans”) California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (“CA-MUTCD”).  The City’s emergency service providers shall be 
notified of proposed construction scheduled by the contractor(s).  The 
project specifications will require that the contractor(s) notify emergency 
service providers in writing at least 24 hours in advance of its proposed 
schedule of work." 

Item 6A
7 of 117



4 
 

Water Quality: 

22. This project will comply with current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) requirements, as covered in the State of California General Permit for Storm 
Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activity and subsequent modifications, 
which includes requirements for sampling and analysis during construction.  

23. A Notice of Intent will be filed with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
prior to the onset of construction.  A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), 
Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan shall be prepared and submitted to the City 
Engineer for approval.  The developer will solely be responsible for implementation of 
the SWPPP, Monitoring Program, and Inspection Plan during construction. 

Grading: 

24. A final design geotechnical report shall be prepared with recommendations pertinent to 
the facilities being proposed, including site and building pad preparation, engineered fill, 
slope construction, foundations, subgrade preparation for pavements and slabs-on-
grade, asphalt concrete pavements, and retaining walls. 

25. Onsite grading shall be limited to the locations shown on the approved plans or on 
subsequent City approvals.  No clearing, grubbing, demolition or grading activities will be 
allowed prior to final approval of the site improvement plans by the City Engineer and 
issuance of a Grading Permit. 

26. A maximum of 6,000 square ft and 200 ft of depth, measured normal to the sidewalk, is 
allowed to sheet flow to the street.  If the surface area and depth exceeds these criteria, 
an on-site drainage collection system is required. 

27. No grading will be performed during the rainy season, between October 15th and April 
15th.  If improvements will not be completed by October 15, or are scheduled to start 
prior to April 15, a winterization plan must also be prepared in accordance with City 
requirements.  One hundred percent (100%) bonding or other security shall be provided 
to assure implementation of the winterization plan. 

28. A California registered Structural or Civil Engineer shall design all retaining walls 
exceeding 36” in height, including the proposed rockery wall. Calculations shall be 
submitted with the improvement plans for approval. 

29. The Geotechnical Engineer shall provide certification to the City that all grading work has 
been placed and compacted in compliance with the improvement plans.  Certification of 
each building pad will be submitted to the building official prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 

Storm Drainage: 

30. A detailed hydrology study will be prepared in accordance with the current edition of the 
Placer County Stormwater Management Manual.  The proposed project shall not 
increase the rate of storm water runoff leaving the site beyond pre-development rates.   

Item 6A
8 of 117



5 
 

31. Plans and certifications shall demonstrate compliance of all improvements, including 
building pads and finished floor elevations, with the City’s Flood Plain Ordinance, to the 
satisfaction of the Building Official and City Engineer.  Pad elevations shall be 
constructed at a minimum of 1 foot above the 100-year Floodplain as determined by the 
City and certified by the project engineer. 

32. All runoff that leaves the site must meet current Regional Water Quality Control Board 
clean water standards.  These may be accomplished with permanent Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), such as bio-retention, infiltration systems, bio-swales, or other 
methods as approved by the City Engineer.  Bio-retention and other natural elements 
incorporated into the landscape design for the project will be submitted with the 
improvement plans for approval, with supporting calculations as required.  The property 
owner will be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the systems. 

33. Minimum size for storm drain piping will be 12” unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer. 

34. Improvement plans shall include full design and sizing of all stormwater improvements 
shown on Preliminary Grading and Utility plan.  Scope shall include a design for the road 
crossing for perennial stream (e.g. culvert or bridge), sizing of re-routed open channel 
ditches etc.   

Water Supply: 

35. Provide written evidence of adequate water supply from Placer County Water Agency 
(“PCWA”).  

36. The water system and supply shall be capable of providing the required fire flow as 
determined by a fire protection system engineer or California registered civil engineer 
and subject to the review and approval of the Fire Chief and the City Engineer.  
Applicant shall provide a report, including calculations, demonstrating sufficient water 
pressure and flow for operation of fire hydrants and individual fire sprinklers systems to 
each building can be provided. 

37. Fire hydrants serving the project shall be located within an approved distance of the 
building, and shall be spaced no more than 300-ft apart along any fire access route. 

38. Construction of water facilities is subject to the approval of PCWA, the Colfax Fire Chief 
and the City Engineer. 

Wastewater: 

39. Design of the sanitary sewer connection to the City’s wastewater system is subject to the 
approval of the City Engineer.  Each building shall have a separate connection to the 
public system unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 

40. A sanitary sewer study to include a capacity analysis of the downstream system will be 
required at each project phase.  The Applicant will be required to perform any needed 
sewer capacity improvements on existing City owned sewer mains and manholes as 
required to accommodate the proposed project sewer demand.   

Item 6A
9 of 117



6 
 

41. Provide any required easements for public sewer improvements and for the 
abandonment of any old easements as determined by the City Engineer. 

42. Sewer grades must be designed such that ultimate finished floors are a minimum of 12” 
above upstream manhole or clean-out rim elevations unless otherwise approved by the 
City Engineer.  Inadequate elevation differentials or grade on private SS mains and 
laterals, as determined by the City, must be mitigated by either raising finished floor 
elevation(s) or installing privately owned and operated sanitary sewer lift station(s) with 
grinder/ejector pump(s) on site. 

Street Improvements: 

43. The issuance of an occupancy permit for any commercial use in the project shall be 
conditioned on the completion of the Roundabout project described in the Development 
Agreement.   

44. Frontage improvements on the northern portion of South Auburn Street are not planned 
to be completed with the Roundabout project (refer to separate Development 
Agreement).  These improvements shall be completed concurrent with the Parcel 3 
building permit.   

45. The structural section of all on- and off-site road improvements shall be designed based 
upon a geotechnical investigation which provides the basement soils R-value and 
expansion index (if expansive soils are encountered).  A copy of soils report and 
pavement structural section calculations shall also be submitted with the first 
improvement plan check. 

46. Onsite driveways and parking areas shall be concrete or asphalt concrete pavement.  
The structural design of the pavement shall be determined based on R-value testing and 
shall be designed in accordance with 16.56.050 - Structural design of pavement of the 
Colfax Municipal Code, but will not be less than 2”AC on 6”AB. 

47. Ramps for disabled persons shall be provided at all intersections and crosswalks where 
sidewalks are proposed. 

48. ADA accessible paths of travel shall be indicated on the improvement plans showing a 
path of travel from public sidewalks to each proposed building. 

49. Sidewalk warps shall be provided to allow a clear five-foot walkway at all locations, 
including areas where mailboxes, streetlights, street signs and fire hydrants are present. 

50. All driveways shall have an approach grade of no greater than four percent within twenty 
feet of the public right-of-way. 

51. Accessible parking spaces, access to buildings, and driveways at sidewalks shall be 
designed to meet Title 24 ADA requirements (State and Federal). 

52. All paved surfaces designated for fire access by the Colfax Fire Chief and/or the City 
Engineer shall be designed to accommodate a Type 1 vehicle with a turning radius of 54 
ft. 

Item 6A
10 of 117



7 
 

53. Submittal Requirements: 

• The following will be submitted to the City Engineer and be approved, prior to 
issuance of a grading permit. 

o All plans, reports and calculations will be stamped and signed by an 
engineer registered in California to practice civil, structural or 
geotechnical engineering, as appropriate. 

o Five (5) copies of the site improvement plans. 

o Five (5) copies of temporary erosion and sediment control plan.  If 
grading will not be completed by October 15, or is scheduled to start prior 
to April 15, a winterization plan shall be included in accordance with City 
guidelines. 

o Two (2) copies of the SWPPP, Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan. 

o Two (2) copies of a detailed hydrology study prepared in accordance with 
the current edition of the Placer County Stormwater Management Manual. 

o Two (2) copies of a final design geotechnical investigation report. 

o Engineer’s estimate of probable construction cost. 

o Plan check fees. 

o Any bonds required. 

54. Prior to Acceptance of Public Improvements and Bond Exoneration, the Following 
Conditions Shall Be Satisfied: 

a. All improvements shown on the Improvement Plans shall be completed and 
accepted by the City. 

b. Prior to acceptance of improvements or occupancy of building, existing curb, 
gutter and sidewalk to remain shall be inspected by the City.  Any curb, gutter 
and sidewalk which is not in accord with City standards or is damaged before or 
during construction, shall be replaced. 

c. The developer shall provide a written statement signed by his or her engineer 
verifying that the grading and/or drainage improvements are completed in 
accordance with the plans approved by the City Engineer, and the Building 
Official. 

d. A complete set of As-Built or Record, improvement plans showing all 
construction changes from the original plans, shall be provided to the Public 
Works Department prior to final acceptance of the public improvements. 

 

 

Item 6A
11 of 117



8 
 

Cal Fire Conditions 

55. All construction shall comply with the 2016 California Fire Code and California Building 
code. 

56. All access roads and traffic circles where fire hydrants are present shall be a minimum of 
26ft wide and not steeper than 10% grade unless otherwise approved by Cal Fire. 

57. All buildings over two stories shall have a 26ft wide road on three sides  

58. Fire hydrants are required for this project.  Fire flow shall be determined using the 
California Fire code appendix B.  The minimum flow shall be 1500 gallons per minute.  
The serving water agency shall provide evidence that they can provide the required fire 
flow.  

59. Hydrant spacing shall be a maximum of 300 feet.  Hydrant placement shall be approved 
by Cal Fire.  Fire hydrants shall be clearly identified to prevent obstruction by parking or 
other obstructions. 

60. Fire department connections (FDC) shall be installed within 20 feet of a fire hydrant and 
be approved by Cal Fire.  All valves controlling the water supply to automatic sprinkler 
systems shall be electrically supervised. (Water flow).  A fire lane shall be provided for 
engine placement to the FDC. 

61. All buildings with an occupancy A, B must have and approved alarm per NFPA72. 

62. All buildings with an occupancy of A, B must have an approved fire sprinkler system per 
NFPA.  

63. Motor fueling dispensing will be pursuant to CFC 2306.2.3 

64. Tank protection required CFC 2306.2.3 

65. Aggregate tank capacity limit required CFC 2306.2.3/NFPA 30,30A, 70. 

Mitigation Monitoring Conditions  

66. Mitigation Measure BIO-1: Prior to Phase 1 ground disturbance, the Applicant shall have 
a focused botanical survey conducted within the Phase 1 construction boundary for the 
following species: brownish beaked-rush (Rhynchospora capitellata), finger rush (Juncus 
digitatus), Parry’s horkelia (Horkelia parryi), Scadden Flat checkerbloom (Sidalcea 
stipularis), Sierra blue grass (Poa sierrae), Stebbins’ morning-glory (Calystegia 
stebbinsii) and Brandegee’s clarkia (Clarkia biloba ssp. brandegeae).  If any of the 
above species are found within the Phase 1 construction boundary, the CDFW shall be 
contacted to determine appropriate avoidance or mitigation measures.  If none are 
found, Phase 1 ground disturbance could then proceed.  

67. Mitigation Measure BIO-2: Prior to Phase 2 and 3 ground disturbance, the Applicant 
shall have a focused botanical survey conducted within the Phase 2 and 3 construction 
boundaries for the following species: brownish beaked-rush (Rhynchospora capitellata), 
finger rush (Juncus digitatus), dubious pea (Lathyrus sulphureus var. argillaceus), 

Item 6A
12 of 117



9 
 

Parry’s horkelia (Horkelia parryi), Scadden Flat checkerbloom (Sidalcea stipularis), 
Sierra blue grass (Poa sierrae), Stebbins’ morning-glory (Calystegia stebbinsii) and 
Brandegee’s clarkia (Clarkia biloba ssp. brandegeae). If any of the above species are 
found within the Phase 2 and/or 3 construction boundaries, the CDFW shall be 
contacted to determine appropriate avoidance or mitigation measures. If none are found, 
Phase 2 and/or 3 ground disturbance could then proceed. 

68. Mitigation Measure BIO-3: Prior to Phase 2 and 3 ground disturbance, the Applicant 
shall have a focused pre-construction survey conducted by a qualified biologist for 
potentially occurring special-status reptiles and amphibians.  If any species are found, 
the CDFW shall be contacted to determine appropriate avoidance or mitigation 
measures.  If no species are found, Phase 2 and/or 3 ground disturbance could then 
proceed. 

69. Mitigation Measure BIO-4: If any tree removal or adjacent construction activity takes 
place during the associated breeding/nesting season for raptors (typically February 
through August), a pre-construction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist 
within 14 days of the start of construction activities.  If active nests are found on or 
immediately adjacent to the site, the CDFW shall be contacted to determine appropriate 
avoidance or mitigation measures.  If no nesting is found to occur, necessary tree 
removal could then proceed.  This survey shall not be necessary if tree removal and 
vegetation clearing occur outside of the nesting period. 

70. Mitigation Measure BIO-5: Prior to construction of Phase 2 and 3, the Applicant shall 
prepare a wetland delineation, in accordance with the U.S. ACOE “Minimum Standards 
for Acceptance of Preliminary Wetlands Delineations” and “Final Map and Drawing 
Standards for the South Pacific Division Regulatory Program,” and submit it to the U.S. 
ACOE Sacramento District Office for review.  The Applicant shall follow through with 
permitting required by the regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over the verified 
wetlands/waters (i.e. Section 404 permit from the U.S. ACOE and Section 401 water 
quality certification from the RWQCB).  

71. Mitigation Measure BIO-6: Prior to construction of Phase 2 and 3, the Applicant shall 
obtain a Section 1602 Stream Alteration Agreement from CDFW for each stream 
crossing or any other activities affecting the bed, bank or associated riparian vegetation 
of the perennial streams. 

72. Mitigation Measure CUL-1: Prior to construction of the project, the City of Colfax, the 
Applicant and the culturally affiliated tribes (CTVCT and/or UAIC) shall agree upon a 
Tribal Monitoring Agreement.  The Tribal Monitoring Agreement will provide a process 
for determining the project locations that will be subject to Tribal monitoring and the 
procedures/parameters for monitoring, including communication and coordination 
protocols, procedures for assessing potential or actual unanticipated discovers in the 
field, and dispute resolution procedures.  

73. Native American monitors from culturally affiliated Native American Tribes shall be 
invited to monitor the vegetation grubbing, stripping, grading or other ground-disturbing 
activities at the project site to determine the presence or absence of any cultural 
resources.  Native American representatives from culturally affiliated Native American 
Tribes act as a representative of their Tribal government and shall be consulted before 
ground-disturbing activities begin.  Native American representatives and Native 

Item 6A
13 of 117



10 
 

American monitors have the authority to identify sites or objects of significance to Native 
Americans and to request that work be stopped, diverted or slowed if such sites or 
objects are identified within the direct impact area.  Only a Native American 
representative can recommend appropriate treatment of such sites or objects.  

74. Mitigation Measure CUL-2: If archaeological or cultural resources are discovered during 
ground disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted in that area within 100 
feet of the find until a qualified archaeologist and Native American 
representatives/monitors can assess the significance of the find and make 
recommendations for further evaluation and treatment as necessary.  Recommendations 
made by Native American Tribes shall be documented in the project record.  For any 
recommendations made by interested Native American Tribes which are not 
implemented, a justification for why the recommendation was not followed will be 
provided in the project record.  Construction activities could continue in other areas, but 
not resume in the vicinity of the find until the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or other 
relevant regulatory agency provides written permission.  If the discovery proves to be 
significant, additional work, such as data recovery excavation, may be warranted and 
shall be discussed in consultation with the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or any other 
relevant regulatory agency, as appropriate. 

75. Mitigation Measure CUL-3: If tribal cultural resources (TCRs) are discovered, 
recommendations for avoidance and preservation of cultural resources shall be reviewed 
by the City of Colfax, interested Native American Tribes and the appropriate agencies, in 
light of factors such as costs, logistics, feasibility, design, technology and social, cultural 
and environmental considerations, and the extent to which avoidance is consistent with 
project objectives.  Avoidance and design alternatives may include realignment within 
the project area to avoid cultural resources, modification of the design to eliminate or 
reduce impacts to cultural resources or modification or realignment to avoid highly 
significant features within a cultural resource.  Native American representatives from 
interested Native American Tribes shall be allowed to review and comment on 
avoidance and preservation strategies and shall have the opportunity to meet with the 
City of Colfax and its representatives who have technical expertise to identify and 
recommend feasible avoidance and design alternatives, so that appropriate and feasible 
avoidance and design alternatives can be identified.  

If a discovered TCR can be avoided, the construction contractor(s), with Native 
American monitors from culturally affiliated Native American Tribes present, shall 
install protective fencing outside the site boundary, including a buffer area, before 
construction restarts.  The construction contractor(s) shall maintain the protective 
fencing throughout construction to avoid the site during all remaining phases of 
construction.  The area shall be demarcated as an “Environmentally Sensitive Area.”  
Native American representatives from interested Native American Tribes and the 
City of Colfax shall also consult to develop measures for long-term management of 
the resource and routine operation and maintenance within culturally sensitive areas 
that retain resource integrity, including tribal cultural integrity, and including 
archaeological material, Traditional Cultural Properties and cultural landscapes, in 
accordance with State and federal guidance.  

76. Mitigation Measure CUL-4: A minimum of seven days prior to beginning earthwork or 
other soil disturbance activities, the Applicant shall notify the City of Colfax of the 
proposed earthwork start-date, in order to provide the City of Colfax with time to contact 

Item 6A
14 of 117



11 
 

the UAIC. A UAIC tribal representative shall be invited to inspect the project site, 
including any soil piles, trenches, or other disturbed areas, within the first five days of 
groundbreaking activity. During this inspection, a site meeting of construction personnel 
shall also be held in order to afford the tribal representative the opportunity to provide 
TCR awareness information. If any TCRs, such as structural features, unusual amounts 
of bone or shell, artifacts, human remains, or architectural remains are encountered 
during this initial inspection or during any subsequent construction activities measures 
outlined in Mitigation Measure CUL-2 and CUL-3 shall be followed.  

77. Mitigation Measure CUL-5: A consultant and construction worker tribal cultural resources 
awareness brochure and training program for all personnel involved in project 
implementation shall be developed in coordination with interested Native American 
Tribes.  The brochure shall be distributed and the training shall be conducted in 
coordination with qualified cultural resource specialists and Native American 
representatives and monitors from culturally affiliated Native American Tribes before 
construction activities begin on the project site.  The program will include relevant 
information regarding sensitive TCRs, including applicable regulations, protocols for 
avoidance, and consequences of violating State laws and regulations.  The worker 
cultural resources awareness program will also describe appropriate avoidance and 
minimization measures for resources that have the potential to be located on the project 
site and will outline what to do and whom to contact if any potential archaeological 
resources or artifacts are encountered. The program will also underscore the 
requirement for confidentiality and culturally appropriate treatment of any find of 
significance to Native Americans and behaviors, consistent with Native American Tribal 
values.  

78. Mitigation Measure CUL-6: Prior to construction of the project, the City of Colfax, the 
Applicant and the culturally affiliated tribes (CTVCT and/or UAIC) shall agree upon a 
Burial Treatment Agreement. The agreement shall apply and be enforceable if the Tribe 
is designated by the NAHC (Native American Heritage Commission) as the Most Likely 
Descendant (MLD) or coMLD for Native American human remains discovered within the 
project site. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish appropriate procedures and 
guidelines to be implemented upon discovery, removal, temporary storage, 
transportation, or reburial of Native American Burials encountered by project 
construction activities within the project site.  

79. Mitigation Measure CUL-7: Prior to ground disturbance, presence/absence testing shall 
be conducted for the known area that has the potential to hold surface and subsurface 
cultural resources.  If testing proves to be significant, the procedures in Mitigation 
Measure CUL-2 and CUL-3 shall apply. 

80. Mitigation Measure CUL-8: If paleontological resources are discovered during ground 
disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted in that area within 50 feet of the 
find and a qualified paleontologist shall be notified immediately to evaluate the find.  
Construction activities shall continue in other areas.  If the discovery proves to be 
significant under Society of Vertebrate Paleontology criteria, additional work, such as 
fossil recovery excavation, may be warranted and shall be discussed in consultation with 
the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or any other relevant regulatory agency, as appropriate. 

81. Mitigation Measure CUL-9: If human remains are discovered during ground disturbing 
activities for the project, work shall be halted and the County Coroner shall be notified of 

Item 6A
15 of 117



12 
 

the find immediately.  No further work shall occur until the County Coroner has made a 
determination of origin and disposition pursuant to PRC Section 5097.98.  If the human 
remains are determined to be of Native American origin, the County Coroner shall notify 
the NAHC, which will determine and notify the MLD.  The MLD shall complete the 
inspection of the site within 48 hours of notification and may recommend scientific 
removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with 
Native American burials. 

82. Mitigation Measure GEO-1: Prior to issuance of the grading permit, the Applicant shall 
provide a geotechnical report from a licensed geotechnical engineer to the City of Colfax 
for approval.  The geotechnical report shall be consistent with the content requirements 
for geotechnical reports as stated in Chapter 15.30.048 – Content of soil/geologic 
investigation report. 

83. Mitigation Measure GHG-1: Prior to building occupancy of Phase 3 (motel use), the 
Applicant shall prepare a GHG Emissions Re-Evaluation for the project at full buildout 
analyzing the first full year that the entire project could conceivably be occupied. The 
Applicant shall reduce the project’s annual operational GHG emissions to the PCA 
PCD’s (Placer County Air Pollution Control District) De Minimis Level (1,100 metric tons 
of CO2e per year) or to the level that meets the PCAPCD’s Efficiency Matrix. If on-site 
measures cannot achieve the necessary reduction, the Applicant shall purchase carbon 
credits/offsets for the project’s annual GHG emissions above the PCAPCD’s De Minimis 
Level or above the level that meets the PCAPCDs Efficiency Matrix until the year in 
which the project’s annual GHG emissions will be equal to either level, or for a maximum 
of 20 years. 

84. Mitigation Measure HYD-1: Prior to grading and construction, the Applicant shall submit 
a Drainage Report with Drainage Plans prepared by a licensed civil engineer to the City 
for approval by the City Engineer.  The Drainage Report shall meet the requirements for 
submittals contained in the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District’s Stormwater Management Manual. 

85. If any cultural artifacts are discovered during construction of the project, the Applicant 
shall allow the Colfax-Todd Tribe to rebury the discovered cultural artifacts on the site. 

Conditions specific to ARCO Service Station Design Review 

86. The conditions of approval from the Maidu Village Development Project (file no, 
SP/CTPM2018-001) shall apply to this project. 

87. Plans submitted for building permits or construction improvements shall be in substantial 
compliance the plans approved by this action and dated approved on December 12, 
2018. Any deviations from or modifications to the approved plans shall be reviewed by 
the City for substantial compliance and may require amendment by the appropriate 
hearing body. 

88. This action does not relieve the Applicant of the obligation to comply with all codes, 
statutes, regulations, and procedures of the City of Colfax. 

89. The trash enclosure locations shall be reviewed and approved by staff and Recology 
prior to issuance of any development permits. 

Item 6A
16 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
17 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
18 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
19 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
20 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
21 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
22 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
23 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
24 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
25 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
26 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
27 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
28 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
29 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
30 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
31 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
32 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
33 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
34 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
35 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
36 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
37 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
38 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
39 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
40 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
41 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
42 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
43 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
44 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
45 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
46 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
47 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
48 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
49 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
50 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
51 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
52 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
53 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
54 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
55 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
56 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
57 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
58 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
59 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
60 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
61 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
62 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
63 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
64 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
65 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
66 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
67 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
68 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
69 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
70 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
71 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
72 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
73 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
74 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
75 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
76 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
77 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
78 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
79 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
80 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
81 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
82 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
83 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
84 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
85 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
86 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
87 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
88 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
89 of 117



Attachment 3 Item 6A
90 of 117



1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Ordinance № 538 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX  ADOPTING FINDINGS OF 

FACT AND APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

COLFAX AUBURN, LLC REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

MAIDU VILLAGE PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON SOUTH 

AUBURN STREET NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF THE INTERSTATE 

HIGHWAY 80 ON-RAMP AND OFF RAMP, PLACER COUNTY 

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL #100-240-016-000 

 

The City Council of the City of Colfax does ordain as follows: 
  

Section 1:  

The Ordinance Adopting Findings of Fact and Approving a Development Agreement with 

Colfax Auburn, LLC attached hereto as Exhibit A is incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Section 2. Superseding Provisions 

The provisions of this Ordinance and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto shall supersede and 

repeal any previous Ordinance or resolution to the extent the same is in conflict herewith.  
 

Section 3. Severability 

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by the final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision; and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

Section 4.  Effective Date 
 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from and after its adoption. 

 

Section 5.  California Environmental Quality Act Findings 

 

On November 14, 2018, the City Council reviewed and considered a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration for the Project defined in the Development Agreement, all comments received 

during the public review period, and all relevant documents in the record pertaining to the 

Project and the Mitigated Negative Declaration. The Mitigated Negative Declaration adequately 

describes the potential environmental impacts of the Project. On the basis of the whole record 

before it, the Colfax City Council found, and hereby finds, (1) there is no substantial evidence 

that the Project, as mitigated, will have a significant effect on the environment beyond those 

identified in the Mitigated Negative Declaration, (2) the Mitigated Negative Declaration has 

been completed in compliance with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, 

Public Resources Code §21000 et seq (“CEQA”) and the Guidelines for Implementation of the 

California Environmental Quality Act published by the State of California Office of Planning 

and Research (“CEQA Guidelines”), (3) the Mitigated Negative Declaration is complete and 

Item 6A
91 of 117



2 
 

adequate and reflects the City Council’s independent judgment and analysis of the environmental 

effects of the Project, and (4) the Mitigated Negative Declaration as adopted is equally 

applicable to the Project and the Development Agreement.  

 

 This ordinance shall, within 15 days after its adoption, be published or posted in accordance 

with Section 36933 of the Government Code of the State of California with the names of those 

City Council members voting for and against it. 

 

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Colfax held on the 14th day of November, 2018, and passed at a regular meeting of the City 

Council held on the 12
th

 day of December, 2018, by the following vote:   
 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:  
 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Will Stockwin, Mayor  

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATTEST:  

 

 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

Alfred Cabral, City Attorney     Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 6A
92 of 117



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 538 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAXADOPTING FINDINGS OF 

FACT AND APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

COLFAX AUBURN, LLC REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

THE MAIDU VILLAGE PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON 

SOUTH AUBURN STREET NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF THE 

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 80 ON-RAMP AND OFF-RAMP, 

PLACER COUNTY ASSESSOR’S PARCEL #100-240-016-000 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax has duly considered an application 

for a Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn, LLC (the “Development Agreement”) in 

accordance with Title 17, Chapter 17.48 et seq., of the Colfax Municipal Code; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (California 

Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., “CEQA”) and the regulations implementing 

CEQA (14 Code of California Regulations Section 15000 et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”), the City 

Council has reviewed an Initial Study (Environmental Checklist for the Maidu Village Project, 

dated October 2018 and all attachments and has determined that impacts from the proposed 

project have been be adequately addressed; and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement has been reviewed by City staff and the 

Developer; and 

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018, the City Council, sitting as both the City  Planning 

Commission and City Council, determined that approving the Development Agreement and the 

Project described therein is in the best interests of Colfax and that the Development Agreement 

should be approved; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after due deliberation and public hearings in accordance 

with Chapter 17.48 of the Colfax Municipal Code pertaining to Development Agreements under 

Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5, hereby adopts the following Findings of 

Fact: 

FINDING NO. 1:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 

OBJECTIVES, POLICIES, GENERAL LAND USES AND PROGRAMS SPECIFIED IN THE 

COLFAX GENERAL PLAN. 

The Agreement specifically implements the Colfax General Plan.  Based on the record generally 

and analysis provided in the November 14, 2018 Staff Report for the City Council and all 

attachments thereto and information provided therewith, the Development Agreement is in 

conformance with the Colfax General Plan objectives, goals, policies, general land uses and 

programs. 

Item 6A
93 of 117



2 

FINDING NO. 2:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 

PROVISIONS OF THE COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE. 

The Development Agreement complies with the requirements of Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 

17.48 and the Development Agreement Law incorporated therein (California Government Code 

Sections 65864 to 65869.5, inclusive).  The Development Agreement also complies with all 

related provisions of the Colfax Municipal Code and the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and 

development and building standards incorporated therein. 

FINDING NO. 3:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT CONFORMS WITH AND WILL 

NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE. 

Based on the record generally and analysis provided in the November 14, 2018 Staff Report for 

the City Council, the attachments thereto, and the related information presented at the hearing, 

the proposed project set forth in the Development Agreement conforms with and will not be 

detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare, as it incorporates all health and safety 

provisions required in the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance and will comply with all 

such provisions in the Municipal Code.  Further, it is or will be adequately served by utility and 

public services, and will help mitigate traffic and circulation impacts at the affected intersections 

within the City. 

FINDING NO. 4:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WILL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT 

THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY OR THE PRESERVATION OF 

PROPERTY VALUES. 

The Development Agreement promotes the orderly development of property within the City of 

Colfax by entitling and creating a specific mechanism and process for developing a significant 

parcel immediately adjacent to major on-and-off ramps to Interstate Highway 80. In this regard, 

the Development Agreement serves as a model for orderly development of property. Moreover, 

the project approved by the Development Agreement will attract business into the City, 

contribute to the City’s tax base, and help to preserve or enhance property values within the City 

and the quality of life for City residents. 

FINDING NO. 5:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WILL PROVIDE SUFFICIENT 

BENEFIT TO THE CITY AND ITS RESIDENTS TO JUSTIFY ENTERING INTO THE 

AGREEMENT. 

The following are aspects of the Maidu Village Project which demonstrate that it will provide 

sufficient benefits to the City and its residents to justify entering into the Development 

Agreement. 

Planning.  The Project is a well thought out development that will result in consistent and 

comprehensive development of the Maidu Village property and avoid fractionalization or 

piecemeal development of the Project site.  The Project is convenient to public transportation, is 

pedestrian-friendly, provides for adequate utility service, conforms to health and safety 

requirements and will include uses consistent with surrounding developments. Development of 

Item 6A
94 of 117



3 

the site into an integrated commercial development in conformance with the City’s General Plan 

and Zoning Ordinance represents good land use practice.  The opportunity afforded by consistent 

and integrated land uses is a benefit to the City as it grows. 

Tax Revenue.  The Project will contribute to the tax base of the City through sales tax revenues 

generated by the commercial uses, and from additional businesses and employees. 

Social and Economic Benefits.  The creation of new jobs and increased generation of revenues 

will provide greater employment opportunities for the residents of Colfax, and allow existing 

residents to live and work within the same community. 

FINDING NO. 6:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT CONFORMS WITH THE 

PROVISIONS OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65867.5 

Government Code Section 65867.5 requires a finding that the provisions of any development 

agreement are consistent with the City’s General Plan. This is addressed in Finding No. 1 above, 

and the City Council specifically finds that the Development Agreement conforms to the 

provisions of Government Code Section 65867.5. The provisions of Government Code Section 

66473.7 are not applicable to this Development Agreement or the Project described therein. 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the applicant, Colfax Auburn, LLC, agrees with 

the necessity of and accepts all elements, requirements and conditions of this Development 

Agreement as being a reasonable manner of preserving, protecting, providing for, and fostering 

the health, safety and welfare of the citizenry in general and persons who work in or visit this 

development in particular; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing and waived the first reading of 

this Ordinance on November 14, 2018 and waived the second reading of this Ordinance on 

December 12, 2018. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the City Council of the City of Colfax 

adopts these Findings of Fact and approves the Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn 

LLC for Maidu Village Project set forth therein and authorizes the City Manager to execute the 

Development Agreement in the name and on behalf of the City of Colfax. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Colfax on this 12th day of 

December 2018, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

_____________________________ 

Will Stockwin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 6A
95 of 117



Attachment 6a

Item 6A
96 of 117



Attachment 6b

Item 6A
97 of 117



Attachment 6c

Item 6A
98 of 117



>
 

!i
 ! 

i 1
�

II
 

-!
/

 �
 

� 

i u
 

� 
! 

g �
!
 2

i
� 

. !
�

"
 

h
 

� 
f; 

�:
 

� 
e�

 

I 
�!

 
a

�
 

�g
 

!
.

� � "
 

"
 H

 
;:;

 
• 

!' 

i �
�

.
,
 

i ..
 �i

� 
·
&

. i i;
� ..

Q§
:_ 

a 
QJ

 
i§

i

�§
f�

 
: ;; �

e l 
f •
 i•

 
& 

t
 
h

i
 

,, 
•!
 l

a 
§

:
 

a
.;

 

f' ,. "I
 

•
 ; f e
.
 

·� �'
 

I ii
 
i�

 
� 

t5
 

Ii
 

i"
 

s
e

 = 
,� 

� I � "
 

i•
� 

. �
t

·1
- M , ..

�
 

!
•
 

· •
11

i 
� ;

i
-: 

FJ
� 

s 
�.
 

a 
?

 
I 

§
'

i!
�

 r t ,..

s
 I 

/
 

A
,:

 
·
Q

 ·� t:.: � 
Iii 

I
 

"
 

Ii 

.. 

-
,,
-

. 
'\

 
'I 

" 
i 

- I 

s
 

! 
�

 

•
ii

 
! , q

 

Attachment 6d

Item 6A
99 of 117



Attachment 6f

Item 6A
100 of 117



n
 

I 
I 
I 
' 

...
 o

 
, 
. !

 
�
 
I 

8�
 

�-
;
 

I--'
 

:.,
;,::

 
�-,

 
.,,

 C:
 

Ei
 �

 

-
!;
Q

p
i!
 

z
o

 
:z

 

,j
l

�
'"-'

" '
"""'

="-
+--

-
-

-
-

-
u

-1
·�

�
-

-
-

-
-

•➔
• 

s
 

,·.
,t

 

"
 

i�
 

J,
 

- �
 

•·◄
·

.,J.,.
 
,·-
•· 

;:
 -1---4

-
-

--,,,
....a--

-rn
 

:z
 

.· 
�

�
-

----=
!!119-,;

,.-
.:...i._

�
i-p

 

• ....
 

l;i 
..

 
•. 

,s·
.,t

 

.,.
 r

 

El
 

..
 

::
 

r
-1

•
 

�
�
 

..,
.,,
 

,..;
· 

..r,.
 

�
 

9
 

;}
 

" ' . 
er

 
"O

 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
101 of 117



II
 I

'
' 
. 
!

-
tLO"I

 1
1,

· 
r.t

, 
lflll

fOCII'
-

{:I
 t�

 

�
--

-
--
-

-
-

-
-

,...
-

--
-

-
-

, 4' 
I J

i
lr 

-
1 , 

),... 
i=

 
1 

'/
 

�
 

�
 

....
 .,
 .. 

t
 

ffl
'Wf

•
 

l!
 _

_
_

_
_

 _:
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

N
O

T
F

O
R

 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
102 of 117



'
 

I 
-

II
 '

 
I 

,v
 

� �
 cl \ 

I 
' 

-
� 

G
 

�·, 1
1 

I 
, .. 

I 
·,,

'
I 

'·j
 I� 

. 
' 

I 0 - �
� ,

i,..
:-

--
� 

0 
� 

.,
 _

_
_

_
 J

 

f,
I 
-

-
-

i;!
 

fiJ
 

11•
 

G
�

 �
 

I
I, ,l

 
I 

�'t
 

,, If
 

-

m
 

11
1
1 

� 
I 

►
 

I 
�

n
 

· 1 · 1. 
�-. 

N
 

>
o

.c■
,

 
S5

 
-

'1 
Ei

�
 

. 
i '

 g
 

......
 

z
"'

 

§ "
1 I'

"' 

i
 

J
 • .. • 

;l 7 =t
 

-10
 

p
 ,t 

$ 
"'

 
'I':

 ' � �00
�0 

� 1:::1
 

� s i i
 

I 
,1

 �� �
!
 � 

z
 

:l
 

.,,
 

=
0

 
"'

 
�
�
a
�
 

=-<
>

%
�

 
::I

 
!:i 

�
 

1r.
 

! 
'

I 

J,
 

t 
� � 

. 
.1
 

I 
ll>

"'
�

�
�

e
•!l-

D'
B
 

11
11

11
11

11
 

1111
1111
 l I 

. r
 5

5
i�

,,,,
a

')
I 

8
1

 

. , 
... 

��
 

. 
__

 ,i
 

,. 
Q

 
• 
I 

�5!
t 

f-
%

 
I 

1i
 ,

 
\

 
t
 

I 
1i 

I 
'••

, .. 
, tt

�r;,
 

·t 
1 d 

_ l t E
 

t 

I 

i�
.-'

�
 
O

cr 
!8

�
�

"'O
 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
103 of 117



"'0------... 

r0 

.. �===J=----t===j�;;= 
@RIGlrT EU'VATION 

tl:.li.t.11,'u-if 

GY'RONT Fl.liVATION 
. �,, ....... 

®l.ffT Hl'VATION 
l
tua1•1•'·•·=i' 

�if� 

-of�;/> 

@llf-AR HFVATION 
- 1'.IILl.lJ•.01-i' 

r!> 

-'li� 

-'lU�,_.. 

.f'd;/> 

□ 
■ 
□ 
□ 

,_ 
Gl:NM!AI. NOTES 
I. lf'c..&D(.d)IS ...... 11'111 ........ .a4ii;..4 

laOll),�,-,:iei(lll,l.lul$: , 

O

bp 

KFYED NOTES . 

ll'll"C.II. • 
I ,.,_�""""-UIIIIIIQI 
J._,mt.11.-""DtDCII 

. ...  �'°' 
i_.._.QLIMO .. 
"alll,ld,IIIO�n.a,.tt 
'··-CllOffl:AJAGJ.-,11:rn.,WW.�J 

�Ill... 
�,.. '------·"""' 

-� ... "'Ml 

@wn.1a.1 .... ..-.m.at a:a.cu1:1wria,a1, 

0St��\L 

ARCO 

COi.OR I.F.GENI> 
CEEJ�CNJ�«:--

CED--IIDIL ,.,. -
........ -liUISS 

CEl:.��-IIDL 

[EE] :az� ._:.,.-l&D(. 

z 
C' 

�o�Au tlfj�� 
• 

-i.

'1, 

• 

•• 't ! 
;'••c•Gfl,'-4,•• 

r- 1a1, n.ia M-..: 1C1J1W 
,_ __ _,, 

r 
4�)nl+-4m 

'-"' :==� .. ------
► 

.. """ 

CV' I 

MATliRIAI. I.EGF.NI> 

( r'\ UJ4' 

Il2lt=��:=a'C9•n.•uru_;,,.,, ..J % 

cr!J..,._..m,tl'Ulllll;llt,II- z � �-..uttli ... 'lllCP�cnDIO e_ w•�••in.N0-40Uco.cia,......,.U ... I 

u 

r"" 
( 
� 

G
Atn::nNn 

JDDJar11'sn1 
t\JU C:A.'IU"l -' 6 Mf'Ch ? :••,rtAHWA.SU 

�AI.KIUl1i1n 
.,.i ... 

UUlt. ••1--
f-AUllh'•mu 

CARWASII 

:OLOR ELEVATIONS 

CWA2.1 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
104 of 117



0
 

►
 

I
 

N
 

�
 

t�
 

i �
 � 

all
! � 

• •
 s �

 
u
:· bi
l bi
 

-
1

1
 

r
a

i
-

; 1 1 1

; ; 

•.�
 p

 
n

 

i
·1 
� 

= � 
! I

+
 

�
 
=
 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
105 of 117



11 

(D!'.�?l��l'I? \JEST HEVATION 

J.______..L_J. 

®1'01' SIGN H.JJ SI'. 
20• IIJ.U�IINATiiD Clli\NNliL 1.ETTF.115 

<sX!!) WI 36' ILLUMINATiil> S!'ARK I.OGO (:)lfu<;T ;"t'191't El.EVATION 

-·-
--

-·
a%111ED." ""'ll 

I 

! 

TENANT 

:reNAtn 

---

-·-.., __
-·-
--...... 

; 

©�!�!N.i�lliN!IFICATION/PRICE SIGN 

@<;olJTI� CANOl'Y liLFVATION 

@:��il.,V,!�!'_'J'Sf.R GRAPHICS 

•••m..-.w.--a 1,aa,, .......... 111(11. � .. .., ... , 

.c:at.....-�.,.u, �-CNIIIT•� _,..11'-4"ftOIIMID�f# 
...... 
.,._ 
.,__,11111,M.ilOloli(SIQIC. 
----··-- �� 
=,M...-.�CIIICICf 

\....-.---ttw'•u --•lr'-T 

\ 

arrf so. 
EltE BICW.\CE TAB..E 

0IMll/""'Sl:::1.a: CMlf«l (!ti .. •l
0 I""' ""' (Ill .. , 

•O!T 

© jCNO'T "«:SJ· C>wrN:1. l£fflRS (10 111 N 11 2 
©I""°"' 5"" ,,,_l (11 .... , 
© IIW• 10 50,I/PflU � (1'90 fAClSI 
0,---

01--
01--=

10"'-

.. l'f',., 

(D��!"Ol'Y l>ECAI. ON ACM FASCI/\ 

- _J 

� SIGN sm, Pl.AN 
�--:;: !Uil: ., ... 

.,., 
l11 .. 
,00 .. 

,., ..
21 J ti 

11ltlll 
u .. 
.... 

.. 
. 

.. 
.. 

-

d 
"'� 
"'" 
ARCO 
-..-......---

(l,GH"lt,
.S-

��� 

- ,, -
' . t 
-. . .. � 
"'�,.Q : ....... "· 

l&llifflGlolllllA!QJlit ..,..._ .... -.u: l•nt;1,1-4n2 1,1un,-•,_,, ... 
c....---
---

il\1-1---
& 

.i. 
81 ,& I I 

TIIIS SIIEET IS 
l'OR 

INl'ORMATION 
ONI.Y 

Akt.:ONl1 
llJD-1••�m I tull CA. ....... � 11,l'lh 

141tK(.AH:WA."I 

I
�lltlUt\Sftiln 

-�::.:..
tArJUIY ,mu 
.. -

-

- -

-

SIGN l'l.AN 

SNA-1 

• 
I 

� 

! 
II i 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
106 of 117



C/)
 

z
 

:p-- N
 

,..
 

��
 

... �
.,. 

.
>

 

!
�

 

"'
 � :'":":
 

5
 =i >
 z
 

:-,
 s ;,:;
 

>
 

s
 

:r
. 

cl
 

z
 

•
 

A
U

8
U

II
N

 
I

T
 

....
. 

\
 

\ 
l @ j

i U
l h

 
l •
t

E ,
,

E l
.... ��

 
:a
 

� 
n

 
-

n
m

· 
cu

 
. 
;,:;
 

iil
 

b
�
 

.. 
f
 

i r
q ·

"' 5
 

z
 

i i 
i.
 

I 
•

E u
 

n
 

..
 
n

 

:,
 

D)
 

D)
 

-
�

:
�

�
 

:,
 

D)
 

�
 !
 

0
 

t/)
 

I 
:::r

 
D)

 

I I 
ti)

 

:::r
 

Attachment 6f

Item 6A
107 of 117



C

B

B

D

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

Preliminary Not For Construction

PRELIMINARY
SITE PLAN

PT

DJ

SP-1

Item 6A
108 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2299.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2273.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2273.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL PREM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2011 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2016 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2011 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2016 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2011 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN AIR/ VAN POOL/EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
custom

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2018 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
custom

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2018 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
custom

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\18400 SP-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\18400 SP-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  THIS PLAN, AS SHOWN, HAS BEEN APPROVED BY BP TRANSPORTATION FOR APPROVAL OF FUEL DELIVERY BY: TERMINAL MANAGER:  NATHAN PULLEN	 NATHAN PULLEN	 DATE: JULY 10, 2018 JULY 10, 2018 ANY DEVIATION TO THIS PLAN NEEDS TO BE APPROVED THROUGH BP TRANSPORTATION  DEVIATION TO THIS PLAN NEEDS TO BE APPROVED THROUGH BP TRANSPORTATION TERMINAL MANAGER AND INCORPORATED INTO THE PERMIT DOCUMENTS.  CONTACT FRANCHISEE FOR MORE DETAILS.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS 25K & 22K SPLIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'x17' TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Part Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trailer Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Part Track

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trailer Track

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lock to Lock Time

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steering Angle

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
Articulating Angle

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uPROJECT DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR/WATER UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION: 	S AUBURN STREET @ I-80 EXIT 135		 S AUBURN STREET @ I-80 EXIT 135		 COLFAX, CALIFORNIA LOT AREA: ±41,513 S.F. (0.95 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3000 ARCO AM/PM 3,180 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAR WASH 24'x48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56'x66' CANOPY w/ 6 MPD'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 29.85'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 259.58'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 24.59'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 23.18'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 35.72'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 52.71'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 64.34'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 36.83'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 30.92'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 52.49'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 102.68'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 49.86'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 18.29'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 103.69'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 GALLON PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ID SIGN, SEE SHEET SNA-1



THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

CONSTRUCTION
FLOOR PLAN

A1.1

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

LEGEND

OCCUPANCY LOAD

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE
INTERIOR

FLOOR

CASHIERFINISHES

BASE

WALLS

CEILING

FASCIA/SOFFIT

RESTROOMS OFFICE PREP/UTILITY WALK-INSALES

SALES AREA

OFFICE
PREP

CASHIER

WALK-IN
COOLER
17 DOOR

WALK-IN
FREEZER
2 DOOR

UTILITY

TO GO

FOUNTAIN

C
O

FF
E

E

HOT FOOD
CONDIMENT

COFFEE
CONDIMENT

MEN WOMEN

CONSTRUCTION FLOOR PLAN

Item 6A
109 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. B.	ALL DENOTED DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE USED. PLANS SHALL NOT BE SCALED. ALL DENOTED DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE USED. PLANS SHALL NOT BE SCALED. C.	EXTERIOR WALL ARE 2x6, INTERIOR WALLS 2x4 U.N.O., SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR FRAMING EXTERIOR WALL ARE 2x6, INTERIOR WALLS 2x4 U.N.O., SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR FRAMING REQUIREMENTS. D.	SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR DIMENSIONS TO PLUMBING FIXTURES SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR DIMENSIONS TO PLUMBING FIXTURES E.	REFER TO SHEET Q1.1 FOR FOR EQUIPMENT PLAN. REFER TO SHEET Q1.1 FOR FOR EQUIPMENT PLAN. F.	REFER TO SHEET Q2.1 FOR EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE. REFER TO SHEET Q2.1 FOR EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE. G.	ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL MEET ACCESSIBILITY REACH RANGE REQUIREMENTS. ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL MEET ACCESSIBILITY REACH RANGE REQUIREMENTS. H.	PROVIDE PLASTIC CORNER GUARDS AT EDGES BELOW 6'-0". PROVIDE PLASTIC CORNER GUARDS AT EDGES BELOW 6'-0". I.	ALL COUNTERTOPS SHALL BE MAX. 34" A.F.F. WITH A 3-FOOT WIDE TRANSACTION AREA AT ALL COUNTERTOPS SHALL BE MAX. 34" A.F.F. WITH A 3-FOOT WIDE TRANSACTION AREA AT CASHIER. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WORK WITH CABINET INSTALLER FOR CABINET INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR TO ROUTE UTILITIES THROUGH CABINETS. CONTACT CABINET INSTALLER FOR SITE SPECIFIC CABINET SHOP DRAWINGS. J.	4" HIGH BACKSPLASH AT ALL COUNTERTOPS THAT TERMINATE AT WALL. BACKSPLASH TO MATCH 4" HIGH BACKSPLASH AT ALL COUNTERTOPS THAT TERMINATE AT WALL. BACKSPLASH TO MATCH COUNTERTOP MATERIAL. K.	THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST STORE PERSONNEL BY ASSEMBLING MERCHANDISE GONDOLAS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST STORE PERSONNEL BY ASSEMBLING MERCHANDISE GONDOLAS AND SHELVING AS SHOWN ON Q1.1. L.	ALL EQUIPMENT AND CABINETS SHALL BE FREE OF SHARP EDGES. CONTACT MANUFACTURER OR ALL EQUIPMENT AND CABINETS SHALL BE FREE OF SHARP EDGES. CONTACT MANUFACTURER OR PREP EDGES FOR SAFETY. M.	CONTRACTOR SHALL ROUTE ALL CONDENSATE DRAIN LINES TO FLOOR SINKS. CONTRACTOR SHALL ROUTE ALL CONDENSATE DRAIN LINES TO FLOOR SINKS. N.	CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL NEW PARTITIONS/WALLS WITH GYPSUM WALL BOARD AND FINISHES CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL NEW PARTITIONS/WALLS WITH GYPSUM WALL BOARD AND FINISHES AS NOTED ON FINISH SCHEDULE AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS ON SHEET A2.3 THRU A2.6. ALL PARTITIONS/WALLS SHALL BE BRACED FOR LATERAL FORCES, PER BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS. O.	FLAME SPREAD CLASSIFICATIONS FOR INTERIOR WALLS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOCAL CODES. FLAME SPREAD CLASSIFICATIONS FOR INTERIOR WALLS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOCAL CODES. P.	FIRE EXTINGUISHERS (2A:10B:C) SHALL BE INSTALLED AT SALES COUNTER, BACK ROOM, OFFICE, FIRE EXTINGUISHERS (2A:10B:C) SHALL BE INSTALLED AT SALES COUNTER, BACK ROOM, OFFICE, & FUEL CANOPY LOCATIONS IF NOT SHOWN ELSEWHERE ON THESE DRAWINGS. VERIFY WITH OWNER FOR DETAILS, CONFIRM FINAL DETAILS WITH LOCAL FIRE INSPECTOR.  Q.	CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST THE OWNER WITH STORE EQUIPMENT TO PREPARE A DELIVERY CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST THE OWNER WITH STORE EQUIPMENT TO PREPARE A DELIVERY STAGING AREA. COORDINATE WITH OWNER FOR THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE AND SHIPPING DAMAGES, AS APPLICABLE. R.	CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A CLEAN, SMOOTH SURFACE FOR GRAPHICS INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A CLEAN, SMOOTH SURFACE FOR GRAPHICS INSTALLATION. S.	ALL DIMENSIONS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY CONTRACTOR FROM CABINET AND EQUIPMENT ALL DIMENSIONS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY CONTRACTOR FROM CABINET AND EQUIPMENT CLEARANCES PRIOR TO WALL ERECTION. DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE DIRECTED TO OWNER. T.	WATER HEATERS SHALL BE CAPABLE OF DELIVERING MIN. 120  WATER TO ALL SINKS. WATER HEATERS SHALL BE CAPABLE OF DELIVERING MIN. 120° WATER TO ALL SINKS.U.	ALL FLOOR/WALL TILE AND COVE BASE SHALL BE INSTALLED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR ALL FLOOR/WALL TILE AND COVE BASE SHALL BE INSTALLED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR ACCORDING TO THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS. V.	ALL DOORS MUST HAVE NO MORE THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP ALL DOORS MUST HAVE NO MORE THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP NO MORE THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP  THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP PERIOD OF 3 SECONDS TO CLOSE FROM 70°    OPEN TO 3" FROM THE LATCH. W.	CARBONATOR BACK-FLOW PREVENTOR DRAIN LINE OUTLET SHALL BE TO NEW FLOOR SINK CARBONATOR BACK-FLOW PREVENTOR DRAIN LINE OUTLET SHALL BE TO NEW FLOOR SINK PROVIDED FOR THIS AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FRAMED WALL PREFABRICATED COOLER/FREEZER WALL 2x6 STUDS @ 16"o.c. 2x6 STUDS @ 16"o.c. W/ THERMAL INSULATION 2x4 STUDS @ 16"o.c. 2x4 STUDS @ 16"o.c. W/ SOUND BATT INSULATION DOOR SYMBOL, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 FOR DETAILS WINDOW SYMBOL, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 FOR DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALES - 1,837 S.F. (1837/60)			= 31 = 31 OFFICE - 68 S.F. (68/100)				=  1 =  1 RESTROOMS - 112 S.F. (EXEMPT)			=  0  =  0  PREP/UTILITY - 403 S.F. (403/200)		=  3 =  3 COOLER/FREEZER - 533 S.F. (533/300)		=  2 =  2 TOTAL (NET): 2,953 S.F.					= 37 OCCUPANTS = 37 OCCUPANTS TOTAL (GROSS): 3,054 S.F. *COOLER IS A NON OCCUPIABLE SPACE PER SECTION 202 DEFINITION OF AN OCCUPIABLE SPACE.  EXITS REQUIRED: 2 EXITS PROVIDED: 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLAZED PORCELAIN TILE REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERAMIC SANITARY COVE BASE REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON SHEET A2.3 - A2.6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FASCIA PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A2.3 & A2.4. SOFFIT PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED PLYWOOD AND OPEN WEB TRUSSES. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL TILE OVER 5/8"  5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A2.6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON SHEET A2.6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL METAL COVE BASE WITH 3/8" RADIUS, BY COOLER MFR. REFER TO SPECIFICATION ON Q1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR CONCRETE SEALER REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL TILE AND FRP OVER 5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A2.5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO-GALVALUM. BY COOLER MFR. REFER TO SPECIFICATION ON Q1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHABLE SUSPENDED WHITE CEILING TILE REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO-GALVALUM. BY COOLER MFR. REFER TO CALLOUT ON Q1.2 AND A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUARRY TILE  REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUARRY SANITARY COVE BASE. REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCELAIN COVE BASE REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONT SYSTEM, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 & SPECIFICATION. INSTALL 6"  PVC CHASE FOR FOUNTAIN SYRUP LINES.FLOOR RECEPTACLES, REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS. ROOF LADDER PER DETAIL 7/A4.1 1" MINIMUM AIR GAP AT PREFABRICATED COOLER/FREEZER DEPRESSED SLAB, REFER TO SLAB PLAN. LINE OF CANOPY ABOVE DOUBLE SWING METAL GATE PROVIDED BY SHOPCO THRESHOLD, REFER TO DOOR SCHEDULE ON SHEET A5.1 LINE OF SOFFIT ABOVE LINE OF CLERESTORY CEILING OPENING, REFER TO WINDOW SCHEDULE ON SHEET A5.1 WALL SIGNS TRANSITION STRIP STEEL COLUMNS UNDER WINDOW SILL FOR STOREFRONT PROTECTION, REFER TO STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR SIZE AND LOCATION. ROOF DRAIN AND OVERFLOW, REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR CONTINUATION CANOPY DOWNSPOUT, REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR CONTINUATION FUTURE SOLAR EQUIPMENT CO2 SAFETY MONITORING EQUIPMENT, REFER TO SHEETS Q1.1 AND Q2.1 FOR LOCATION AND SPECIFICATION RECESSED STAINLESS STEEL FILL BOX WITH QUICK-DISCONNECT MALE FILL AND VENT HOSE CONNECTION FOR CO2 TANK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.O.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
53"

AutoCAD SHX Text
53"

AutoCAD SHX Text
97"

AutoCAD SHX Text
97"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHGEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL/FUELING CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"



THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

ROOF
PLAN

A1.4

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

ROOFING

ROOF PLAN

Item 6A
110 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	REFER TO SPECIFICATION SHEETS A7.3 & A7.4 FOR ROOF SYSTEM, REFER TO SPECIFICATION SHEETS A7.3 & A7.4 FOR ROOF SYSTEM, INCLUDING GUARANTEES, CURBS, FLASHING, AND ECT. B.	REFER TO ROOFING MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS AND REFER TO ROOFING MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS AND DETAILS FOR ROOFING SYSTEM INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE COMPLETE ROOFING PACKAGE PER MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS. C.	ROOF ASSEMBLY SHALL COMPLY WITH U.L. I-90 AND FM CLASS "B" ROOF ASSEMBLY SHALL COMPLY WITH U.L. I-90 AND FM CLASS "B" RATINGS INCLUDING COPING, FLASHING, PARAPET WALL, AND ROOF SYSTEM. D.	DO NOT STOCKPILE EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS ON THE ROOF DO NOT STOCKPILE EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS ON THE ROOF STRUCTURE, UNLESS APPROVED IN WRITING BY THE ARCHITECT, STRUCTURAL ENGINEER, AND THE TRUSS MANUFACTURER. E.	FOR EQUIPMENT COMPRESSOR & CONDENSER REFER TO EQUIPMENT FOR EQUIPMENT COMPRESSOR & CONDENSER REFER TO EQUIPMENT PLAN ON SHEET Q1.1 AND EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE ON SHEET Q2.1. F.	GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION PERIMETER GUARDRAIL TO COMPLY WITH CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 29 CFT 1926, SUBPART M (OSCA), GUARDRAIL TO BE 42" HEIGHT AND BE ABLE TO WITHSTAND 200 POUNDS AT TOP EDGE. H.	REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS FOR VENT PIPE PENETRATION AND REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS FOR VENT PIPE PENETRATION AND CURB DETAILS. ALL ROOF PENETRATIONS SHALL BE THROUGH THE CURBS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. I.	PARAPET ADJACENT TO MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT / ROOF ACCESS TO PARAPET ADJACENT TO MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT / ROOF ACCESS TO BE MINIMUM 42" HIGH WHEN WITHIN 10 FEET OF ROOF EDGE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF HATCH PER DETAIL 7/A4.1 ROOF DRAIN AND OVERFLOW, REFER TO PLUMBING PLANS CANT STRIP PER DETAIL 8/A4.1 TAPERED INSULATION CRICKET ROOFTOP UNIT, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS. CONDENSER, REFER TO EQUIPMENT AND ELECTRICAL PLAN EXHAUST FAN, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS STEEL CANOPY BELOW, REFER TO SHEET A1.3 FOR DOWNSPOUT LOCATION SATELLITE ON BALLASTED CURB SHOP FORMED PRE-FINISHED METAL COPING, REFER TO DETAIL 1/A4.1 FACE OF EXTERIOR WALL BELOW FACE OF PARAPET WALL METAL LID FLASHING STEEL CANOPY GUTTER, REFER TO SHEET A1.3 FOR DOWNSPOUT LOCATION ROOF JACK, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS. GAS WATER HEATER FLUE, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
RTU-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RTU-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D11A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D10A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
G6C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
D10A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPO ROOFING MEMBRANE WITH PROTECTION BOARD AND RIGID INSULATION. REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS



LIGHTING

CONTROLS

ACCESS

ACCESS BY

QUALIFIED

PERSONNEL

ONLY!

PH.  (704) 364-9029 / 1-800-736-4455 / FAX (704) 367-1215
1132 Pro Am Dr.  Charlotte, NC  28211

Carolina Products, Inc.
CPI

CPI
CAROLINA PRODUCTS, INC.

LIGHTING

CONTROLS

ACCESS

ACCESS BY

QUALIFIED

PERSONNEL

ONLY!

PH.  (704) 364-9029 / 1-800-736-4455 / FAX (704) 367-1215
1132 Pro Am Dr.  Charlotte, NC  28211

Carolina Products, Inc.
CPI

CPI
CAROLINA PRODUCTS, INC.

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

COLOR
ELEVATIONS

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION RIGHT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

COLOR LEGEND

COLOR LEGEND

MATERIAL LEGEND

MATERIAL LEGEND

Item 6A
111 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT MORE THAN SIX MAIN DISCONNECTING MEANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITABLE FOR USE AS SERVICE EQUIPMENT WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERIAL #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEUTRAL FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIC RATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARE PROVIDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT MORE THAN SIX MAIN DISCONNECTING MEANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITABLE FOR USE AS SERVICE EQUIPMENT WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERIAL #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEUTRAL FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIC RATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARE PROVIDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY/WINDOW HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
+10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
+24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3'-2" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	CLOSELY AS POSSIBLE TO ELEVATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. TOWER BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-69, "WHITE OPULENCE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, 2121-30, "PEWTER", HIGH GLOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONT SYSTEM, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 & SPECIFICATION. STEEL AWNING ROD AND CLEVIS OVERFLOW DRAIN WALL POSTER INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SURFACE MOUNTED WALL SIGN WALL MOUNTED LED FIXTURE WALL MOUNTED SIGN LIGHTING ROOFTOP EQUIPMENT BEYOND MAIN SWITCHGEAR CO2 FILL/VENT BOX, VERIFY LOCATION PRIOR TO INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" CEMENT PLASTER, INSTALLED PER MFG. SPECIFICATIONS; TEXTURE: FINE SAND FINISH ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL, PANTONE PMS 166c, "ORANGE" ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL, ALUCOBOND, "RUSTIC WALNUT" CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STEEL AWNING PANELIZED STONE VENEER MFR: CORONADO,  SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLERESTORY DESIGNER NOTE: SUN EXPOSURE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED FOR WINDOW USE AT CLERESTORY. IN TEMPERATE CLIMATE AVOID SOUTH AND WEST EXPOSURE OR ADD SHADING OR LOW E GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-69, "WHITE OPULENCE" BENJAMIN MOORE, 2121-30, "PEWTER", HIGH GLOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL, PANTONE PMS 166c, "ORANGE" ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL,  ALUCOBOND, "RUSTIC WALNUT" PANELIZED STONE VENEER  MFR: CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE



carwash

e n t r a n c e

carwash

e n t r a n c e

carwash

e x i t

carwash

e x i t

carwashcarwash

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

CAR WASH
COLOR ELEVATIONS

CWA2.1

RIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

COLOR LEGEND

FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

OPTIONAL

MATERIAL LEGEND

Item 6A
112 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	CLOSELY AS POSSIBLE TO ELEVATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" REVEAL VINYL LETTERS APPLIED TO ACM VINYL DECAL APPLIED TO ACM "NO ENTRY" SIGN OVERHEAD CLEARANCE BAR WALL MOUNTED LED FIXTURE 6" ROUND CONCRETE FILLED BOLLARD, REFER TO DETAIL 5/CWA4.2 METAL DOOR & FRAME INSTRUCTIONAL SIGN PANEL VINYL ROLL UP DOOR, COLOR: BEIGE, REFER TO SHEET CWQ1.1 WASH BAY WINDOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP YELLOW - BENJAMIN MOORE, 2022-10, "YELLOW"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP PEARL - BENJAMIN MOORE,  OC-8, "ELEPHANT TUSK"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-69, "WHITE OPULENCE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, 2121-30, "PEWTER", HIGH GLOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" CEMENT PLASTER, INSTALLED PER MFG. SPECIFICATIONS; TEXTURE: FINE SAND FINISH ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL PANELIZED STONE VENEER (PROTOTYPE OPTION) MFR:	CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE



C-01

C-11

C-01

C-14
C-01

C-14
C-01

C-15

C-11

C-01

C-14
C-01

C-15

C-01

BUILDING SIDE

C-15

C-01

C-11

C-01

C-14
C-01

C-15

STREET SIDE
S AUBURN ST

BUILDING SIDE STREET SIDE
S AUBURN ST

STONE

STONE

STONE

ELEVATIONS
CANOPY

CA-2

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

FACING BUILDING

EXTERIOR PAINTS                             
C-01

C-11

C-14

C-15

FACING S AUBURN ST

STONE

Item 6A
113 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD. TYPICAL OF 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY CLEARANCE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: NUMBERS ONLY SHOWN FACING THE STORE. OTHER SIDE TO BE BLANK. DISPENSERS CONTINUE TO HAVE THE DISPENSER NUMBERS  ON FACE OF DISPENSER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD. TYPICAL OF 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"H ALUMINUM ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS (TYP. OF 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC (TYP. OF 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY UNDERSIDE TO  BE PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY FASCIA TO BE FINISHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC (TYP. OF 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+16'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+18'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD. TYPICAL OF 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY UNDERSIDE TO  BE PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY FASCIA TO BE FINISHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY UNDERSIDE TO  BE PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY FASCIA TO BE FINISHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY CLEARANCE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL ON ALL SIDES UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"H ALUMINUM ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS (TYP. OF 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA  PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC (TYP. OF 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+16'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+18'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+16'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+18'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\18400 CA-2.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\18400 CA-2.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: BP PEARL - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A0083, SPECIFY   	  #38YY 72/117, "INDIAN LEGEND"   #38YY 72/117, "INDIAN LEGEND" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW6119, "ANTIQUE WHITE" - BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-8, "ELEPHANT TUSK" COLOR: HIGH HIDING WHITE - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A0128, SPECIFY       #50GY 83/010, "WHITE WING" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW7006, "EXTRA WHITE" - BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-67, "ICE MIST" COLOR: BP YELLOW - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A0775 SPECIFY       #37YY 61/867, "OMEGA YELLOW" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW6903, "CHEERFUL" - BENJAMIN MOORE, 2022-10, "YELLOW" COLOR: BP WARM GREY - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A1860, SPECIFY   #40YY 25/074, "GREY MOUNTAIN" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW7053, "ADAPTIVE SHADE" - BENJAMIN MOORE, 2137-40, "DESERT TWILIGHT" PANELIZED STONE VENEER  MFR:	CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE  CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE  MFS:	COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"



B

D

SIGN PLAN

SNA-1

F CANOPY DECAL ON ACM FASCIA
20" ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS

D
W/ 36" ILLUMINATED SPARK LOGO

C

E MAIN IDENTIFICATION/PRICE SIGN

B POP SIGN - 8.33 S.F.

A AM/PM SIGNAGE

G FUEL DISPENSER GRAPHICS

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

1 PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

SIGN SITE PLAN

SOUTH CANOPY ELEVATION3

EAST CANOPY ELEVATION 2

Item 6A
114 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"x40" POP SIGN (TYP. OF 6), REFER TO DETAIL "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED AM/PM signage CABINET, REFER TO DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"H ALUMINUM CHANNEL LETTERS W/ LED INTERNAL ILLUMINATION, REFER TO DETAIL C,  TYP.	OF 2OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. LED INTERNAL ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC, REFER TO DETAIL D, TYP. OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: NUMBERS ONLY SHOWN FACING THE STORE. OTHER SIDE TO BE BLANK. DISPENSERS CONTINUE TO HAVE THE DISPENSER NUMBERS  ON FACE OF DISPENSER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP.	OF 6OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP.	OF 6OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL W/ 28mm BLUE L.E.D., REFER TO DETAIL F

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL PREM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN AIR/ VAN POOL/EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21" VINYL GRAPHIC SILK-SCREENED DIMENSIONAL BULLNOSE WITH SHADOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" ILLUMINATED ALUMINUM CHANNELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIAMETER ILLUMINATED ARCO SPARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.1 S.F. TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED RED ARCO SPARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPAQUE WHITE PANEL, TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WHITE "ARCO" LETTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WHITE LETTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED GREEN "DIESEL" PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LED PRICE PANEL, TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WHITE "ampm" PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SIGNAGE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AM/PM SIGNAGE CABINET (32.1 sf ea.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POP SIGN (8.33 sf)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
 32.1 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.0 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.3 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY SIGN (SPARK) (7.1 sf ea.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY "ARCO" CHANNEL LETTERS (10 sf ea.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
 20.0 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN I.D. SIGN/PRICE SIGN (TWO FACES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11.3 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN CARWASH SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6.9 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6.9 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AM/PM C-STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S AUBURN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 MPD CANOPY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT



c a r w a s hc a r w a s h

carwash

e x i t

carwash

e x i t

carwash

e n t r a n c e

carwash

e n t r a n c e

Clearance X'X"

carwashcarwash

carwash

entrance

carwash

entrance

carwash

exi t

carwash

exi t

B

B

D

SIGN PLAN

SNA-2

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

NORTH CARWASH ELEVATION 1

EAST CARWASH ELEVATION 3

WEST CARWASH ELEVATION 2

L CAR WASH OVERHEIGHT WARNING BAR AND SIGN

SOUTH CARWASH SIGN H

EAST CARWASH SIGN J WEST CARWASH SIGN K

SIGN SITE PLAN

Item 6A
115 of 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL PREM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN AIR/ VAN POOL/EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED DIE CUT SIGN SUPPLIED BY RYKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE HANGING SIGN SUPPLIED BY RYKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTABLE HEIGHT ALUMINUM POST SUPPLIED BY RYKO, COLOR: BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM BASE PLATE COVER SUPPLIED BY RYKO, COLOR: BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL CURVED ALUMINUM BEAM SUPPLIED BY RYKO, COLOR: BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AM/PM C-STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S AUBURN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 MPD CANOPY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



Resolution 77-2018 Arco Station Design Review Page 1 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № 77-2018 

APPROVING THE DESGN REVIEW FOR THE ARCO SERVICE 
STATION AT THE MAIDU VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, City of Colfax received an application for design review to develop an 
ARCO service station with convenience mart and car wash to be located on Lot 2 of the 
Maidu Village Development Project, and 

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing has been given at the time and in the manner 
required by State Law and City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for 
development, preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, and 
provides adequate drainage for the project; and 

WHEREAS, the project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, 
loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and lighting which results in a safe, efficient, 
and harmonious development and which is consistent with the applicable goals, policies 
and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for the 
CH zone district; and 

WHEREAS, the design of the public services, as approved, including, but not 
limited to trash enclosures and service equipment are located so as not to detract from 
the appearance of the site, and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction materials, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site and the 
building designs; and 

WHEREAS, the use and design of the proposed development conforms with the 
requirements of the relevant planned development zone district and the requirements of 
the zoning ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or 
development is to be compatible with and will not adversely affect or be materially 
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, 
and will not be detrimental or injurious to public or private property or improvements; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proposed architecture, site design, and landscape are suitable for 
the purposes of the building and the site and will enhance the character of the 
neighborhood and community; and  

Item 6A
116 of 117



Resolution 77-2018 Arco Station Design Review Page 2 

WHEREAS, the City prepared an Initial Study consistent with California 

Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines and determined that a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration ("MND") was required in order to analyze the potential for significant impacts 

of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the MND and other environmental documents for the Project that 

constitute the record of proceedings for the Project are in the custodial location and 

available for review during normal business hours in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 

33 S. Main Street,  Colfax, CA 95713. 

WHEREAS, and the CEQA Mitigations have been included in conjunction with the 

conditions of approval regarding any Project approval; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the staff report, any and 

all written comments received during the public review process and any and all oral and 

written comments submitted at the public hearing; and  

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared for the project as 

outlined in Exhibit “A” attached to this resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council finds that the Project 

qualifies for a Mitigated Negative Declaration and that the City Council adopt the Project 

Mitigated Negative Declaration, and approve the Design Review for the ARCO Service 

Station with Convenience Mart and Car Wash located on Lot 2 of the Maidu Village 

Development Project. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED on this 
14th day of November, 2018, by the following roll-call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

______________________________ 
Will Stockwin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 6A
117 of 117



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

DATE: November 27, 2018 
SUBJECT: Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Planning 

Grant - Engineering Studies Agreement with Wood Rodgers 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $242,650 
FROM FUND:  561 
(Reimbursed by Grant) 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 78-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Wood Rodgers for the Engineering Studies component of the 
Planning Grant for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements in an 
amount not to exceed $242,650 contingent upon approval of the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
grant funding. 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

The State Water Resources Control Board and the nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards, collectively the 
State Water Board, protects and improves water quality in California through several regulatory and financial 
assistance programs.  The Federal Clean Water Act established the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 
program to finance the protection and improvement of water quality. 
 

Section 79723 of Proposition 1 allocates $260 million to the CWSRF Small Community Grant (SCG) Fund. The 
State Water Board has an annual SCG appropriation of $8 million dollars, which is administered consistent with 
the CWSRF Intended Use Plan (IUP), and the CWSRF Policy. The Proposition 1 funds will supplement existing SCG 
authority. CWSRF applications are accepted on a continuous basis, and eligible projects are funded as 
applications are completed and approved.  

 

The SCG Fund allows the State Water Board to assist communities in California with the most need, helping 
those that cannot otherwise afford a loan or similar financing to move forward with water quality 
improvements. According to the 2016 Median Household Income (MHI) Data, the City of Colfax could qualify for 
a 100% Grant as long as all the components of the project are eligible under the CWSRF Policy.  Grant funds may 
be awarded up to $500,000 for Planning and $6,000,000 for Construction. 

 

At the September 26, 2018 regular meeting, Council authorized the City Manager to apply for grant funding to 
conduct a comprehensive sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant improvement project to 
improve operations, make needed system repairs and upgrades, and reduce ongoing operational costs. The City 
is hopeful that the grant dollars will offset future rate increases by reducing infrastructure upgrade obligations.  
Other benefits would include:  Energy efficiency, reduction of Inflow and Infiltration (I&I), prevention of Sanitary 
Sewer Overflows (SSO’s), and replacement of City Infrastructure that has exceeded its useful life. 
 
 
 

Item 6B
1 of 27

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/index.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/finalpolicy0513.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/srf_forms.html


2 

 

City Staff has identified the following activities to be considered for this potential funding: 
 

1. Pump Station 3 Force Main Repair 
The City lift station #3 Force Main Pipe is constructed of asbestos concrete that is severely aged. The 900 
linear feet of 4-inch pipe has required maintenance to address a section that recently failed. During the 
repair, City staff noticed the pipe has become brittle, which indicates further issues are inevitable. The 
construction project is planned to use either open trench or bursting to remediate the system 
deficiency.  
 

2. Installation of Solar at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
The cost of Utilities (primarily electricity) is the second highest cost of Sewer Operations and accounts 
for approximately 15% of total operating costs.  The City would like to pursue having solar panels 
installed at the WWTP through a purchase agreement. 
 

3. Algae Control – Installation of Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) or Suspended Air Flotation (SAF)  
During the wet season, influent flows which are higher than the WWTP is designed to handle are stored 
in the plant’s pond system. The water is then recovered from the ponds and added to the influent for 
treatment. 
 

Storing water rich in nutrients, combined with warm temperatures, and sun causes algae to grow. The 
WWTP is not equipped to deal with algae, as it causes an increased, but false, Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(measurement of chemicals in the water that can be oxidized) and turbidity issues. The plant operators 
use the Chemical Oxygen Demand to calculate process changes needed. Turbidity monitoring is a NPDES 
(National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) requirement per the State Water Resources Control 
Board’s permit for the WWTP.  
 

The WWTP’s permit requires dewatering the storage ponds adequately for the next wet weather 
season. Currently the WWTP has no treatment process to facilitate the removal of algae to effectively 
dewater the ponds on a consistent basis. The goal is to purchase a .25mgd (million gallons/day) 
Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) or Suspended Air Flotation (SAF) to allow the operators to coagulate and 
dispose of the algae prior to adding stored water back into the treatment system.  
 

4. Sewer Collection System Improvements 
The City would like to review and update the Wastewater Collection System Condition Assessment 
created in 2010 and develop a construction plan for remaining repairs to reduce I&I. 
 

The City completed two large I&I remediation projects in 2010/11 and 2012/13.  The projects replaced 
or lined nearly 18,000 feet of sewer main (40% of total), rehabilitated over 47 manholes (29%), and 
replaced more than 187 laterals (27%) between the main and the property lines.  This new project 
would enable the City to review the Remaining C1 (Condition assessment of Immediate Risk of Failure) 
Repairs that were identified previously and assess the current condition of the sewer collection system 
pipelines.  The aforementioned repairs reduced the peaking factor during rain events to eight times the 
flow during dry season.  The new I&I project goal is to reduce the flow peaking factor to four times the 
dry flow, thus diminishing the need to upsize collection pipes leading to the WWTP. 
 

The first part of the grant request involves the planning component of the project. The application was 
submitted for the $500,000, the maximum value available for planning. The initial step will be conducting 
engineering studies including the following tasks: 
 
TASK 1 – Engineering Studies – I&I Evaluation 
Engineering studies will be prepared to identify, to the greatest extent possible with the funds 
available, sources of I&I in the City’s sewer collection system. This work may include, but may 
not be limited to: 

Item 6B
2 of 27



3 

 

• Research and collection of historic records including as-built drawings, sewer system flow data from 
SCADA data and sewer evaluation reports. It is assumed that these records and reports will be provided 
to the consulting firm by the City. 

• Evaluation of data collected for this project including flow meters, CCTV inspections, smoke testing and 
manual flow source tracing such as dye tests. 

• Update the City’s existing sewer models based on historic and current data. 

• Along with identifying sources of I&I- data, models and engineering analysis will be used to update the 
City’s Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP). 

• A technical memo will be prepared that lays out the cost benefit and useful life of various collection 
system rehabilitation alternatives such as cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) and manhole lining, pipe bursting, 
pipe/manhole linear excavation replacement, and other alternatives as appropriate. 

       Deliverables 
▪ Updated sewer system model 
▪ Updated SECAP Study/Report 
▪ Technical Memo: Alternatives & recommendations for pipeline and manhole rehabilitation to 

mitigate I&I, including an evaluation of the cost/benefit and useful life of the alternatives. 
 
TASK 2 – Preliminary Design 

2.1 – I&I Mitigation Project & Lift Station 3 Force Main Replacement 
Utilizing data and information provided in the Engineering Studies (Task 1), prepare preliminary plans for 
rehabilitation of the sewer collection system. Additionally, prepare plans to replace the remaining 
original force main pipe segment serving LS3. The plans will contain sufficient information to develop 
construction cost estimates and remaining engineering costs for the City to prepare a CWSRF 
construction grant application. The information will include, but may not be limited to, title sheets with 
the project overview and vicinity map, location and size of pipes and manholes that will be rehabilitated 
and the method of rehabilitation. The funds obtained by the City through the construction grant 
application will partially be used to complete any necessary topographic surveys, right-of-entry permits 
and temporary construction easements, prepare construction plan details and finalize rehabilitation 
plans and specifications for bidding. 

       Deliverables 
▪ Preliminary design plan 
▪ Construction and final design cost estimates 

 
2.2 – WWTP Algae Control System 
Work with City staff, wastewater consulting engineer and electrical consulting engineer to identify 
alternatives for a SAF/DAF system including prospective design/build manufacturers/construction 
contractors. This task further includes preparation of performance specifications, construction costs 
estimates and useful life analysis. 

       Deliverables 
▪ Technical Memo: Alternatives and recommendation of SAF/DAF system, location 
▪ Potential suppliers, required WWTP equipment and design modifications and useful life 

analysis 
▪ Performance specifications and a design/build bid package 
▪ Procurement and construction cost estimates. 

 
2.3 – WWTP Supplemental Solar Power Analysis 
Work with City staff and electrical consulting engineer to identify alternatives for a solar array including 
prospective design/build manufacturers/construction contractors. This task further includes site 

Item 6B
3 of 27



4 

topographic survey, geotechnical analysis, preparation of performance specifications, construction costs 
estimates and useful life analysis. 

 Deliverables 
▪ Technical Memo: Alternatives and recommendation solar system, location,

potential suppliers, required WWTP equipment and design modifications and useful life
analysis.

▪ CAD files of topographic survey and report from geotechnical analysis
▪ Performance specifications and a design/build bid package
▪ Procurement and construction cost estimates.

TASK 3 – Project Management 
Provide project management services for the planning and preliminary design phase of the project. This 
work includes meeting coordination and attendance, overseeing consultant work, working with City 
staff, preparing draft Council reports and resolutions and working with SWRCB staff. 

3.1 – Meetings 
Attend preliminary design meetings, Council meetings, site meetings with potential design/build 
contractors and meetings with SWRCB staff. For estimating purposes, a total of ten, four-hour, meetings 
is assumed. 

3.2 – Project Coordination & Documentation 
Coordinate and provide communication between project stakeholders in the planning stage of the 
project. This work includes preparation of meeting agendas and minutes, emails and phone calls from/to 
City staff, consultants, RWRCB staff and potential design/build contractors. 

3.3 – Travel and other Reimbursable 
This task includes travel mileage to Colfax, plan production, and other incidental costs. 

The engineering studies completion is anticipated to be two-months after the City receives the planning grant 
award from the RWQCB. Staff is optimistic the RWQCB will approve the planning grant in January 2019 or 
sooner. Executing an agreement with Wood Rodgers contingent on RWQCB approval allows the City to move 
forward quickly. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has worked with Jim Fletter (Wood Rodgers) in past waste water infrastructure grant projects including the 
previous I&I rehabilitation project. Based on Jim’s past knowledge in the City’s collection system, staff believes 
executing a contract with Wood Rodgers to conduct the planning grant engineering studies will both expedite 
the project and provide man-hour cost savings based on the consultant’s institutional knowledge. Staff is 
recommending approval of an agreement with Wood Rodgers to perform tasks outlined in an amount not to 

exceed $242,650 contingent on Regional Water Quality Control Board grant funding approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 78-2018
2. Wood Rodgers Proposal
3. Contract

Item 6B
4 of 27



City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № 78-2018 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH WOOD RODGERS FOR THE ENGINEERING 
STUDIES COMPONENT OF THE PLANNING GRANT FOR SEWER 

COLLECTION SYSTEM AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
IMPROVEMENTS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $242,650 
CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE REGIONAL WATER 

QUALITY CONTROL BOARD GRANT FUNDING  

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018 the City Council authorized the City Manager to 
apply for grant funding to conduct a comprehensive Sewer Collection System and 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project; and  

WHEREAS, City staff submitted the planning grant application and is seeking to 
procure a consulting firm for the initial step of conducting engineering studies; and 

WHEREAS, City staff is recommending contracting with Wood Rodgers to capitalize 
on the firm’s City of Colfax institutional knowledge thus expediting the project and 
maximizing man-hour cost savings, in the amount not to exceed $242,650. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Wood Rodgers for the 
engineering studies component of the planning grant for the Sewer Collection System and 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project in the amount not to exceed $242,650 
contingent upon approval of the Regional Water Quality Control Board grant funding. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGURLARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of December, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

___________________________________ 
Will Stockwin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 6B
5 of 27



 

November 28, 2018 

 

Mr. Wes Heathcock 

City of Colfax 

P.O. Box 702 

Colfax, CA  95713 

 
RE:   Sewer Collection System and WWTP Improvement Project 
 Professional Services Proposal 
  

Dear Wes: 

 

We are respectfully submitting this proposal for the subject project which is based upon the anticipated 

scope of work prepared for the Plan of Study for the State Water Resource Control Board (SWRCB).  The 

work is summarized as follows with more detail provided in the “Scope of Work” section of this proposal 

letter. 

 

1) Prepare engineering studies and modelling of the sewer collection system to identify, to the 

greatest extent possible, sources of storm water inflow and groundwater infiltration (I&I) into the 

collection system.  They studies may include but may not be limited to flow monitoring, smoke 

testing, and CCTV inspections of the collection system. 

2) Manage the preparation of environmental documentation required to obtain CEQA Plus 

certification for the project the City governing board and the SWRCB.  It is anticipated that a 

CEQA Plus consultant will be contracted by the City to work collaboratively with Wood 

Rodgers. 

3) Prepare preliminary engineering designs for an I&I Mitigation project.  The primary purpose of 

the preliminary design is to compile cost estimates for a construction grant application to 

SWRCB from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF). 

4) Prepare preliminary performance specifications for a suspended air floatation (SAF) or dissolved 

air flotation (DAF) system at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).  Wood Rodgers will 

subcontract with consultants for wastewater engineering and an electrical engineering who will 

work collaboratively with Wood Rodgers and the City.  It is further anticipated that the SAF/DAF 

system will be publicly bid through “design/build” method in conformance with State regulations. 

5) Prepare preliminary performance specifications for supplemental solar power at the WWTP.  

Wood Rodgers will subcontract a consultant for electrical engineering who will work 

collaboratively with Wood Rodgers and the City.  It is further anticipated that the solar system 

will be publicly bid through “design/build” method in conformance with State regulations or 

through procurement approved by the SWRCB. 

 

In addition to the above service, Wood Rodgers will collaborate with the City during the preparation, 

submittal and approval of the CWSRF construction grant, including coordination and meeting attendance 

with City and SWRCB staff.  This proposal does not include scope for project bidding, construction 

design services, construction management, inspection or testing.  Wood Rodgers will provide a separate 

proposal for these services at the City’s request. 

 

Wood Rodgers and its subconsultants (Wood Rodgers Team) are providing the additional design services 

as a consultant to Client, to be included with the services according to the terms as described under Task 1 

and Task 2 in the original Professional Services Proposal provided, and as described herein. 

 

Item 6B
6 of 27



Mr. Wes Heathcock 

November 28, 2018 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Background 
 

The City of Colfax is applying for a planning grant through the SWRCB for eligible CWSRF grants as 

Phase 1 of the project.  The intent is to rehabilitate the City’s sewer collection system with the goal of 

mitigating I&I entering the system, control algae at the WWTF by installing a SAF/DAF system and 

supplement the WWTP power supply with a solar array.  Wood Rodgers can provide project management 

services and design services for the I&I Mitigation project.  Other specialty consultants, working in 

collaboration with Wood Rodgers, can provide wastewater treatment engineering services and electrical 

engineering service for the preparation of performance specification for the SAF/DAF system and the 

solar array.  The goal of Phase 1 is to obtain construction grant funding that will be used in Phase 2 to 

finalize construction plans, solicit construction bids through the public bidding process and construct the 

project.  Phase 1 will also require the preparation of environmental documentation for CEQA Plus 

certification and the construction grant application itself. 

 

Scope of Work 

TASK 1 – Engineering Studies – I&I Evaluation 

Engineering studies will be prepared to identify, to the greatest extent possible with the funds 

available, sources of I&I in the City’s sewer collection system.  This work may include, but may 

not be limited to:  

• Research and collection of historic records including as-built drawings, sewer system 

flow data from SCADA data and sewer evaluation reports.  It is assumed that these 

records and reports will be provided to Wood Rodgers by the City. 

• Evaluation of data collect for this project including flow meters, CCTV inspections, 

smoke testing and manual flow source tracing such as dye tests. 

• Update the City’s existing sewer models based on historic and current data. 

• Along with identifying sources of I&I- data, models and engineering analysis will be 

used to update the City’s Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP). 

• A technical memo will be prepared that lays out the cost benefit and useful life of various 

collection system rehabilitation alternatives such as cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) and 

manhole lining, pipe bursting, pipe/manhole linear excavation replacement, and other 

alternative as appropriate. 

Deliverables 

• Updated sewer system model 

• Updated SECAP Study/Report 

• Technical Memo: Alternatives & recommendations for pipeline and manhole 

rehabilitation to mitigate I&I, including an evaluation of the cost/benefit and useful life 

of the alternatives. 

TASK 2 – Preliminary Design 

2.1 – I&I Mitigation Project & Lift Station 3 Force Main Replacement 

Utilizing data and information provided in the Engineering Studies (Task 1), prepare preliminary 

plans for rehabilitation of the sewer collection system.  Additionally, prepare plans and to replace 

the remaining original force main pipe segment serving LS3.  The plans will contain sufficient 

Item 6B
7 of 27



Mr. Wes Heathcock 

November 28, 2018 

Page 3 of 5 
 

information to develop construction cost estimate and remaining engineering costs for the City to 

prepare a CWSRF construction grant application.  The information will include, but may not be 

limited to, title sheets with the project overview and vicinity map, location and size of pipes and 

manholes that will be rehabilitated and the method of rehabilitation.  The funds obtained by the 

City through the construction grant application will partially be used to complete any necessary 

topographic surveys, right-of-entry permits and temporary construction easement, prepare 

construction plan details and finalize rehabilitation plans and specifications for bidding. 

Deliverables 

• Preliminary design plan 

• Construction and final design cost estimates 

2.2 – WWTP Algae Control System 

Work with City staff to identify alternatives for a SAF/DAF system including prospective 

design/build manufacturers/construction contractors.  This task further includes preparation of 

performance specifications, construction costs estimates and useful life analysis. 

Deliverables 

• Technical Memo: Alternatives and recommendation of SAF/DAF system, location, 

potential suppliers, required WWTP equipment and design modifications and useful life 

analysis. 

• Performance specifications and a design/build bid package 

• Procurement and construction cost estimates. 

2.3 – WWTP Supplemental Solar Power Analysis 

Work with City staff to identify alternatives for a solar array including prospective design/build 

manufacturers/construction contractors.  This task further includes site topographic survey, 

geotechnical analysis, preparation of performance specifications, construction costs estimates 

and useful life analysis. The scope and limitations of the geotechnical analysis and subsequent 

report are provided as Exhibit B. 

Deliverables 

• Technical Memo: Alternatives and recommendation for solar system location, potential 

suppliers, required WWTP equipment and design modifications and useful life analysis. 

• CAD files of topographic survey and report from geotechnical analysis 

• Performance specifications and a design/build bid package 

• Procurement and construction cost estimates. 

TASK 3 – Project Management 

Wood Rodgers will provide project management services for the planning and preliminary 

design phase of the project.  This work includes meeting coordination and attendance, working 

with City staff, preparing draft Council reports and resolutions and working with SWRCB staff. 

Item 6B
8 of 27



Mr. Wes Heathcock 

November 28, 2018 

Page 4 of 5 
 
3.1 – Meetings 

Wood Rodgers will attend preliminary design meetings, Council meetings, site meetings with potential 

design/build contractors and meetings with SWRCB staff.  For estimating purposes, a total of ten, four 

hour, meetings is assumed. 

3.2 – Project Coordination & Documentation 

Wood Rodgers will coordinate and provide communication between project stakeholders in the planning 

stage of the project.  This work includes preparation of meeting agendas and minutes, emails and phone 

calls from/to City staff, consultants, RWRCB staff and potential design/build contractors. 

3.3 – Travel and other Reimbursable 

This task includes travel mileage from Wood Rodgers to Colfax, plan production, and other incidental 

costs based on Wood Rodgers fee schedule provided in Exhibit A. 

 

Engineering Fee 
 
Wood Rodgers will bill on a Lump Sum (LS) and Time & Material (T&M) basis.  Wood Rodgers 

reserves the right to transfer budget between tasks without affecting the total project budget.  Wood 

Rodgers estimates the following budgets will be required to complete the work described in this 

amendment proposal: 

 

SCOPE ITEM 
ESTIMATED 

BUDGET 
 

TASK 1 – Engineering Studies – I&I Evaluation $    73,000. LS 

TASK 2 – Preliminary Design   

   2.1 – I&I Mitigation Project & LS2 Force Main Replacement 48,000 LS 

   2.2 – WWTP Algae Control System 35,000 LS 

   2.3 – WWTP Supplemental Solar Power Analysis 6,500 LS 

   2.3a – Survey/Topographic Map 15,000 LS 

   2.3b – Geotechnical Report 7,900 LS 

TASK 3 – Project Management   

   3.1 – Meetings 7,600 T&M 

   3.2 – Project Coordination & Documentation 40,400 T&M 

   3.3 – Travel and other Reimbursements 5,000 T&M 

   3.4 – Consultant Markup (10%) 4,250 T&M 

TOTAL BUDGET PER THIS PROPOSAL: $242,650  

CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

1. This scope of work and cost estimate incorporates all anticipated work required under the 

CWSRF planning grant and does not provide for follow-on work required with the CWSRF 

construction grant.  Wood Rodgers will provide a separate scope for the CWSRF construction 

grant once the full extent of the project is understood. 

2. Nothing in this scope provides for bidding or construction management services. 

Item 6B
9 of 27



Item 6B
10 of 27



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 
 

SACRAMENTO FEE SCHEDULE 
Effective January 1, 2019 

 

CLASSIFICATION 
STANDARD RATE 

Principal Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* II $245 

Principal Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* I $215 

Associate Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* III $200 

Associate Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* II $190 

Associate Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* I $180 

Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* III $170 

Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* II $160 

Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* I $145 

Assistant Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* $110 

CAD Technician III $145 

CAD Technician II $125 

CAD Technician I $110 

Project Coordinator $125 

Administrative Assistant $105 

1 Person Survey Crew $195 

2 Person Survey Crew $285 

3 Person Survey Crew $370 

Consultants, Outside Services, Materials & Direct Charges Cost Plus 10% 

Overtime Work Rate Plus 50% 

 
*LA = Landscape Architect 
 
Blueprints, reproductions, and outside graphic services will be charged at vendor invoice.  Auto 
mileage will be charged at the IRS standard rate, currently 54.5 cents per mile. 
 
Fee Schedule subject to change January 1, 2020. 

Item 6B
11 of 27



 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

SCOPE OF WORK FOR GEOTECHNICAL ANALYSIS AND REPORT TO THE CITY OF COLFAX FOR THE 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT SOLAR ARRAY SITE 
 

Geotechnical - $7,900 

Field exploration will consist of excavating three (3) to five (5) exploratory test pits across the property 
with a rubber tired backhoe to maximum depths of 10 feet below the existing ground surface. Test pits 
will be backfilled immediately after the exploration. Backfill will be loosely placed and the area re-graded 
to the extent possible with the equipment on hand.   
 

Upon completion of our analyses, a geotechnical investigation report consistent with the requirements of 
the latest adopted California Building Code (CBC) will be prepared for the project and include the 
following: 
 

• Description of the project site with the approximate locations of our explorations, shown on 
a Site Plan. 

• Descriptive logs of the explorations performed for this study. 
• General summary of the site soils and geology. 
• Summary of seismic hazards including site seismicity and parameters for design in accordance 

with the requirements of the California Building Code. Seismic Design values will be provided 
based on Site Classification. 

• Summary of surface and ground water conditions encountered. 
• Site preparation and grading recommendations based on the results of our field exploration 

and laboratory testing developed for standard spread foundations. 
• Foundation design parameters, including minimum depth, width, and anticipated 

settlements.   
• Lateral earth pressures and design parameters, as applicable for planned structures.   
• Concrete and concrete slab-on-grade support options. 
• Drainage considerations that may affect foundation and concrete slab-on-grade performance. 
• Pavement design parameters, if necessary. 
 

We will provide the aforementioned geotechnical investigation services as outlined above for a quote of 
$7,900. Field work can typically begin approximately 7 to 10 days from notice to proceed but will also 
depend on the availability of the excavation contractor. 
 
Our written report will be available within approximately 3 to 4 weeks after the completion of the field 
investigation. Two wet-stamped copies and one electronic copy will be provided. Construction 
consultation or client ordered meetings are not a part of this proposal and will be provided on a time and 
expense basis in accordance with our Standard Fee Schedule provided here as Exhibit 1. 

Item 6B
12 of 27



 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 

 
 

NEVADA FEE SCHEDULE 
Effective January 1, 2019 

 

CLASSIFICATION 
STANDARD RATE 

Principal Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* II $215 

Principal Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* I $200 

Associate Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* III $185 

Associate Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* II $170 

Associate Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* I $160 

Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* III $145 

Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* II $135 

Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* I $125 

Assistant Engineer/Geologist/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/LA* $110 

CAD Technician III $125 

CAD Technician II $110 

CAD Technician I $95 

Project Coordinator $100 

Administrative Assistant $80 

Construction Project Manager $140 

Inspector III $113 

Inspector II $100 

Inspector I $90 

Field/Lab Technician IV $150 

Field/Lab Technician III $108 

Field/Lab Technician II $95 

Field/Lab Technician I $85 

1 Person Survey Crew $150 

2 Person Survey Crew $190 

3 Person Survey Crew $250 

Consultants, Outside Services, Materials & Direct Charges Cost Plus 10% 

Overtime Work Rate Plus 50% 

 
*LA = Landscape Architect 
 
Blueprints, reproductions, and outside graphic services will be charged at vendor invoice.  Auto 
mileage will be charged at the IRS standard rate, currently 54.5 cents per mile. 
 
Fee Schedule subject to change January 1, 2020. 
 

Item 6B
13 of 27



Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 13th day of December, 2018 by and 
between the City_ of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City") and  
Wood Rodgers (“Consultant").  
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in 

Exhibit A hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform 

the Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Services 
 
Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish 
and perform all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City.  Consultant shall not 
perform any work exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior 
written authorization from the City.  
 
Section 2. Time of Completion.  
 
Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant shall commence performance of the 
Services promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed.  Performance of 
the Services shall progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in 
Exhibit A.  During the performance of the Services, Consultant shall provide the City with 
written progress reports at least once each month and at such additional intervals as City 
may from time to time request.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 6B
14 of 27



Page 2 

 

Section 3. Compensation. 
 
A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or 

its exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services 
performed during the preceding month.  Such invoices shall itemize all charges in 
such detail as may reasonably be required by City in the usual course of City 
business but shall include at least: 

i. the date of performance of each of the Services,  
ii. identification of the person who performed the Services, 

iii. a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, 
iv. the hourly rate at which the Services on each date are charged, 
v. an itemization of all costs incurred and 

vi. the total charges for the Services for the month invoiced.  
As long as the Consultant performs the Services to the satisfaction of the City, the 
City shall pay the Consultant an all-inclusive compensation that shall not exceed the 
amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 
order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring 
additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no later than 
thirty (30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

 
B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all 

indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred 
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments 
shall be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or 
elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits. 

 
C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating 

charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right 
to perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining to the charges. 

 
D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they 

are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  
 
Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 
 
City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under 
this Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 
 

Item 6B
15 of 27



Page 3 

 

Section 5. Indemnification. 
 
Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the 
performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for 
death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole 
negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 
servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 
responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers  
 
Section 6. Insurance.  
 
Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 
A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and 

Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, Consultant 
may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the 
program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the 
City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees.  All 
Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the provision that the 
insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers' 
Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance 
company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid under the terms 
of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the insured for the City. 

 
B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury and 

property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its 
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection 
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general 
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability 
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 

Item 6B
16 of 27



Page 4 

 

requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

 
C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 

and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 
D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 

shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  
 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 
named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 
 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 
 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
 
 
 
 

Item 6B
17 of 27



Page 5 

 

E. Professional Liability Coverage. If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out 
and maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not 
less than $1 million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed 
with a provision stating that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 
provided to the City.  

 
F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencing the Services under 

this Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the 
required insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named. This 
documentation shall be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include 
all required endorsements and verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This 
Agreement shall not be effective until the required insurance forms and 
endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide these 
forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this 
Agreement to another Consultant should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do 
so. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  

 
G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 

must be declared to and approved by City. 
 
H. Termination of Insurance. If the City receives notification that Consultant's 

insurance will be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, 
and if the Consultant does not provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance 
or for the furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms and 
provisions specified above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may 
either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required 
insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof 
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant 
for Services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
Section 7. Subcontracts.  
 
Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible 
to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the 
Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create 
any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any 
obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies due to any 
such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
 

Item 6B
18 of 27



Page 6 

 

Section 8. Assignment.  
 
Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  
 
Section 9. Entire Agreement. 
 
This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified 
or altered except in writing signed by both parties.  
 
Section 10. Jurisdiction. 
 
This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
California.  Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
Superior Court of the State of California with venue in Placer County, California.  
 
Section 11. Suspension of Services. 
 
Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the 
Services if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make 
normal progress of the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible.  Upon written City 
approval to suspend performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services 
shall be extended by the number of days performance of the Services is suspended.  
 
Section 12. Termination of Services. 
 
City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and 
this Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  
Consultant shall be entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up 
to the date of receipt of the written notice of termination.  Consultant shall not be entitled 
to payment for any Services performed after the receipt of the notice of termination unless 
such payment is authorized in advance in writing by the City. 
 
Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within the 
time and in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should 
Consultant violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate 
this Agreement by providing Consultant with seven (7) days written notice of such 
termination.  The Consultant shall be compensated for all Services performed prior to the 
date of receipt of the notice of termination.  However, the City may deduct from the 

Item 6B
19 of 27



Page 7 

 

compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 
estimated by City resulting from Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
Sections 5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 
receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report 
of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the 
payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 
Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 
Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 
and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 
to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to use such 
materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to any other 
party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 
documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  
Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such 
documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  
 
 
 
 
 

Item 6B
20 of 27



Page 8 

 

Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 
 
Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree that 
extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be 
awarded to Consultant for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a 
supplemental agreement providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be 
executed by the Consultant and the necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed 
Services are provided. 
 
Section 16. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 
 
Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws 
requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other 
prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant's failure to comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations.  
 
Section 17. Retention of Records. 
 
Consultant and any subconsultants authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep 
and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employees' time 
sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Consultant shall make such 
documents available for review and/or audit by City and City's representatives at all 
reasonable times during performance of the Services and for at least four (4) years after 
completion of the Services and/or termination of this Agreement.  
 
Section 18. Alternative Dispute Resolution 
 
A. Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary 

contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any 
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following 
provisions.  Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party 
pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice 
by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall 

Item 6B
21 of 27



Page 9 

 

meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, 
or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall 
attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If any 
dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement 
shall have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the 
subparagraph B below.  

 
B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved 

after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral 
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If 
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the 
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties agree to 
commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to expedite 
the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree to 
each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, 
including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30 days 
after the mediation has been confirmed.  

 
C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall 

mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their 
dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to 
submit selection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on 
the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then 
active list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The 
arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In 
such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 
shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If 

there is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall 
be used instead of a Sacramento office. 
 

Section 19. Severability. 
 
The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held 
invalid by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  
 
 

Item 6B
22 of 27



Page 10 

 

Section 20. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  
 
This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
expression of the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof.  All prior written and oral communications, including 
correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or extended from time to time only by 
written agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
 
Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
Section 22. Written Notification. 
 
Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 
If to Consultant:  Wood Rodgers 
   3301 C Street 
   Sacramento, CA 95816 
 
Section 23. Execution. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 
 
 
 

Item 6B
23 of 27



Page 11 

 

Section 24. Successors.  
 
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto 
except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
 
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms or 
to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such 
fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first 
above written:  
 
CITY  CONSULTANT  

 
Signature: 

 
Signature: 

 

 
Printed Name: Wes Heathcock Printed Name: 

 

 
Title: City Manager Title: 

 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 City Attorney 

 
 

Item 6B
24 of 27



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

TASK 1 – Engineering Studies – I&I Evaluation 

Engineering studies will be prepared to identify, to the greatest extent possible with the funds available, 

sources of I&I in the City’s sewer collection system.  This work may include, but may not be limited to:  

• Research and collection of historic records including as-built drawings, sewer system flow data 
from SCADA data and sewer evaluation reports.  It is assumed that these records and reports 
will be provided to Wood Rodgers by the City. 

• Evaluation of data collect for this project including flow meters, CCTV inspections, smoke testing 
and manual flow source tracing such as dye tests. 

• Update the City’s existing sewer models based on historic and current data. 

• Along with identifying sources of I&I- data, models and engineering analysis will be used to 
update the City’s Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP). 

• A technical memo will be prepared that lays out the cost benefit and useful life of various 
collection system rehabilitation alternatives such as cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) and manhole 
lining, pipe bursting, pipe/manhole linear excavation replacement, and other alternative as 
appropriate. 

Deliverables 

• Updated sewer system model 

• Updated SECAP Study/Report 

• Technical Memo: Alternatives & recommendations for pipeline and manhole rehabilitation to 
mitigate I&I, including an evaluation of the cost/benefit and useful life of the alternatives. 

TASK 2 – Preliminary Design 

2.1 – I&I Mitigation Project & Lift Station 3 Force Main Replacement 

Utilizing data and information provided in the Engineering Studies (Task 1), prepare preliminary plans for 

rehabilitation of the sewer collection system.  Additionally, prepare plans and to replace the remaining 

original force main pipe segment serving LS3.  The plans will contain sufficient information to develop 

construction cost estimate and remaining engineering costs for the City to prepare a CWSRF 

construction grant application.  The information will include, but may not be limited to, title sheets with 

the project overview and vicinity map, location and size of pipes and manholes that will be rehabilitated 

and the method of rehabilitation.  The funds obtained by the City through the construction grant 

application will partially be used to complete any necessary topographic surveys, right-of-entry permits 

and temporary construction easement, prepare construction plan details and finalize rehabilitation 

plans and specifications for bidding. 

Deliverables 

• Preliminary design plan 

Item 6B
25 of 27



• Construction and final design cost estimates 

2.2 – WWTP Algae Control System 

Work with City staff to identify alternatives for a SAF/DAF system including prospective design/build 

manufacturers/construction contractors.  This task further includes preparation of performance 

specifications, construction costs estimates and useful life analysis. 

Deliverables 

• Technical Memo: Alternatives and recommendation of SAF/DAF system, location, potential 
suppliers, required WWTP equipment and design modifications and useful life analysis. 

• Performance specifications and a design/build bid package 

• Procurement and construction cost estimates. 

2.3 – WWTP Supplemental Solar Power Analysis 

Work with City staff to identify alternatives for a solar array including prospective design/build 

manufacturers/construction contractors.  This task further includes site topographic survey, 

geotechnical analysis, preparation of performance specifications, construction costs estimates and 

useful life analysis. The scope and limitations of the geotechnical analysis and subsequent report are 

provided as Exhibit B. 

Deliverables 

• Technical Memo: Alternatives and recommendation of solar system, location, potential suppliers, 
required WWTP equipment and design modifications and useful life analysis. 

• CAD files of topographic survey and report from geotechnical analysis 

• Performance specifications and a design/build bid package 

• Procurement and construction cost estimates. 

TASK 3 – Project Management 

Wood Rodgers will provide project management services for the planning and preliminary design phase 

of the project.  This work includes meeting coordination and attendance, working with City staff, 

preparing draft Council reports and resolutions and working with SWRCB staff. 

3.1 – Meetings 

Wood Rodgers will attend preliminary design meetings, Council meetings, site meetings with potential 

design/build contractors and meetings with SWRCB staff.  For estimating purposes a total of ten, four 

hour, meeting is assumed. 

3.2 – Project Coordination & Documentation 

Wood Rodgers will coordinate and provide communication between project stakeholders in the 

planning stage of the project.  This work includes preparation of meeting agendas and minutes, emails 

and phone calls from/to City staff, consultants, RWRCB staff and potential design/build contractors. 

Item 6B
26 of 27



3.3 – Travel and other Reimbursable 

This task includes travel mileage from Wood Rodgers to Colfax, plan production, and other incidental 

costs based on Wood Rodgers fee schedule contained in the service proposal. 

Time of Completion 

The tasks outlined in Exhibit A will be completed by June 30, 2019. 

 

Item 6B
27 of 27



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

DATE: December 3, 2018 
SUBJECT: Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Planning 

Grant - Inflow and Infiltration Flow Meters 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $38,162 
FROM FUND:  561 
(reimbursed by grant) 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 79-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with SmartCover Systems for lease and purchase of SmartFLOE 
meters in an amount not to exceed $38,162 contingent upon approval of the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board grant funding. 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

As explained in Item #6B, City staff has applied for a State Water Board planning grant of up to $500,000.  One 
of the four categories to be considered for potential funding in the application will improve the Sewer Collection 
System as reiterated here: 
 

Sewer Collection System Improvements:  
 

The City completed two large I&I remediation projects in 2010/11 and 2012/13.  The projects replaced or 
lined nearly 18,000 feet of sewer main (40% of total), rehabilitated over 47 manholes (29%), and replaced 
more than 187 laterals (27%) between the main and the property lines.  This new project would enable the 
City to review the Remaining C1 (Condition assessment of Immediate Risk of Failure) repairs that were 
identified previously and assess the current condition of the sewer collection system pipelines.  The 
aforementioned repairs reduced the peaking factor during rain events to eight times the flow during dry 
season.  The new I&I project goal is to reduce the flow peaking factor to four times the dry flow, thus 
diminishing the need to upsize collection pipes leading to the WWTP.  
 

In anticipation of approval of the grant engineering services component, Staff is seeking to have the proper 
equipment available to provide information for the engineers’ reports which will review and update the 
Wastewater Collection System Condition Assessment created in 2010 and develop a construction plan for 
remaining repairs to reduce I&I. To accomplish this, staff will need to lease 12 flow meter units that will be 
placed in strategic manholes within the collections system to help identify and locate sources of I&I. The units 
will be installed and monitored for four months and will allow staff to evaluate data collected and identify areas 
in need of rehabilitation. 

 
Features that make these sensors unique include the capability to install the sensors above the sewer flow, 
completely out of the sewage stream, so that they are not subject to debris buildup and fouling.  The flow and 

Item 6C
1 of 21



2 

velocity data is collected real-time and transmitted by satellite link to a central data repository for time-efficient 
review of the data and manhole performance.  The City can be alerted when sewage rises above the pipe 
diameter and begins surcharging into the manhole, allowing the City to investigate potential overflows as they 
are occurring. 

Staff solicited quotes from two companies that provide flow monitoring units for lease. 

Vendor Months Total Cost With 10% Contingency Comments 

SmartCover 
Systems 

4 $27,852 $30,637 SmartFLOE System 

Hach 4 $80,640 N/A FloDar / FL904 

Staff also requests authorization to purchase 4 SmartFLOE units after the study period. These units will be 
placed in manholes that have a history of Sanitary Sewer Overflows or obstruction by grease. The City can be 
alerted when sewage rises above the pipe diameter and begins surcharging in the manhole, allowing the City to 
be proactive and investigate potential overflows before they happen. Funding for the 4 units will be from the 
grant. After the first year of the purchased units Active Site Management costs would be $595 annually/per 
active unit.  This cost would only apply if a unit is activated, as there is an option to activate/deactivate each 
unit.  

Vendor Units Total Cost Comments 

SmartCover Systems 4 $  7,525 SmartFLOE System 

Ponton Industries (Hach) 4 $63,864 FloDar/FL904 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is recommending approval of an agreement with SmartCover Systems for lease of 12 SmartFLOE units over 
a period of 4 months in an amount not to exceed $30,637 which contains a 10% contingency. Also, to purchase 
4 SmartFLOE units for $7,525 for continued use in the collection system.  The total amount reimbursable by the 
grant will be $38,162. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 79-2018
2. Quotes

Item 6C
2 of 21



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 79-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH SMARTCOVER SYSTEMS FOR THE LEASE AND 

PURCHASE OF SMARTFLOE METERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $38,162 CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE 

REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD GRANT FUNDING. 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018 the City Council authorized the City Manager to 
apply for grant funding to conduct a comprehensive Sewer Collection System and 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project; and  

 

WHEREAS, City staff submitted the planning grant application and is seeking to 
procure the proper equipment to provide information for the engineers’ reports pertaining 
the sewer collection system pipelines; and 

  

WHEREAS, City staff solicited quotes from two (2) flow meter vendors; and 
 

WHEREAS, SmartCover Systems was the lowest responsive bidder; and. 
 

WHEREAS, City staff is recommending approval of leasing twelve (12) SmartFLOE 
units for four (4) months and purchasing four (4) units from SmartCover Systems in an 
amount not to exceed $38,162. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with SmartCover Systems for the 
lease of twelve (12) SmartFLOE units and purchase of four (4) units in an amount not to 
exceed $38,162. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTIONS WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of December, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

    ___________________________________ 
       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 6C
3 of 21



 

 

 

 

SmartCover® Sewer Monitoring System Budgetary Quotation 
I&I Project  

(December 1st 2018-March 31st, 2019) 
  

With option to OWN units post project 

 
 

12 and 24 SmartFLOE™ Units 

 

Prepared for: 

City of Colfax, CA 
 
 

Attention: 

Jim Fletter 
 
 
 

Offered by:  

SmartCover Systems 

       
 
 

 
 

                                                     

   Quotation Date: 9/20/2018 
Offered by: Brogan Quist 

Western Regional Manager 
   Quote Valid: 90 days  

Item 6C
4 of 21



 

 

Page 2 of 18 

SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92029 
(760) 291-1980      www.smartcoversystems.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SmartCover Systems (SCS) is pleased to provide the following Proposal for: 

SmartFLOE™ level and flow monitoring system 

 

The award-winning SmartCover monitoring system is a completely self-contained, turn-

key solution developed specifically for the water and wastewater industry in close 

collaboration with industry leaders. 

 

The SmartCover system was built to solve industry problems at high value and low 

burden.   Providing completely reliable two way wireless communications, the patented 

SmartCover system provides real-time continuous remote sensing, user-definable alarm 

settings, an easy-to-use web based interface, and long and short term data collection 

and analysis.  Built to operate at sites that are environmentally difficult, have no power 

or communications, the SmartCover provides “instant infrastructure” -  it can operate 

virtually anywhere in the world, installs in minutes and is on-line and ready for you 

immediately. 

 

Unique features of SmartCover include: 

▪ Satellite communications with extremely high reliability 

▪ Data communication from anywhere on earth 

▪ Easily attaches to any manhole or hatch 

▪ No need for confined space entry to install or maintain 

▪ Traffic rated antenna 

▪ No nuisance alarms 

▪ Integration of comprehensive data analysis software 

▪ World Class customer service 

Item 6C
5 of 21



 

3 of 18 

 

 

Please find in this document:  

Table of Contents 

Section  Page 

1 Pricing Summary…………………………………………………….. 4-6 

2 Standard Terms & Conditions………………………………..…….. 7 

3 Ongoing Cost Review...…………………………………………….... 8 

4 SmartCover System Description…………………………………….. 9-16 

5 Additional terms & conditions, Limited Warranty …………….……. 17 

6 Acceptance ……………………………………………………………. 18 
 

  

   

   

   

   

  

Item 6C
6 of 21



 

 

4 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 

Section 1: Pricing Summary:  

Project Cost 12 Units 

(December 1st, 2018-March 31st, 2019) 

Part Number Description 

 
Unit 

Quantity 
 

 
Unit Price 
Per Month 
 

 
# of Months 
 

 
 TOTAL 

 

SF-Q-S-15 

SmartFLOE™ System Components 

• E-Box System Control with onboard computer, modem, 
digital radio; fully potted and IP-68 rated. 

• Distance Sensing Module (DSM) with 4” to 79” sensor 
range, with 15’ cable. 

• PowerPack®- lithium thionyl chloride battery with high 
power density. 

• E-Square™ antenna, including antenna and installation 
kit.  

• Mounting bracket kit- three-part amounting bracket set 
made of heavy gauge, hard-anodized aluminum; includes 
all mounting hardware.  

 
 
 
 

12 
 

 
 
 

 
$499 

 
 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 

 
$23,952 

PowerPack 
Warranty 

4-month PowerPack Warranty 

• Limited Parts-Only Warranty on the PowerPack 

12 
 

Included 
4 
 

Included 

Parts 
Warranty 

4-month Parts-Only Warranty 
Limited Parts-Only Warranty on all system SmartLevel™ 
hardware. 
See Warranty Statement for complete details. 

12 
 

Included 
4 
 

Included 

ASM-SF1 

Active Site Management (ASM), SmartLevel, 4 months:  
Comprehensive support services including: 

• Software subscription with unlimited number of users 
accessed with secure user name and password  

• Complete maintenance of all cloud based software  

• Regular feature updates and upgrades including the 
SmartTrend™. 

• Hosting of data storage – unlimited data storage 

• Iridium Satellite connectivity service with bi-directional 
communication. 

• Advisories, Maintenance Alerts and Alarms via email 
and/or text message 

• Ongoing technical support via phone or online. 

 
 

 
 
 

12 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Included 

 
 

 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Included 

ASM-RD-1Y 
SmartRain™, 4 month, per site 

• Radar rain data, 1 km2 area, (0.62 miles2) 

 
6 
 

Included 
 
4 
 

Included  

IST-1 

Dedicated Customer Website: Initial Set-up & Training 
(IST)  

• Dedicated Customer Website set-up and training 

• Browser-based, secure user access  

• Includes map view, site-specific data and information  

• Alarm and Advisories set-up 

• Comprehensive training for login, website features  

• Includes Telstar Visit during first 3 installations 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
Included 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Included 

Installation  
Installation of the SmartCover units by local trained technician 

(Telstar) 
12 $300 4 $3,600 

Freight  UPS Ground shipment for systems (discounted) 12  12 $300 

TOTAL All items above 
 
 

  
 

$27,852 
($2,321 
 per unit) 

Item 6C
7 of 21



 

 

5 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 

Section 1: Pricing Summary: 

Project Cost 24 Units 

(December 1st, 2018-March 31st, 2019) 

Part Number Description 

 
Unit 

Quantity 
 

 
Unit Price 
Per Month 
 

 
# of 

Months 
 

 
 TOTAL 

 

SF-Q-S-15 

SmartFLOE™ System Components 

• E-Box System Control with onboard computer, modem, 
digital radio; fully potted and IP-68 rated. 

• Distance Sensing Module (DSM) with 4” to 79” sensor 
range, with 15’ cable. 

• PowerPack®- lithium thionyl chloride battery with high 
power density. 

• E-Square™ antenna, including antenna and installation 
kit.  

• Mounting bracket kit- three-part amounting bracket set 
made of heavy gauge, hard-anodized aluminum; includes 
all mounting hardware.  

 
 
 
 

24 
 

 
 
 

 
$399 

 
 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 

 
$38,304 

PowerPack 
Warranty 

4-month PowerPack Warranty 

• Limited Parts-Only Warranty on the PowerPack 

24 
 

Included 
4 
 

Included 

Parts 
Warranty 

4-month Parts-Only Warranty 
Limited Parts-Only Warranty on all system SmartLevel™ 
hardware. 
See Warranty Statement for complete details. 

24 
 

Included 
4 
 

Included 

ASM-SF1 

Active Site Management (ASM), SmartLevel, 4 months:  
Comprehensive support services including: 

• Software subscription with unlimited number of users 
accessed with secure user name and password  

• Complete maintenance of all cloud based software  

• Regular feature updates and upgrades including the 
SmartTrend™. 

• Hosting of data storage – unlimited data storage 

• Iridium Satellite connectivity service with bi-directional 
communication. 

• Advisories, Maintenance Alerts and Alarms via email 
and/or text message 

• Ongoing technical support via phone or online. 

 
 

 
 
 

24 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Included 

 
 

 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Included 

ASM-RD-1Y 
SmartRain™, One-Year, per site 

• Radar rain data, 1 km2 area, (0.62 miles2) 

 
6 
 

Included 
 
4 
 

Included  

IST-1 

Dedicated Customer Website: Initial Set-up & Training 
(IST)  

• Dedicated Customer Website set-up and training 

• Browser-based, secure user access  

• Includes map view, site-specific data and information  

• Alarm and Advisories set-up 

• Comprehensive training for login, website features  

• Includes Telstar Visit during first 3 installations 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
Included 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Included 

Installation  
Installation of the SmartCover units by local trained technician 

(Telstar) 
24 $300 4 $7,200 

Freight  UPS Ground shipment for systems (discounted) 24  12 $350 

TOTAL All items above 
 
 

  
 

$45,852 
($1,910 
 per unit) 

Item 6C
8 of 21



 

 

6 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 

 

Section 1: Pricing Summary: 

Purchase Units AFTER Project is Complete 

Part Number Description 

 
Unit Price 

 

 
Units 

 

 
 TOTAL 

 

SF-Q-S-15 

SmartFLOE™ System Components 

• E-Box System Control with onboard computer, modem, 
digital radio; fully potted and IP-68 rated. 

• Distance Sensing Module (DSM) with 4” to 79” sensor 
range, with 15’ cable. 

• PowerPack®- lithium thionyl chloride battery with high 
power density. 

• E-Square™ antenna, including antenna and installation 
kit.  

• Mounting bracket kit- three-part amounting bracket set 
made of heavy gauge, hard-anodized aluminum; includes 
all mounting hardware.  

 
 
 

 
$1,200 

 
 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 

 
$4,800 

PowerPack 
Warranty 

TWO (2) Year, PowerPack Warranty 

• Limited Parts-Only Warranty on the PowerPack 
Included 

4 
 

Included 

Parts 
Warranty 

ONE (1) Year, Parts-Only Warranty 
Limited Parts-Only Warranty on all system SmartLevel™ 
hardware. 
See Warranty Statement for complete details. 

Included 
4 
 

Included 

ASM-SF1 

Active Site Management (ASM), SmartLevel, One Year:  
Comprehensive support services including: 

• Software subscription with unlimited number of users 
accessed with secure user name and password  

• Complete maintenance of all cloud based software  

• Regular feature updates and upgrades including the 
SmartTrend™. 

• Hosting of data storage – unlimited data storage 

• Iridium Satellite connectivity service with bi-directional 
communication. 

• Advisories, Maintenance Alerts and Alarms via email 
and/or text message 

• Ongoing technical support via phone or online. 

 
 

 
 

 
$595 

 
 

 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 

 
 

$2,380 

ASM-RD-1Y 
SmartRain™, One-Year, per site 

• Radar rain data, 1 km2 area, (0.62 miles2) 
Included 

 
4 
 

Included  

Tax City of Colfax Tax Rate (7.25%)   $348 

TOTAL All items above 
  

 
$7,525 

($1,882 per unit) 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 6C
9 of 21



 

 

7 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 

 

Section 2: Standard Terms & Conditions 

Delivery 

• Standard: Six (6) weeks upon receipt of a Purchase Order and with receipt of complete 
engineering and site information from the customer as requested.   

• All customers will be notified of the shipment date upon Order Acknowledgement.  

• Actual availability may vary depending on total demand.  

• The “Standard Six (6) weeks” is not a guarantee but a good faith estimate. It is strongly 
recommended that an order be placed as early as possible. Reasonable efforts will be made 
to provide earlier delivery if requested.  

 

Terms and Conditions 
• Late charges: A service charge of 1.5% per month will be added to all unpaid balances 30 days 

after invoice date.  Failure to pay in accordance with these terms may void all warranties. 

• Cancellations: for all orders of less than $10,000, cancellation is accepted prior to shipment. For 
orders equal to or greater than $10,000, a 15% restocking charge is applied for cancellation. 

• Returns: are accepted with a valid Return Material Authorization (RMA) number only. Contact 
Customer Service for an RMA number. 

 

 
 

  

Item 6C
10 of 21



 

 

8 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
Section 3: Ongoing Cost Review 

 
Ongoing Costs 
After the first year of operation, the following fees will provide continued comprehensive services including 
software support, data storage, upgrades, added features, and satellite connectivity.  PowerPack & System 
Parts Warranty are optional yet highly recommended. 

 These are annual charges paid prior to the start of the year. 

Part number 
Months 

covered 
Payment schedule Cost per year 

Active Site Management (ASM)  (Required) Website Access, software subscription, satellite connectivity, 
data analysis, data storage, trend advisories, maintenance alerts, alarms, online S/C monitoring. 

ASM-SF1R 12 Every year $595 

ASM-SF2R 24 Every other year $1,107 

PowerPack Warranty (Optional) PARTS-ONLY,  PowerPack Warranty for each installation, offering 
unlimited replacements during the Warranty term. 

PW-5C1R 12 Every year $199 

PW-5C-2YR 24 Every other year $358 

Systems Parts Warranty Extension  (Optional) PARTS-ONLY, Warranty for each installation, covers: E-
Box System Control, Distance Sensing Module (DSM), antenna, and mounting brackets 

EW-SF1R 12 Every year $399 

EW-SF2R 24 Every other year $742 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 6C
11 of 21



 

 

9 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
 

Section 4: SmartCover® System Description 
 

4.1 Basic Remote Field Unit Hardware 
 
Each SmartCover System includes the following basic remote field unit (RFU) hardware 
components delivered with each system. Other hardware configurations are available. 
 

• One (1) E-Box system control  

• One (1) Ultrasonic Distance Sensing Module (DSM) with connecting cable. 

• One (1) communications antenna for direct connection to the Iridium Satellite 
System. 

• One (1) PowerPack™, a proprietary high power density lithium thionyl chloride 
battery 

• One (1) bracket kit for either mounting flat to the underside of the manhole cover or 
for mounting to the manhole cover vein.   

• One installation kit containing all hardware and accessories necessary to mount a 
single system 

            
Component Descriptions: 

 
E-Box System Control 
The E-Box is the system control containing the digital satellite 
radio, computer and signal processing components. It is fully 
potted and can be completely submerged in water (IP-68 rated) 
It is housed in an, ABS enclosure and shock tested to 10 G’s. 

 
 

 
 

SmartCover® E Box Control 

 
PowerPack™  
The PowerPack™ is a high power-density battery system 
designed for reliable, consistent delivery of power in the harsh 
wastewater environment. It housed in a urethane coated pack 
containing Lithium Thionyl Chloride primary batteries. Typically, 
the PowerPack™ provides at least two years of life and 
generally longer under normal operating conditions. 
PowerPacks have a 10-year shelf life prior to use.  

 
 

 
Distance Sensing Module (DSM)  
The distance sensing module is an ultrasonic distance 
sensor. It is enclosed and sealed in an ABS housing. It 
is fully potted and completely water-proof, meeting IP-68 
standards. The crystal controlled oscillator sensor is self-
calibrating for temperature fluctuations.  
 

  SmartCover® PowerPack™ 

Item 6C
12 of 21



 

 

10 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

There are two distance ranges available.  

• The standard range senses between 4” and 79”  

• The long-range sensor’s range is 11” to 240”.  

The DSM has two standard cable lengths of 15’ and 25’. Custom 
lengths are available, application dependent, up to 300’.  SCS Application Engineers are 
available to assist users to determine the correct DSM range, uses and cable lengths.  
 
E-Series™ Antennae  

 
The E-Series™ antennae include the “E-Square” and the “E-Dot” types. Both are traffic rated 
and designed to mount directly to the manhole cover or vault lid. They communicate directly to 
the Iridium® Satellite System and do not require any intermediary devices for boosting signals. 
The antennae are secured to the top of the manhole cover using a high strength, two-part 
acrylic adhesive specifically designed for high stress, structural applications. 
 

              
         

           
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mounting Bracket Kit 
 
The mounting bracket is a ruggedized, corrosion resistant assembly designed to protect and 
secure system components. The bracket is secured with two stainless steel bolts whereby the 
installer drills two ¼” holes into the cover. The bracket is designed in such a manner such that 
NO CONFINED SPACE ENTRY IS REQUIRED FOR INSTALLATION. The hard-anodized 
aluminum housing protects the PowerPack and the E-Box control. The DSM (distance sensing 
module) is connected to the E-Box and suspended via a cable, typically over the invert.   
                           

   E-Square™ 
Antenna
  

E-Dot™ Antenna 
 

SmartCover® DSM 

 

The E-Dot antenna is for cold-weather 
climates where snow plow operation 
occurs and are designed to be 
mounted below the manhole profile. 

The E-Square antenna is a road-
reflector type used in areas where 
there is no opportunity for dislocation 
from such hazards as snow plows.  

Item 6C
13 of 21



 

 

11 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
 
 

      
  

 
 
 
 

 
 
  

Mounted Bracket 
 

Bracket with kit 

Item 6C
14 of 21



 

 

12 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
4.2 Communications  
 
The SmartCover® System™ uses the high reliability, highly secure Iridium Satellite System as 
its communications backbone. Iridium is a state-of-the-art communications system consisting of 
66 Low Earth Orbiting (LEO) satellites. It has global, redundant coverage and is known to 
provide highly superior connectivity to that of terrestrial systems such as GSM, GPRS and other 
cell phone based systems. Iridium has a very strong record of performance and reliability. It is 
used by the US military for its reliability. Iridium is currently launching Iridium NEXT, the next 
generation of LEO communication satellites.  
 
Iridium Satellites are in orbit across the globe and assured 
connectivity is achieved requiring but a small fraction of the 
available horizon. SmartCover®  are able to communicate in 
challenging locations with such impediments as tree 
canopies, overpasses or buildings.  
 
SmartCover® data is highly secure with servers using 2048-
bit encryption. These are redundant servers located in a 
climate controlled, secure facility with emergency power to 
prevent any interruptions. Servers store historical 
communication, all system generated and associated data, 
and data dccess information. Being a “cloud” based system; 
data is available at all times through a browser from a 
computer, tablet or phone.  Users can access data through 
any web browser to the server via encrypted data and send 
notifications directly to the user. 

           
 
Communications Architecture 
 
The following diagram illustrates the structure 
of the SmartCover communications 
architecture. The SmartCover remote field 
units communicate directly to an orbiting 
satellite.  The communication signals are then 
sent to Iridium earth link stations and then to 
SCS secure servers. 
 
For alarm signals, they are subsequently sent 
to the Customer via cell phone, Smart Phone, 
digital pager and/or to computers via the 
internet.  It is possible to have alarms sent to 

a central control room as well.  
 
SmartCover® communication is bi-directional and the user has control over the remote sites. A 
major benefit of the SCS system is that data acquisition, alarms and system setting changes are 
enabled remote from the installation site, saving time and resources. For example, the alarm 
level settings can be accessed via the dedicated user website to be changed or disabled. 
Changes to these settings are communicated from the SCS servers through the Iridium system 
and to the SmartCover® System™ at the designated site.  
 

Iridium Satellite Constellation 

SmartCover® communications system architecture  
 

Item 6C
15 of 21



 

 

13 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
4.3 Data Handling and Analysis 
 
The SmartCover® System™ monitors continuously 24 hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 
SCS has cumulatively acquired more than 15,000 years of data and experience with this basic 
measurement protocol to assure users that this methodology is extremely sound, robust and 
reliable for ongoing data acquisition and alarming functions. 

 
Measurement Frequency 
 
The following are the default measurement frequencies for delivered systems. Measurement 
frequencies can be changed between once per minute to once per hour, based on the 
application need.  Consult with a SCS Applications Engineer to determine the proper 
measurement frequency for your application. 
 
SmartLevel™ 

• The SmartLevel™ system takes a measurement every five (5) minutes. If the measured 
level is below the pre-set alarm level, then the cycle begins again.  

• The SmartLevel™ logs readings every five (5) or ten (10) minute measurement cycle.  

• These readings are “batched” and sent once every sixty (60) minutes via satellite to the 
server and stored for user access such as trending and analysis. 

 
SmartFLOE™ 

• The measurement frequency is the same as the SmartLevel™ 
 
SmartVault™ 

• The SmartVault™ System takes a measurement every sixty (60) minutes.  

• The SmartVault logs readings every 60 minutes. 

• These readings are “batched” and sent once every six (6) hours via satellite to the 

server and stored for user access such as trending and analysis. 

Note: If the measured level is below the pre-set alarm level, then the cycle begins again.  
 

 
Alarming 
 
If the SmartCover® remote field unit (RFU) measures that the water it is above the alarm level, 
an alarm notification is immediately sent to the designated users and by a pre-established 
communication protocol i.e., text message to a mobile device or an email message to a 
computer. Alarms through cell phones or pagers are via Short Message Service (SMS), or 
Smart Phones and emails via email messaging. Alarms will continue to be sent until 
acknowledged. The system will continue to monitor, even though the alarm has been 
acknowledged. Note: a dedicated direct-from-satellite handheld system is available option for 
highly critical communications. Contact SCS for more information. 
 
 
 
  

Item 6C
16 of 21



 

 

14 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
Graphical Data and User Interface 
The user website, designed to be easily understood and intuitive to operate, is accessed by 
designated users through a secure portal and using a user name and password. This is a very 
brief description of the capabilities of the user interface.  Contact a SCS Applications Engineer 
for additional details. Upon login, a map of the system like this one appears. 
 

 
Site Graph and Data 
User may access any remote site by clicking on the map or on the address location.  As an 
example, the graph below illustrates level in inches (y-axis), date/time (x-axis), flow levels (blue 
line), the alarm setting (red line), and the advisory level (orange line). The green line shows the 
sensor position. 

  

System Map Symbols 
 

The system map has five, colored-coded 
symbols for ease of viewing and 
management where:  

GREEN (circle) – All is well. Indicates the 
site does not have any alarms, 
maintenance alerts or advisories. 

GRAY (circle) –The data for this site is 
archived and accessible.  

ORANGE (circle) – “Advisory”. The 
Advisory is an email message of an 
anomaly. (rise or fall) 

BLUE (square) – “Alert” - maintenance 
action, ie. battery has low voltage or lack 
of communication within the expected 
interval.  

RED (triangle) – “Alarm” It could be high 
water event (surcharge) or an intrusion. 
Action is required. 

 

 

Item 6C
17 of 21



 

 

15 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

4.4 System Installation & Activation 

 
Installation  
 
It is most important to note that the SmartCover installation does not require confined space 
entry, per OSHA 1910.146. Because of the unique and patented design, a SmartCover® RFU 
installation is inexpensive and takes less than one hour for physical installation. THE existing 
manhole cover or alternative covers may be used for installation. The antenna is mounted to the 
top of the cover or lid and the mouthing bracket, and the PowerPack and E-Box bracket with the 
DSM connected to the E-Box, to the bottom of the manhole cover.   
 
The antenna is mounted and secured with a high strength, MIL-Spec grade, two-part adhesive 
and a hole is drilled to feed the antenna wire to the underside where the E-Box control is 
located. 
The bracket is mounted to the underside by drilling to two holes into the cover or lid. Two 
stainless steel screws secure the bracket. The DSM is connected to the E-Box control and it is 
suspended and aligned to the flow target area i.e., the invert, providing a means to monitor 
water levels in the invert. 
 
On-site testing of the communication link is performed to ensure that the unit is operational. 
Installation can take place on-site, or offsite with a replaced manhole cover. Typically, the 
Customer will provide personnel and equipment as appropriate, and traffic control as required 
by local regulations and safety of field personnel.  

 
Activation 
After the physical installation of the SmartCover® remote field unit, the following actions bring 
full functionality to the SmartCover® System™. SCS technicians will assist with all installation 
activation as part of our standard service protocol.  
 
SmartCover® Activation: Customer Actions 

• Upon receipt of a Purchase Order, the user will receive a questionnaire to obtain the site-
specific information necessary to perform the SmartCover® service set-up.  Proper 
system operation is dependent upon receipt of required information. 

• This site information is used as part of installation where communication will be tested to 
verify functionality. 
 

SmartCover®  Activation: SCS Actions 

• At the SCS technical Support offices, the secure Customer web site is set up including a 
private account and database on the SCS secure server. 

• The customer web site is configured with SmartCover® System™ locations, applications, 
and users, including various user levels. 

• Initial population of the Customer SmartCover® database with site specific information is 
performed. 

• Registration of the SmartCover® System™ wireless radios with the network and setting the 
customer default system operational parameters is performed. 
 

Training 
Training is provided after completion of the installation process.  Once on-site personnel are 
trained, SCS will be available to provide additional web site training remotely after the 
SmartCover® system has been installed and operational.  

 
 

Item 6C
18 of 21



 

 

16 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

4.5 Active Site Management 

 
Active Site Management (ASM) is a compressive support service for the SmartCover® 
System™. It includes software support, satellite connectivity and ongoing technical support with 
these three elements described below. 
 
It is an annual, per site service provided by SCS. ASM includes but is not limited to: 

• Website hosting- initial set-up and ongoing hosting of all software and customer data. 
Note that all data is owned by the customer.  

• Website / Software Upgrades- from time to time SCS provides new features and tools 
at no charge including such features supporting improved analytical tools, improved 
graphical tools and new reports. 

• Website maintenance – maintaining the secure servers on which your web site resides, 
and providing free upgrades to the web sites as they become available. 

• Standard Reports - SCS will support Customer in the preparation of these reports for 
management or regulators  

• Technical Telephone Support - This service is offered by the SCS Technical Services 
team from 7am to 5 pm Pacific time and with additional support from local 
representatives.  

• Management Oversight  
o SCS will send automatic notifications of alarms, advisories and alerts. Customer 

is responsible for acknowledging and responding to the above notifications. The 
SCS Technical Services team monitors the proper operation of all installed 
systems including battery voltage, the radio signal strength and the 
communication to/from the systems.  

o SCS coordinates the appropriate service to repair any components in the field 
with you or the local dealer 

• Alarm Processing – maintaining the infrastructure of the alarm contact system. 

• After Hours Support – on an as-needed basis. Contact SCS for details 

• Wireless Communications Connectivity – Access to the two-way, wireless satellite 
network. 

 

Product Improvements  
The SmartCover® is continuously improving, adding new features and functions. SCS often 
uses customer input to add new features. Product improvements are backwards compatible 
to existing satellite systems. There is no charge for these improvements as they are part of 
the annual ASM. 

 

SmartTrend™ 
SmartTrend™ is an analytical, patented addition to SmartCover® that notifies and enables 
users to anticipate events at remote monitoring sites. SmartTrend™ automatically scans 
each remote site to assess data trends and changes in water level patterns. Should it see 
an “anomaly”, it provides users an Advisory email message. This important addition to the 
SmartCover® System™ means that users now have the most advanced predictive method 
available identifying future issues such as SSO days or even weeks before they occur. 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 6C
19 of 21



 

 

17 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 

Section 5: Additional Terms & Conditions, Limited Warranty 

 
Mutual Hold Harmless   
SCS agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Customer from any and all claims that may arise, or damages that may result, to SCS or SCS 
staff to the extent caused by SCS’s negligence during the performance of this contract. 
Customer agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless SCS, its 
officers, directors, employees and subcontractors (collectively, SCS) from any and all claims 
that may arise, to the extent caused by the Customer's negligent acts in connection with the 
installation, operation, or use of the SmartCover® System™, and the acts of its contractors, 
subcontractors or consultants or anyone for whom the Customer is legally liable. Neither SCS 
nor the Customer shall be obligated to indemnify the other party in any manner whatsoever for 
the other party’s negligence.  
 
Loss of Communications 
Customer acknowledges that SCS is not responsible for the loss of wireless communication or 
internet communications or any communications used in the operation of this system.  
 
Advisory Only 
The SmartCover® System™ is an advisory service only.  As such, SCS and its founders, owners, 
or staff are not responsible for any damage of any kind or from any cause whatsoever that may 
result from, in relation to, in connection with, due to, or as a result of the installation or operation 
of the system, including without limitation, equipment failure, or any consequential damages 
caused by, or resulting from, the use or installation of the SmartCover® system. 
 
Limited Warranty 
The equipment components of the SmartCover® System™ are warranted free from material 
defects of material and workmanship for a period of one year from the date of installation. 
Unless otherwise stated, the SCS warranty herein is a parts-only warranty. Should the 
Customer discover any condition that might invoke a warranty claim, they are to expeditiously 
and without delay notify the SCS Technical Services group. Upon notification, SCS will assess 
and instruct the user on follow-on actions. Should a component fail as a result of a defect in 
material or workmanship, SCS will replace the component or repair it at the SCS location. For 
all valid warranty claims, as determined by SCS, reasonable freight charges to and from 
Customer shall be paid by SCS. In all cases, SCS shall determine the shipping method and/or 
carrier unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Customer and SCS. Upon approval of a 
warranty failure by SCS, SCS will either repair or replace the defective component at SCS’ sole 
discretion. 
 
The foregoing warranty is exclusive. Repair or replacement in the manner provided 
above shall be the sole and exclusive remedy for breach of warranty and shall constitute 
fulfillment of all liabilities of SCS with respect to the quality and performance of the 
products. This warranty does not cover damage or repairs or replacements by any cause 
beyond the control of SCS, including acts of nature, improper use, lack of proper 
maintenance, vandalism, or unauthorized repair. SCS shall not be liable for any actual, 
exemplary, indirect or consequential damages, including damages for loss of goodwill or 
profits and/or losses, that stem from a failure or malfunction of the SmartCover® 
System™.  
 
SmartCover® Systems™ does not provide traffic control. Customer must provide traffic 
control for installation and servicing of all units. 

Item 6C
20 of 21



 

 

18 of 18 
SmartCover® Systems™ 2067 Wineridge Place, Suite E, Escondido, CA, 92026 

Phone: 760-291-1980  Email: www.smartcoversystems.com 

 
In no event shall SCS’s liability, whether in contract or in tort (including negligence and strict 
liability), exceed the price of the Product from which such liability arises. 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 6: Acceptance 

 
The undersigned have read, acknowledge and agree to this offer. 

Please include this entire document with Purchase Order. 
 
 
 
 
Signatures 
 
 

SmartCover Systems    City of Colfax, CA 
 

 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
Brogan Quist      _____________________________ 
       Printed Name     
 
             
       _____________________________  
       Title 
 
         
Date:   9/20/2018     _____________________________  

Date 
 
          

 

Item 6C
21 of 21



1 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
PREPARED By: Lorraine Cassidy 

DATE: December 7, 2018 
SUBJECT: Results of November 6, 2018 Election of City Council Members, and Voter Response 

to Measure C 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 80-2018: Declaring results of the General Municipal Election 
held on November 6, 2018. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
A general municipal election was held on November 6, 2018.  That election was consolidated with the 
statewide general election as allowed by law.   
 
In Colfax, 608 votes were cast to fill the two year-term for the office of City Council Member.  Two candidates 
ran to fill one seat.  1746 votes were cast to fill four-year terms for the office of City Council Member.  Ten 
candidates ran to fill three seats.  Measure C was also on the ballot, garnering 693 votes.  Measure C reads:  

 
“To fund general municipal expenses such as police, fire, roads and recreation, shall the City tax cannabis 
(marijuana) businesses at annual rates not to exceed $10.00 per canopy square foot for cultivation 
(adjustable for inflation), 6% of gross receipts for retail cannabis businesses, and 4% for all other cannabis 
businesses; which is expected to generate an estimated $8,000 to $12,000 annually and will be levied until 
repealed by the voters or the City Council?” 
 
Measure C must have a majority vote to go into effect under California Constitution Article XIIIC, Section 
1(c). 
 
The result of the official canvass of the votes was certified on December 6, 2018 is: 
 

Candidate for City Council Member (2-year term) Number of Votes Percent of Votes Cast 

Marnie Mendoza 311 51.15% 

Jessica Wright 283 46.55% 

 
Fourteen (14) votes were cast for write-in candidates. 
 

Item 6D
1 of 4



2 

 

Candidate for City Council Member 

(4-year term) 
Number of Votes Percent of Votes Cast 

Joseph John Fatula, Jr 293 16.78% 

Sean Lomen 263 15.06% 

Trinity Burruss 229 13.12% 

Will Stockwin 203 11.63% 

Chad Ingersoll 185 10.60% 

Sherri Peterson 136 7.79% 

Rita Dolphin 122 6.99% 

James R. Arzie 122 6.99% 

Tyler Hunter Schooley 106 6.07% 

Mitchel Ryan Harrison 76 4.35% 

 
Eleven (11) votes were cast for write-in candidates. 
 

Measure C Number of Votes Percent of Votes Cast 

Yes 431 62.19% 

No 262 37.81% 

 
The official canvass of the votes establishes that Marnie Mendoza was duly elected to the office of Member 
of the Colfax City Council for a two-year term; Joseph John Fatula, Sean Lomen and Trinity Burruss were duly 
elected to the office of Member of the City Council for four-year terms.  Measure C passed and becomes 
effective January 1, 2019.  The official canvass of the votes was timely submitted as required by law. 
 
California law requires the City Council to adopt a resolution declaring the fact of the election, the total votes 
cast, the names of the persons voted for, the office for which each person was voted for and the number of 
votes given to each person.  See Elections Code Section 10263.  The Resolution must be adopted before the 
new Council Members are administered the oath of office. The attached Resolution meets all legal 
requirements. 
 
Since this was a consolidated election, the City Council is required to declare the results of the election no 
later than its first regular meeting after the official canvass of election returns.  December 12, 2018 is the 
first regular City Council meeting after the official canvass and is the appropriate time to adopt the 
proposed Resolution. 
 

 
ATTACHMENT: 

Resolution 80-2018 

 

Item 6D
2 of 4



  

Resolution 80-2018 Election Results 1 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 80-2018 
 

DECLARING RESULTS OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON 
NOVEMBER 6, 2018 

 

 Whereas, a General Municipal Election was held in the City of Colfax on Tuesday, 
November 6, 2018 as required by law; and 
 

 Whereas, notice of said election was duly and regularly given, voting precincts were 
properly established and furnished, and in all respects said election was held and conducted 
and the votes cast thereat received and canvassed and the returns thereto made, determined 
and declared in time, form and manner as required by the laws of the State of California 
providing for and regulating municipal elections in general law cities; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has received the canvass of the County Clerk certifying the 
results of said election and finds that the number of votes cast, the names of the persons 
voted for and other matters required by law, to be as hereinafter stated. 
 

 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved and Declared by the City Council of the City of Colfax 
as follows: 
 

 1. A General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the City of Colfax on 
Tuesday, the 6th day of November 2018 in time, form and manner as required by law with 
the following results. 
 

 2. There were 2 voting precincts established in the City of Colfax for the purpose 
of holding said election. 
 

 3. The total number of votes cast in the City of Colfax at said election was 608 for 
the member of the City Council two-year term, 1746 votes for the members of the City council 
four-year term, and 693 concerning Measure C.  
 

 4. The names of the persons receiving votes, the offices for which they received 
votes and the number of votes received by each of said persons are as follows: 
 

Candidate Office Sought Number of Votes 
Marnie Mendoza City Council Member – 2-year 311 
Jessica Wright City Council Member – 2-year 283 
Write-in, 2-year City Council Member – 2-year 14 
Joseph John Fatula, Jr City Council Member – 4-year 293 
Sean Lomen City Council Member – 4-year 263 
Trinity Burruss  City Council Member – 4-year 229 
Will Stockwin City Council Member – 4-year 203 
Chad Ingersoll City Council Member – 4-year 185 

Item 6D
3 of 4



  

Resolution 80-2018 Election Results 2 

 

Candidate Office Sought Number of Votes 
Sherri Peterson City Council Member – 4-year 136 
Rita Dolphin City Council Member – 4-year 122 
James R. Arzie City Council Member – 4-year 122 
Tyler Hunter Schooley City Council Member – 4-year 106 
Mitchel Ryan Harrison City Council Member – 4-year 75 
Write – in, four-year City Council Member – 4-year 11 

  

 5. At the General Municipal Election held in the City of Colfax on November 6, 
2018, Marnie Mendoza was duly elected to the office of City Council Member for a short term 
of two (2) years from and after November 6, 2018 and until a successor is elected and 
qualified, as determined by a majority of the votes cast. 
 

 6. At the General Municipal Election held in the City of Colfax on November 6 
2018, Joseph John Fatula, Jr, Sean Lomen, and Trinity Burruss were duly elected to the office 
of City Council Member for the full term of four (4) years from and after November 6, 2018 
and until a successor is elected and qualified, as determined by a majority of the votes cast. 
 

 7. At the General Municipal Election held in the City of Colfax on November 6, 
2018, Measure C:  “To fund general municipal expenses such as police, fire, roads and recreation, 

shall the City tax cannabis (marijuana) businesses at annual rates not to exceed $10.00 per canopy 

square foot for cultivation (adjustable for inflation), 6% of gross receipts for retail cannabis 

businesses, and 4% for all other cannabis businesses; which is expected to generate an estimated 

$8,000 to $12,000 annually and will be levied until repealed by the voters or the City Council?”.  
As a measure imposing a general tax, the measure required a majority vote.  805 votes were 
cast regarding Measure C. 
 

 Measure C Vote Distribution 
YES 431 Votes (62.19%) 
NO 262 Votes (37.81%) 

 

Measure C passed and becomes effective January 1, 2019. 
  

 The foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of December, 2018 by the following 
vote of the Council: 
 

AYES:     
NOES:   
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:  
        ____________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor  
ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

Item 6D
4 of 4



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 12, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mick Cabral, City Attorney 

DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION: Select Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2019 

The ceremonial nature of the first Colfax City Council meeting in December usually involves rotating the 

Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem chairs.  The rotation is typically accomplished by nominations to fill both seats 

and motions approving the nominations. 

Government Code §36801 provides “The city council shall meet at the meeting at which the declaration of 

the election results for a general municipal election is made pursuant to Sections 10262 and 10263 of the 

Elections Code and, following the declaration of the election results and the installation of elected officials, 

choose one of its number as mayor, and one of its number as mayor pro tempore.” Section 36801 requires 

selection of a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem but it does not dictate how the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are 

selected.  

In December 2002, the Colfax City Council adopted a policy whereby the rotation occurs by seniority on the 

Council, excepting those who have already served.  That policy provides, in relevant part: 

“…the Office of the Mayor is rotated yearly according to seniority on the Council with the exception 

of those already having served, while this Council sits.” 

Implementation of the policy typically involves rotating the Mayor Pro Tem into the office of Mayor and 

selecting the member with the next most seniority on the Council as Mayor Pro Tem. 

That policy was reiterated in the December 14, 2004 minutes and was written into the agenda for the 

December 12, 2006 meeting.  The only deviations from the policy occurred in December 2005, when a 

resolution was adopted honoring the request of the then Mayor Pro Tem not to rotate into the Mayor’s seat, 

and December 2017 when Ms. Mendoza was appointed Mayor Pro Tem instead of Mr. Douglass.   

The December 2002 action was only to adopt a policy, not an ordinance binding on future Councils. Policies 

by their nature provide guidance but are not binding. The Council can follow any process it chooses for 

selecting its Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2019.   

Item 6F
1 of 2



2 

 

The phrase “while this Council sits” injects ambiguity into what the 2002 Council intended because the 

phrase “this Council” is subject to interpretation. On one hand, if “this Council” is interpreted in its narrow, 

literal sense to refer only to the 2002 Council that adopted the policy, then application of the policy is limited 

to the members of the 2002 Council. That would make sense if, for example, there was disagreement 

between the 2002 Council members over who should next sit as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem.  

 Aside from being a literal interpretation of the language selected, this narrow interpretation is consistent 

with the general proposition that a Council cannot bind future Councils on matters of policy. Each Council 

has the right to decide which of its members will serve as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. The law only requires 

that those offices be filled. How those offices are filled is a matter of Council discretion. 

 On the other hand, if “this Council” is broadly interpreted to mean “the Colfax City Council”, then the 

policy adopted in 2002 is arguably intended to apply to future Councils. It has apparently been followed by 

Councils after 2002, with limited exception. Again, however, it is only a policy, not a binding ordinance.  

 The rotation “according to seniority” also injects ambiguity into the process. If seniority was the only 

criteria, then the two Council members with the longest tenure would continue to rotate into and out of the 

Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem offices. That would not make sense and would not be in keeping with Colfax’s 

typical practice. 

 “Seniority” can refer to the total amount of time a member of the Council sits if, for example, a Council 

member is elected to successive terms. It can also refer to the amount of time a member sits since his or her 

most recent election or appointment. The latter is how the Council has historically interpreted “seniority”. 

When multiple members are elected at the same time, “seniority” has historically been based on the number 

of votes received at the most recent election.  

If the usual custom and practice of the Council is followed, Ms. Mendoza will rotate into the office of Mayor 

and Mr. Douglass will become Mayor Pro Tem. This will create the following rotation, assuming there are 

no changes at the November 2020 and 2022 elections: 

 

2019    Mayor Mendoza, Mayor Pro Tem Douglass 

2020    Mayor Douglass, Mayor Pro Tem Fatula 

2021    Mayor Fatula, Mayor Pro Tem Lomen 

2022    Mayor Lomen, Mayor Pro Tem Burruss  

2023 Mayor Burruss, Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 

  

This issue is exclusively for the City Council to decide. The history is interesting, if not a bit confusing, but 

selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem is a policy issue for the Council, not staff or the City Attorney.  

 
Staff will be available to answer any questions or provide additional information. 

Item 6F
2 of 2


	0AA 181212 Agenda
	03A 181114 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary October 2018
	2019-04 Staff Report Cash Summary Oct 2018
	181212 Cash Summary Data November 2018

	03C RGS Renewal - Planner
	181212 SR Contract Extension RGS Planning Director
	Resolution 74-2018 Contract Extension RGS Planning Services
	Colfax Amend #2 (2015-06-24) 2018-07-01
	150624 RGS Contract - Feagans Planner

	03D NOAA Agreement
	2018 Staff Report - NOAA Lease Agreement
	Resolution 75-2018 NOAA Lease Agreement Resolution
	19WSR0200C CA Colfax LEA

	03E Cash Summary - November
	2019-05 Staff Report Cash Summary Nov 2018
	181212 Cash Summary Data November 2018

	06A Maidu Village
	01 Maidu Village 12-12 SR to Council
	02 Resolution 76 Maidu Village VTPM DR
	03 COA -12-12-18 Maidu COA
	04 Attach 3 - IS Neg Dec
	05 Attach 4 - 181022dh_Enacting Ordinance Cover
	06 181022ch_Enacting Ordinance
	07 Attach 6a- Site Plan
	08 Attach 6b Tentative Map
	09 Attach 6c - Preliminary Grading Drainage Utility Plan
	10 Attach 6d - Detail Sheet
	11 Attach 6e - Landscape Plan
	12 Attach 6f ARCO Plans
	13 Resolution 77-2018 ARCO DR

	06B Grant - Rodgers
	181212 SR Waste Water Planning Grant Engineering Studies Contract Award Wood Rodgers
	Resolution 78-2018 Wastewater Planning Grant Wood Rodgers Engineering Studies Agreement
	Colfax Proposal 2018-11-28
	Wood Rodgers Consulting Agreement 12.12.2018
	Wood Rodgers Contract Exhibit A 12.12.2018

	06C Flow Meter for Collection Grant Funding
	181212 SR I and I Flow Meters Grant Funding 12.12.2018
	Resolution 79-2108 Smart Meter Systems
	SmartCover Rent to Own Quotation 4 months 12 and 24 units 20September2018

	06D Election Results
	181212 SR Election Results
	Resolution 80 - 2018 Election Results

	06F 181212 SR Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem



